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IT'S ABOUT
CONNECTIONS

Clinigen Group plc is a global
pharmaceutical Services and Products
company focused on providing ethical
access to medicines. lts mission is to
deliver the right medicine to the right
patient at the right time.

For more information
Lisit Qur veizsthe
www.clinigengroup.com
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- Adjusted net revenue from continuing operations up 7%
(+13% on an organic basis) to £458.6m (2020 £428.6m)

- Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations down 10%
(-5% on an organic basis) to £116.3m (2020: £129.8m)

- Adjusted EPS from continuing operations down 14% to 55.9p
(2020: 65.3m)
- Reported EPS from continuing operations of 29.8p (2020:10.8p)

Profit before income tax from continuing operations of £51.8m
(2020 £23.2m)

Net debt as at 30 June 2021 of £335.8m (£316.9m excluding IFRS 16
abilities) representing net debt leverage of 2.8x, meaningfully
below the Group's temporary banking covenant of 3.5x

Strong cash conversion with adjusted operating cash flow for the
year from continuing operations up 6% to £99.9m (2020 £23.9m)
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INVESTMENT CASE

~ WERE

THE TRUSTED

- GLOBAL LEADER
IN ACCESS

- TO MEDICINES

In becoming the
trusted global leader
INn access to medicines,
the Group has delivered
healthy financiai returns.
We believe there are
several reasons to invest

in Clinigen.

UNIQUE AND FOCUSED BUSINESS MODEL

We offer access to medicines at the
key stages of the pharmaceutical
product lifecycle by utilising
Clinigen's balanced portfolio,
across the Services and Products
businesses.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS BY ADJUSTED EBITDA"

26
O Services O Products |
DISCIPLINED CORPORATE

AND PRODUCT ACQUISITIONS |

We have made a number of
acquisitions, both of corporates
to build out the infrastructure
platform, and of niche hospital
speciality medicines.

CORPORATE ACQUISITIONS
SINCEIPO IN 2012

PROZUCT ACQUISITIONS
SINGE IPO IN 2012
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GLOBAL CAPABILITY

We have bullt a global supply chain
and distribution network, through
acquisitions and partnerships,
providing local market knowledge
supported by global expertise,

EXPERIENCED MANAGEMENT TEAM

We have an experienced
management team both at the
regional and Group level, with a
track record of delivering strong

growth every year since inception.

MARKET-LEADING POSITIONS

We are the global leader in the
management of Managed Access
Programs to innovative new
medicines. We are a global market
leader in the specialist supply and
management of quality-assured
comparator medicines and
services to clinical trials and
Investigator Initiated Trials CHTs™.

INTERNATIONAL LOCATIONS

!

COUNTRIES SUPPLIED I LAST THREE YEARS

128

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM (TENURE)

POSITION

#1

BROAD CLIENT
AND CUSTOMER BASE

We have deep, well-established
relationships with pharmaceutical
and biotech companies as clients
and healthcare professionals
(HCPs") as customers.

SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM
GROWTH POTENTIAL

We have a significant exposure to
emerging pharmaceutical growth
markets from building out our
infrastructure platform, service
capability and product offering
through a combination of crganic
and acquisitional growth.

CASH GENERATIVE

We generate strong cash

returns which are underpinned

by operating strong credit control
and working capital management.

NUMBER OF PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECH
COMPANIES AS CLIENTS

]

HCPS AS CUSTOMERS'

2121

ADJUSTED NEY REVENUE BY REGION

ADJUSTED OPERATING CASH FLOW (£M)?
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT

WERE
BUILDING

A PLATFORM
FOR GROWTH

COVID-19 HAD A CONTINUED
IMPACT ON OUR MARKETS
LEADING TO A DECLINE

IN EBITDA COMPARED

TO PRIOR YEAR.

SHAUN CHILTON

Group Chief Executve Officer
"5 September 2021

ADJUSTED EPS (PENCE)

9.9 Vi

ADJUSTED OPERATING CASH FLOW
{EM)

99.9 ~ox



The platform enables us to build long-term
relationships with pharmaceutical and biotech
companies and healthcare professionals at
multiple points of a medicine’s life, ensuring
we fulfil our mission of delivering the right

medicine, to the right patient, at the right time.

THE BUSINESS
CONTINUES TO MEET
CHALLENGES HEAD ON
WITH A SIGNIFICANT
NUMBER OF BUSINESS
WINS ACROSS BOTH THE
SERVICES AND PRODUCTS
DIVISIONS AND THE
ROLL-OUT OF KEY
PRODUCTS ERWINASE
AND HUNTERASE.

OYERVIEW

At Clinigen we are dedicated to enabl ng
quicker ana broader access to critical
medicines acound the world for patients
WIth unmet needs, Our mMIssian :5 to
deliver the Right Medicine to the R ght
Patient, at the Right Time We achieve
this through a global platform offeing
ore ard post-launch niche, innavative
suppaort for pharmaceutical and
biotechno'cgy companies to accalerate
aevelopmeant and access to ther
medicines, and a 'go to' place for
healthcare professionals to gain access
to these crtical medizines in icensed
and unlicensed markats

The Chmigen platform comorises twao
divistons, Services and Products, witn
maore than 1000 employees across 14
international locations who work
togethor to make the Group's mission a
reality, providing access to medicines in
more than 120 countries for thousands
of patients with unmet medical needs

This supports the pharmaceutical and
biotechnology cempanies at critical
stages of a medicine’s Iife effect vely,
protecting their reputations, mMiNrmMISING
rsks to therr supply chain and extending
relationshios with their customers, the
value to healthcare professionals is that
it dehvers significant time saving in
access ng these crnitical medicinas and
ensuring a regulatory complant and
qualty assured service,
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PLATFORM

We are proud of the Services and
Products platform we have Bult singe
we were formed in 2010, We also know
that to rema.n successful we must
continue to develop and adapt to the
needs of our markers. and to that end
we remain focused on areas where we
are urmguely well positioned te gelver
va'ue for al of our stakeholders

Owver the past 12 rmonths we have made
great progress despite the challenges
presented by the COVID-19 pandermic
We have further simplified our operating
maodel. moving from three divisions

to twe to better ahgn the platform
with the end-market customer We
also announced the divestment of the
UK Specials and Aseptics business

This further demanrstrates our
commitmeant 1o sharpening our facus
on areas tnat drive the most value

Inresponse (o the growing demand
for serv ces such as our Managed
Access Programs, we witl seek to
accelerate our focus on those areas
of the Group where we have growing
and sustainable competitive advantage
and, as we do 5o continue to drive
revenue and cost synergies Chingen's
mast differentiated offerings are

from the Services division and the
Partnering segrment of the Products
division where our glatform provides
market-leading solutions from the
clnical phase through the commercial
Iifecycle phases of a drug product

We are focused on streamhining and
simphfying the Products division and
aptimising our core business which we
believe wilt strengthen our offering whilst
creating greater sharenolder value

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Im FYy2021 COVID-12 had s cont nued
impact on aur markets leadng to a
dechne in EBITDA compared with
the prior year Inspite of this, the
business continues to meet challenges
head on with a s,gnificant number

of business wins across both tne
Services and Products Divisions

and the roll-out of key products
such as Erwinase and Hunterase

The Group continues to be highly

cash generative In spite of large
nvastments in warking capital for
Erwinase coming earfier than expacted

Whilst net debt did rise shghtly

the Group made its final deferred
cayment for CSMn September 2020
meanng debt paydown can continue
to be prioritised moving forward
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S STATEMENT coxtmuen

AS A GLOBAL LEADER IN ETHICAL
ACCESS TO MEDICINES THERE IS AN
INCREASING EXPECTATION AMONGST
STAKEHOLDERS THAT WE CONTRIBUTE,
MEASURE AND COMMUNICATE
THE IMPACT OUR STRATEGY HAS ON
A RANGE OF SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2021 we further strengtherned our
leadership team with the appointment of
Sarn Herbert as Chiaf Opearating Officer
and head of the Products division. 5am
orings a wealtn of expernience lead no
specialty logstics and distribution
service providers and will be pivotai

N ensur 1g we continue to de iver
aganst our strategic objectives

The Services doyision nad anotnar straong
year adding a significant number of
client wins, witn an increase in both
the number and the total value of
business wins acrass tha divisior We
are currently ruanning more Managed
Access Programs tnan at any point
ntirme and we have bhooked more
business across the specalist packaging
labelling. storage and distrioution
clinical business than ever befare 1tis
especial'y pramising to see the healthy
mix of busimess coming from bath new
ana existing clierts as well as seaing
Chimigen mamntaimn and grow market
sharein these areas gven the more
competitive nature of tne Serv.ces
busness Desprte tae igh number

of wins across Services we continue

to see a very haaglthy new business
poeling across both the Chincal and
Managead Access parts of the divisien

Witaim the Progucts division we have
successfully grown our Partnared
products segmenrt by more thar

twenty fve products, a key growtn
opportunity for us moving forward A
large proportion of this growth has been
from the exclusive supply agreements to
d.stribute pharma clhent's maoicines into
unlicensed markets We have continued
to see these ayreements caome from
bath large and sma’l pharma companies

who have a commitment to enatzle
broader access to thair medicines

and see Chnigen as a key part of therr
oroduct bfecycle management strateqy

Erwirase, the product hcensed from
Porton Bigpharma for the tregtment

of acute lymphoblastic leukaemia, was
launched 1n the UK ana s being supphed
nto muttele urlicensed countries

We also saw mu tiple nroduct
launches across our AAA regon the
most significant be.ng Hunterase
flaursuifase-beta) 1ICV 10 Japan

which represented the first approval
for Huntarase ICV Inary country
worldwide This provides an impaortant
treatment option for patients with

tne rare enzyme daeficiency condit-on
H.nter syndrome am excited albout
the opportunity in frent of us in terms
af further partrerning and in-hcensing
across all the regions we are presant in

Innovat on and thought leadership
remam crifcal to the development of
the bosiress and in 2021 we rolled out
two new mitiatives that recogn.se two
of cur key stakaenalders Pharmacists
and Patients We held the frst ‘Love
Your Pharmacist awards which were
crested to recagnise and celebrate
the s anificant role pharmacists o ay
in enabl ng better accass to madicines
ard mproving ogeple's lives

We also launched the Pat.ent Advocate
Feliowsh pin early access, an imitialve
aimec at equinp g patert groups

and trer leadersnip with the skills

and expenence they need tc engage
meannafully within garly actcess
programs | am extremely proud of
trese two Ir hatives, which | neheve
strongly align to our mission and valdes

We dealt effectively with the challenges
presented by Brexit proving ourselves
to be wel-prepared with no impact on
our business We have contnued to
drive towards operatiora excellence
and have expanded key capabihties
with numerous exampies. such as

the expansion of our cold storaga
capacty in the Germany and Belgium
hubs which are key to supporting

the rapidly-deveioping cell ana gene
therapy market A global review of our
supply chamm has aiso been conducted
to enabie us to build a blueprint

for how we optimise our current
whally owned distribution centras

a ongside our pariner network

Technology continues to be a kay

focus across the business Improving
the customer expenance, driving
synerg-es and becom:ng maore efficient
ooerationaliy This vear we have rolled
out phase one of a new custamer
relationship management (CRM) systam
that walt continue 1in 2022 and Jltbmately
create a central tool for pharma and
biotech re'ationship management,
sUpporing our Joim-The-0Oots strategy
(e maximising tne synergies between
differant parts of the platform)

We have seon the furtner roll-aut of
Chnegen Direct which now offers full
onhne self-serv.ce to On-Demand
Partrnercd and Ownad customers nthe
UK We now have tne bullding blocks in
place to support further anl ne services
roll-out and localisatcn Inthe HI1 2022
fimancial year we also expect to see a
rmateria' upgrade to our Chin port porta
andntegration inta Chimgen Drect

SUSTAINABILITY

As aglobal 'eader in ethical access to
medicings thare 1s r ghtly an increasing
oxpectafion amongst our stakeholders
that we contrbute, measure and
commun.cate the impact our strategy
has on a range of sustairability .ssues

Th s year Clhinigen conduacted a full
review of hows our strategy aligns ta
stakehaolder valugs to ensure that

aur business model. objactives and
growth plans are cleariy alianed to the
susta nabiity agenda As aresut of this
we roiled out our Env ronment Social
ard Sovernance (253G) framewark
where we make 17 kay commitments
under the four g llars of Environment,
Products and Services Qur People
and Responsinle Bus ness

Alongsde this, Cimigen has signad

up to the Umited Nations G ooal
Compact ( UNGC Y and LN Sustainable
Development Gaals (SDGs’) ard
formalised cur commitment 1o
sustanabihty Of course the 506G

of ‘Good heath ana well-ne.ng s
certral to our m ssior and purpess



EMPLOYEES

1,069

THE GROUP HAS OVER
1,000 EMPLOYEES ACROSS
THE GLOBE HELPING US TO
FULFIL OUR MISSION. IT

|S VITAL WE CONTINUE TO
CREATE A THRIVING AND
HIGH PERFORMANCE
CULTURE IN WHICH

T0 OPERATE.

We are at the begirning of our ESG
Jjournay, but we are already making a
large contribution to important social
and economic ISsues such as access to
healthcare in develomng countries and
the imoortance of acting -n a compliant
and respansibie way in everything that
we do across the Group For example,
mthe last thrae years wo have sugpled
critical medicines into 128 countries of
whrich sixty six ara devaeioping countries
across Latin Amer:ica, Africa and Asia
Ve now enable access to more than
400 medicines across our Managed
Access. Partnered and On-Dermand
channels Further detaill of our ESG
platform car be seen on page 37 We
look forward to continuing to buld

an our ESG efforts i the future

PEOPLE

The Group has over ~ 000 emplayees
operating across the g'obe helping

us to deliver on our mission 1t1s

vital we continue to create a thriving
and hugh-performance culture 1 am
encouraged to see a further Y10 paople
from six different countries complete
tne Chnigen Managemeant Academy
this year

In these challenging tmes it 1s a 5o vita'
we lcok after our people and g ve tnem
the support they need Mental health s a
koy part of that and in 2021 we rolled out
mental heath awarenass traming to adl
rmanagers We wiil continue to focus on
th s areain 2022 with further mental
Realtn ininatives

We have increased our average franing
spend per employee, signaling our
commitment to deve'ocping our people
and supporting therr growth We have
also made further commitments to
ensure we have a cufture that actively
encourages diversity. and signing up to
tre Valuable SO0 'nitiative was another
key step towards creating even greater
diversity at Chnigen

Our employees’ continued hard work.
professionalism and commitment
enables Clinigen to cperate smoothly,
serve our customers and. most
Impartantty. help patients arouna

the world

BOARD AND GOYERNANCE

FPeter Allen has beenr succeeded by
Elmar Schineg as Group Chairman

| would like to thank Peter for his
valued leadership over the past nine
vears and | look forward to working
with Elmar to continue to grow the
Company and deliver value

Mick Keher stepped down from
his position as Chief Financial
Officer and a search to find h s
replacement 1s underway. Sharon
Curran and lan Johnson joined the
Seoard bringing additional UK Plc
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and pharmaceutical experience and
further transforming the Board.

In 2021 we also rolled out an Internal
Audit and Risk function - more details
on this can be founo on page 52 This
functonis vital for better identifying,
monitoring and rrutigating risks across
the business ana someth rg that we
krow 1s vital far all our stakenolders

On beha'f of the Board | would like to
take the gpportunty to thank all our
amplayees far ther help in enabhing the
Group 0 3chieve its guiding principle of
being the trusted global leader 1n access
to medicines | would also hke to thank
my Board colleagues for tharr support
and gu:dance over the past year

Finally would ke to thank a’l our
stakenclders employees, customers,
shareholders and reqgulators. whose
continued support has cantributed to
Qur suCCess

OUTLOOK
The Group is guding to eBITDA
growth of 5% tc 1% -n FY20272

In Services, busiress w ns secured

N F¥ 2021 are being mtegrated as
expected. the pipel neis strong with 2
number of new high value projects are
already underway Qur Services business
15 positionad (o became a focal grawth
area for Chriger i the future particularly
a5 we wark to further ref re our strategy.

In Products. specific risks remain
from COVID-19, as demand remains
subdued for somre products but has
rnot worsened There s continued
momentum across the Devaloped
cortfolio and Partnerng deals
signad i FY 2020 are contrnbuting
to growth alongs:de the anticipated
further roll-out of Erwinase

The tong-term fundamentals of

the business and 1ts end-markets
remain strong despite the near-term
uncertainty created by COVID-19,
and we are corfident that we

will deliver long-term valug

Arl sl

e b
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

WERE THE
TRUSTED
GLOBAL
PLATFORM

Around the world, millions of patients
can’t access the medicines they need
when they need them. New therapies
must go through a complex and lengthy
development process before they can
be approved. Launching these medicines
may then take years in some countries,
and may never happen at all in others.
Meanwhile, established medicines may
be deprioritised, or long-standing supply
chains disrupted.

Clinigen exists to enable quicker and
broader access to these medicines around
the world. Our global platform stretches
across the pre & post-launch phases of a
medicine’s lifecycle, from phase il to
commercial. Offering a critical service

to pharma and biotech companies by
simplifying their partnering strategy. And
saving time and resource for healthcare
professionals sourcing vital products.

Meaning Clinigen can provide access
to a medicine throughout its life - from
development to commercialisation and
back - ensuring the right medicine gets
to the right patient at the right time.

PRE-LAUNCH

Niche innovative solutions to accelerate
development and access to new medicines

MARKET DRIVER

Increased number

of highly specialised
complex medicines
originated by biotech's

O

CLINICAL SUPPLY

Innovative logistics,
packaging, distribution,
comparator sourcing and
bhiorepository solutions

SERVICES

MANAGED ACCESS

Design and implementation
of global Managed Access

Programs providing access

to innovative new medicines
for unmet medical needs

RED
|l/ PIPELINE
- 0 crowiw



STRATEGICREPORT 09

POST-LAUNCH

Global platform to enabie broader access to critical
medicines in unlicensed and licensed markets

L@

. PARTNERED .

o Partnering with pharma and L4
biotech to provide access to
their medicines in both licensed
and unlicensed markets
through an exclusive supply L
or licensing arrangement

- ON-DEMAND .

Sourcing and supply of
[ ] difficult-to-find unlicensed and .- .. @
short supply medicines in

response to demand for access
from healthcare professicnals

OWNED

Medicines that have been
acquired or developed by
Clinigen with the goal to
maximise access through
unficensed and licensed
® markets ®

More new therapies being approved,

launch delays, reduced pharma footprints, POTENTIAL DELAYS PHARMA EXECS
portfolio rationalisation, and continued BEFORE NEW MEDICINES ﬂ/ LOGKING TO DIYEST
pressure on healthcare budgets yrs ARE LAUNGHED* D ASSETSWITHIN 2 YEARS?



‘In CLINTGEN GROUP PLC
AMNUAL RERORT ARD ACCOUNTS 2011

OUR BUSINESS MODEL convinuep

PRE-LAUNCH

. °@00.

OPENIN o
ACCESST0 -

THE WORLD :
HE" : SERVICES

enables it to partner with pharmaceutical

companies and provide access for

healthcare professionals at multiple

points across a medicine’s lifecycle.

This is what makes Clinigen unique

and is what drives greater value for all

our stakeholders. A key strategic goal for .

Clinigen is to maximise the number of

medicines and relationships that sit across .
multiple parts of the platform. By doing

this, Clinigen will becamae the lifecycle .
partner of choice for pharma companies

and the go-to platform for healthcare .
professionais to access innovative . MANAG[D ACCESS

and difficult-to-source medicines.

577 2 43 5 10 "o@

PHARMA CLIENTS PHARMA CLIENTS NEW CONTRACTS
UTILISED ONE PART UTILISED MULTIPLE SECURED THROUEH
OF PLATFORM IN PARTS OF PLATEORM  INTER-COMPANY
LAST 12 MOKTHS INLAST 12 MONTHS REFERRALS

28 2507 469 161
L CLINICAL ACCESS
COUNTRIES HEALTHCARE CLIENTS PROGRAMS

PROFESSIONALS




POST-LAUNCH

18 5 PARTRERED
PRODUCTS

OWNED

. . .@..o°

ACTIVE
+ ON-DEMAND
PORTFOLIO

STRATEGIC REPORT

2 0 OWNED
PRODUCTS

|
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HOW WE'RE HELPING HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONALS

Clinigen work with healthcare professionals
around the world, helping them to access
critical medicines for their patients.

WE'RE CONNECTING
WITH REALTHCARE
PROFESSIONALS

LOYE YOUR PHARMACIST AWARDS

In 2021 Cl'nigen hosted the maugural
Love Your Pharmacist Awards The
awaras were created o recognise and
celeprate tne sign ficant role pharmacists
piay nenablng better access o
medicines and irmproving pecple’s livas
To learn more about the awards vistt
www.loveyourpharmacist.com




CLINIGEN MAKE OUR ROLE AS
CLINICAL PHARMACISTS SO

MUCH EASIER AND ENABLE US

T0 PROVIDE BETTER HEALTHCARE.

A CLINICAL PHARMACIST

Johannesburg South Africa
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CLINIGEN HAVE THE CONNECTIONS
WITH THE PHARMA COMPANIES

AND ARE ABLE T0 LOOK AT PATHWAYS
T0 GET THESE MEDICINES INTO
AUSTRALIA FROM OTHER COUNTRIES.

A - SENIOR PHARMACIST

Queensland. Australia

COULD YOU TELL ME ABOUT
YOUR ROLE?

My ralg s to get hold of medications
which are not availlable in South
Africa - either because they have
ram out of stock or because they are
not registered. Most of the drugs |
support are anapproved and ' need
to work with the infectious disease
ohysician to try and import the
medicat:on from arother country

| am a semor pharmacist looking after
the outpatient oncology patients
providing services and education,
Alsa, when phystclans prescribe weird
and wonderful medication that s not
readily ava lable «n Austral a1t falls on
me to get hold of these medicines.

WHAT LOGISTICAL CHALLENGES
DO YOU COME ACROSS IN TRYING
T0 ACCESS CRITICAL MEDICINES -
AND HAS COVID-19 MADE THIS
MORE CHALLENGING?

Some of the «ccal manufacturers

have been runming out of stock of key
redicines we use One of cur most
used medicines comes in two avallabie
brands but there have been challenges
around the avatabibty wh:ch means
we have to swap from one brand to
anotnar, which s not ideal Alongside
this, due to COVID-19, there have been
staff shortages at the port authorities
which adds another challenge in terms
of timelines to import a therapy

There have been a rumber of
medicaticns that have beer hara to
accessin Auastralia - evenin saome
cases for medicauon that 1s registered
N Australia It can often be difficult
and tme consuming getting no-d

of the manufacturers ourselves to
understand if we can impoart the
medicing Dunng COVID-1S there have
also keen langer delays at cusioms
which adds further cnallenges for

the treating of patients on trme

WHY IS A COMPANY LIKE CLINIGEN
IMPORTANT 0 YOU IN YOUR ROLE
AND HOW HAVE THEY HELPED
ADDRESS THESE CHALLENGES?

Warking witn Climigen has been a
great help Cne medicineg in particular
which 1s not yet registered in South
Africais a really important drug ta
treating multi-drug-resistant infectians
It has been great being able to work
with Clinngen to import that medicine
and has meant access to a medicing
we ptherwise wouldn't have

Cliniger have the connections with the
pharma companies and are able ta look
at pathways to get these medicines
Into Australia from cther countries Trg
has meant pat-ents have gat treatmeant
that tney ctherwise would not have

DO YOU HAVE ANY OTHER
EXAMPLES OF WHERE CLINIGEN
MADE A REAL DIFFERENCE
TOYOU AND YOUR PATIENTS?

In transplant there are so many spacilalist
medicines ava lable in Europe that

we don't have access to - it 1s really
valuable to have access to these
medicines. It makes our role as clhinical
pharmacists so much easier and enables
us ta provide better healthcare

In one example we had a patient in her
early 30s with breast cancer who had
already gone through several lines of
treatment There was a new unapproved
medicine we wanted to iImport into
Australia but we were not able to source
Clinigen were able to work directly with
the pharma company to import the
medicatron which made a huge difference
for the mental heatth of the patient

who now has hope about the future

For us as pharmacists, Climgen make
our lives signiftcantly easier an a daily
basis - tney have reduced the amount

of work and removed the complexities

In trying to access medicires.
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HOW WE'RE HELPING PHARMA CLIENTS

Clinigen’s lifecycle platform simplifies our
pharma clients’ partnering strategy by
enabling them to utilise multiple access
solutions across a medicine’s lifecycle.

Owver the last 12 months Chimgen has
been working with BeiGene - a globar
bicpharmaceutical company with multiple
meadicines on the market in the United
States and China and more reaching key
stages of the devslopment orocess

BeiGene has a significart pipehne
including three internaliy-developed
molecules approved for different life-
threatening cancer types The most
advanced of the three maolecules,
zanuprutimb, a BTK imhibitor. has
already been approved In majar
territories such as the UsA and China
and further approvals in Europe

and other countries and regions are
expocted Tislehzamab, an immuno-
oncoloagy drug and checkpomnt
inhiotor that 1s approved for several
indicatons in China, delivered positive
global phase 3 deveiopment studies,
approvals ' the LUSA, Europe and
other territories are planned And
pamipanb, which s approved in China
for the treatnent of ovarian cancer

There ware three key priorities for BeiGene

- Enable invest.gater-lad rescarch
exploring treatment optiors for
targeted indications. specific
subgroups of patients or hypothesis
generating work

- Frabing compliant and cantraolled
access to ther oncology portfolio for
treatment of unrmet medical needs

- Fazt and effiment aelivery of ther
Nicensed mead cations post approval

CLINIGEN IS A KEY PARTNER FOR US IN
ENABLING ACCESS T0 QUR MEDICINES ACROSS
THE MEDICINE'S LIFECYCLE. WE ARE ABLE T0
UTILISE THEIR PLATFORM AT VARIOUS STAGES
FOR DIFFERING ACCESS CHALLENGES ACROSS
MULTIPLE PRODUCTS - THIS IS EXTREMELY
IMPORTANT FOR US AS IT SUPPORTS QUR
MISSION OF PROVIDING ACCESS T0 MORE
PATIENTS, SIMPLIFIES OUR PARTNERING
STRATEGY AND STREAMLINES DUR APPROACH.

WHERE ARE
CLINIGEN AND
BEIGENE WORKING
TOGETHER:

SERVICES
CLINICAL

Investigator-led research

can be critical n further
uridarstanding molecules and
tneir appropgriate apolication
Co-ordimat-on and facil-tation
of regquasts from global sites
can howeaver be complex,
rescurce ntensive and

often requires a nimble

and responsive supply

chain Clhinigen recarnng

and facilitating these requasts
or pehalf of BeiGene helps
ta ensure comphant and
tmely responses and builds
and mantams important
re'ationshps with key sites

MANAGED ACCESS

BeiGere is committed to
Snsurng appropriate patients
with unme: mecdcal needs can
access therr molecules prior
to commercial availlabihty 1In a
comphant manner As a result
BeiGene has :nitiated kay
programs to enable acceass

to zanubratini, tislenzumab
and pamipant where ther
physician deerms it the most
suitable treatment option aver
existing commercial therapies
Chrigen has worked with
BeiGene to design, implarnant
ard delver these programs

(o ersure nc ehgible patent
reguest gees unanswerad
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PRODUCTS
PARTNERED

Shoula zanubrutinib be
aporoved in the EUJ BeGena
will want to ersure smooth
and efficient commercial
rodl-outin key markets as
SOan 35 nossible Whitst
BaiGena s expanding its
Edropean footprint and
medical functions to prepare.
1t also needs g distnicution
partner in the UK following
Brexit Clhinigen will be that
partner, facihitating LUK
commercial distnbuticn
following commercial launch

WE'RE

SIMPLIFYING
PARTNERING
STRATEGIES
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HOW WE'RE HELPING PATIENTS

At Clinigen, we are passionate about
getting the right medicine to the right
patient at the right time. We work

to support inclusion of the right inputs
and perspectives to foster successful
development of Managed Access
Programs. The patient voice is
absolutely central to this.

WERE
CONNECTING
WITH PATIENT
GROUPS
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A PATIENT ADVOCATE
FELLOWSHIP IN EARLY ACCESS
HAS THE POTENTIALT0
STREAMLINE HOW PEOPLE GET
ACCESS TO LIFE-SAVING DRUGS.
T CAN FEEL LIKE BEING LOST IN
A MAZE. EVERYONE IS TRYING
TO GETTO A SIMILAR PLACE
BUT KNOWING THE RIGHT WAY
TO GO AT THE SAME TIME IS

A CHALLENGE.

LINDSAY WEAVER

Former CEQ, Metabolic
Support UK and Co-Founder
and CEQ. Realise Advocacy

This year Chimigen launched the Patient
Advocate Fellowsh pon early access,

an initiative aimed at equipping patient
groups and their teadership with the skills
and experience thoy need to engage
meaningfuily within early access

Patient groups are oftan stretched
for time and resources, and s¢ are
nat always 1in a position to get to
chngage deeply with the topic of eany
access And yet, ther timely mput can
make all the difference in developing a
Managed Access Program that better
sarves both patients and company

That's why Clinigen founded the
mnovative fellowship scheme to reduce
barners to entry far patient advocates
In this specialist area We worked with
experienced patient advocates to shape
a scheme that would be fit for purpose

The 2021 scheme 15 Now oNGoINg.
offering leaders of patient groups
cpportdnity to promote the interests
of theirr community through taillored
learning, networking and peer
support relevant to early access
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

~ WERE
DRIVIN
SYNERGIES

PATIENTS

Climigen's mission is ‘Right Medicine, Right Patient,
Right Time'. Patients are at the heart of everything
we do and are a key reason why many of our
employees choose to work for the Group.

Since its inception, the

Group has been building

out its infrastructure platform,
refining its value proposition
and driving the synergies
between its business
operations to deliver the

right medicine, to the right
patient, at the right time.

By investing in our business model, the Geoup
15 3ple to create sustamed value for our
stakeholders patients, clients, customers
employees, shareho'dars and regulators

Tha follow:ing tabie provides a hst of tha
Group s stakeholders as determined by the
Board It cuthines why they are impartant for
tha Group why we think we are i/mportant to
them. how we engage and prov.des examples
=f our engagement tnroughout the year
Lrgagement with cur key stakeholders is
regularly revewed to ansure we learn from
these reiat.onskhips for the benefit of bath

tne Group and its key stakeho ders

“YEAR ON YEAR, CLINIGEN SEEKS TO WORK
MORE CLOSELY WITH THE PATIENT
COMMUNITY - TO UNDERSTAND ACTUAL
NEEDS AND GAPS. WE RAISE AWARENESS
(F THE YARIDUS CONDITIONS THAT OUR
PRODUCTS ARE INDICATED FOR, WITH A
FOCUS ON (MPROYING PATIENTS' QUALITY
QF LIFE IN A NUMBER OF IMPORTANT
THERAPY AREAS.”

Commercial Director - Genearics

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT TO THE GROUP

Patients are central to the
service Clinigen provides
to pharma companies and
haalthcare professiona's

It g ultimately patierts’
neads and reguirements
rnat heip to shape the type
aof serwvices and products
Charmgan provide

WHY THE GROUP
IS IMPORTANT TD THEM

Chrigen .sir the husiness of
enabling access to med.cines
Through its Services and
Products dwisions, it ma<es
new ar cdifferent treatrment
ophons avallaple for patients
WITH urmet neads arouna
the world Tns makes all

the difference for patients
whether [ he enab'ing
access to al fe-sav ng or
extending treatment. or
introducing an opticn that
codld have g vast mpact on
a pat ent’s gquahty of I'fe

HOW WE ENGAGE

We angage with the patient
commun:ty throagh our
global patient advocacy
funct-on within medicat
affairs Across the Group,
our alms have been to
create a feedback loop with
the community wheareby
actual patiert needs can
he heard, and have ar
impact upon Chnigen's
business and priorities

2021 EXAMPLES

s year, Chimgen laurched
the Pat.ent Advocats
Fellowship in early access. an
initiative aimed at eauippirg
oatient groups and therr
leagersnip with the skilig

ano experience they need

to engage within early
access, improving it for alt



PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECH CLIENTS

Pharmaceutical and bictech clients are
broadening their relabionship with Clinigen

to gain ethical, compliant and valuable access
solutions across the medicine jifecycle.

“PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANIES ARE
LOOKING FOR SPECIALIST ACCESS
PARTHERS T0 WORK ALONGSIDE THEM
DURING THE WHOLE PRODUCT LIFECYCLE.
CLINIGEN'S ABILITY TO SUPPORT THEM
FROM CLINICAL TO COMMERCIAL IS A KEY
FACTOR IN WHY THEY PARTNER WITH US."

VP Business Development

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT T0 THE GROUP

Clhinigen provide solutions to
pharmaceutical and biotech
companies at all stages of the
medicmea hfecycla tis only
through strong relationships
with pharma companies that
Clinigen can expedite ard
broaden access to medicines
for patients arcund the world

WHY THE GROUP
I3 IMPORTANT TO THEM

Climigen’s platform
providas pharmaceutical
and bictech companies
with ethical compliant

and efficient soutions to
medicine access challenges
throughout the medicing
ifecycie These salutions
drive value and simplify
partnering strategies

HOW WE ENGAGE

Chinigen engage pharmaceutical
and oiotech companies at
mutiple points throughout
amedicine's | fecycle - from
phase |l to commeraial The
solutions Climgen grovide

vary depending onitne
carmpany s mternal capabilities
ard specific access neads

2021 EXAMPLES

Owver the last 12 months
Clinigen has provided
soiutons ta more than

500 pharma and biotech
compames These companies
range from large Top 20
pharma companes o

smal niche biotechs

HCP CUSTOMERS
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HCPs around the world rely on Clinigen
to obtain ethical and compliant access
to hard-to-find medicines.

“DUR TEAMS ARE SPEAKING TO
HEALTKCARE PROFESSIDNALS ARGUND
THE GLOBE ON A DAILY BASIS. IT IS VITAL
WE BUILD STRONG RELATIONSHIPS AT A
LOCAL LEVEL AND THAT WE HAYE THE
KNOWLEDSE AND CAPABILITIES TO
PROYIDE EFFICIENT SOLUTIONS T THEIR
ACCESS CHALLENGES.”

Customer Service Director

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT TO THE GROUP

Along with pharmaceutical
and biotach companies,
HCPs are the aother main

user of the service Chinigen
provides Effectively servicing
the needs of HCPs across

the world 1s critical to being
able to achisve cur rMission

WRY THE GROUP
IS IMPORTANT TO THEM

Chrmigen provides a ptatform
that enables HCPs to access
critical medicines i a simple,
efficient and comphiant
mannear This saves time,
minirises resource iImpact
and enables HCPs to treat therr
patients as guickly as possible

HOW WE ENGAGE

Chimgen’'s multi-channel
platform, Chiriger Direct.
enables Clinlgen to engage
with HCPs via phone, emall
and online. Chnigen alsa
have fig d-kased teams
such as Madical Science
Liaison that consult directly
with treating physicians

2021 EXAMPLES

This year Chin.gen laurched
the Love Your Pharmacist
Awards to recognise the
vital role pharmacists across
the world p'ay in enabling
access to medicings

Mare than €,.000 additional
HCPs have registered on
Chiniport durnng FY20G21.

During FY2021 Climgen
have interacted with HCPs
n more than 120 countries
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT contimuen

EMPLOYEES

We employ over 1,000 people in 14 international
locations and are committed to a policy of equal
opportunities in the recruitment, engagement
and retention of employees.

“WE ARE PROUD TO BE A TRULY INCLUSIVE
PEOPLE-CENTRIC BUSINESS. OUR DIVERSE
GLOBAL WORKFORCE BRING TO LIFE
OUR CLINIGEN-WAY PRINCIPLES. WE
ARE PASSIONATE ABOUT EMPLOYEE
ENGAGEMENT, COLLABORATION,

AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT TO MAKE
CLINIGEN A GREAT PLACE TO WORK."

SVP Human Resources

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT TO THE GROUP

Our employees are vital

to help us deliver on cur
strategic objectives ard

so It 1s crnitical to recrunt,
davelop and retaim the right
people Itis only by having
a happy. thriving and high
performance team that we
can contnue to serve the
reeds of our customers

WHY THE GROUP
IS IMPORTANT T0 THEM

Many of our emplaoyess

are attracted to Chrnigen

due to the nature of the work
enablng better accass

to medicines Inadditicn
Canigen offers a diverse
working culture thar wiil
offer opportunities for

career development and
personal growth

HOW WE ENGAGE

We encourage s culture of
Open cormmunicanon tnrough
a range of two-way mediums
including regular employes
staff forums: global intranet
platform, news.etters. and
regdlar Group and divisional
performance updates from
the Executive team in
additian, we ut'lise Peakon
the world's leading platform
far measuring and '‘mproving
ernpoyee engagement,

2021 EXAMPLES

N0 employees completed
tne Clinlgen Maragement
Academy traiming prodram
curing the year

All people Mmanagers across
the Group completed
rmental healtn awarenesss
traimng as part o our
commitrmeant to wellbeing

Cimigen launched a global
;ob grading framework to
underpin cur commitments
to reward ard recogricon
and development

SHAREHOLDERS

The Board realises that effective communication
with shareholders on growth forecasts, strategy
and governance is an important part of its

responsibilities.

“COMMUNICATING EFFECTIVELY AND
REGULARLY WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
POTENTIAL INVESTORS ON PROGRESS
AGAINST KEY METRICS, MILESTONES
AND QUR FUTURE STRATEGIC DIRECTION
{SKEY. ITIS ALSO VITAL THAT THEIR
YIEWS ARE APPROPRIATELY REPRESENTED
AT THE BOARD LEVEL"

VP Investor Relations

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT T4 THE GROUP

Shareholders piay a vital
rale in the success and
arowth of the Campany and
nave provided a source of
equity to help furd some

of the acguisitions made

In add-tion, sharehaolders
nrovide important feedback
to the management

team to be incorporated
‘nto future digiogue

WHY THE GROUP
IS IMPORTANT T0 THEM

Clinigen has delivereag
long-term value to
smareholders through
snare price appreciation
and a progressive dividend
pohoy. It's important for
the Group tc demonstrate
r-sk management, good
carporate governance
practices, trransparency
and leadersh p

HOW WE ERGAGE

Trng Charman, Executive
Oirectors and investor
relations resource
communicate regularly with
our shareholders, engaging
proactively with them and
ensuring their views are
communicated back to the
Soard Intenm and final results
are communicatad via formal
meelings with roadshows,
participat on n conferences
and additional dalogue with
key 1investor representatives
held in the ntervening pernods

2021 EXAMPLES

The Charman, CEC and CFO
had a reguiar dialogue with
institutional shareholders,
engaging proachively with
them and ensurnng ther
views arg communicated
back to the Board

Cliniger engaged with

N3 institutiona. :nvestors
during tha year. hold ng
rmare thar 150 meetings anc
attending thres internaticnal
invastor confererces




COMPETENT AUTHORITIES

Clinigen engages with Competent Authorilies
including regulators and government departments
in order to operate within the appropriate
regulatory and legal framework and expedite

access to medicines.

“WORKING CLOSELY WITH COMPETENT
AUTHORITIES AROUND THE GLOBE IS VITAL
TOBE ABLE TO FULFIL DUR MISSION. WE
MUST FULLY UNDERSTAND AND COMPLY
WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 70
ENSURE WE CAN PROYVIDE ACCESS IN A
COMPLIANT AND TIMELY MANNER.”

VP Regulatary Affaurs

WHY THEY ARE
IMPORTANT T0 THE GROUP

Competent Authonties
ensure that every element

of the service Clinigen
oravides s compliant and,
most importantly. protects
the patients we provide
access for Farming strong
and transparent relationships
with Competent Authorities
15 key to service the needs of
our nharmaceutical clients
and HCP customears

WHY THE GROUP
1S IMPORTANT T0 THEM

Competert Authorities
ersure that pharmaceutical
companies, ike Chinigen,
operate in hine with

global guidelines and

local regulations to

ensure patient safety,

HOW WE ENGAGE

Clirigen engages with
Cormrpetent Authanties via
our regulatory and aualiny
functions for a number

of reasons. inciud ng
marketing adthorisations
mportng and exporting
of unhcensed medicines,
strategic guidance, and
penodic inspections

2021 EXAMPLES

Crver the year. Climigen has
been inspected seven timeas
by Competent Authont es

We have a'so been
angaged with Competen:
Author tes around the globe
sormne examples include
gairing US Orphan Orug
designat on for Praleukir
for ALS, decentralised
procecdures for developed
products Glycopyrraniurm
Bromide anag Melatonin

in Europe, approval for
Erwinase emergency supply

in France, UL, US and Canada.

establishment of Exploitant
status in France record

year of Compassionate Use
submissions in Germany 30d
Selgium, further subbmissions
In other EU countries and
registration of Foscavir bag
presentation in the US,
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SECTION 172(1) STATEMENT

Sectian 172 of the Companies Act 2006
reguires each Directar of the Company

to dct in the way he or she censiders. 1in
good faith would mast hkely promaote the
suzcess of the Company for the benefit
of its members as 3 whole Inthis way.
Sectnon 172 reguires a Directar to have
regard. amongst other matters to the

- Likely consequences of any decisions
n the long term

- Interests of the Company's employees

- Meed to foster the Company's business
relationships with supphers, custormers
ard other mater.al stakenolders

- Impact of the Company's operations on
Iccal communities and the enviranment

- Desrabil ty of the Company mainta nirg
a reputation for high standards of
basiness cocnduct

- Need to act farrly between membpers of
the Comnany

Imalischarg ng its Section 172 duties the Board
has considered the factors set out akbove and
the views of key stakeholders, The Board
acknowledges that some decisions will not
necessarily result in a positive odtcome for all
cur stakehaolders However, by considerning the
Company’s purpose, mission, vision wvalues
and commitrment to responsibie business
together with its strategic pricrities and
having a process in place for decision-making,
the Board aims to ensure that its decisiors
aren the best nterests of the business

Further information regarding the principal
activities and decisions takean by the Board
during the year can ke found in the section
entitled ‘Board Leadership and Campany
Purpose' in the Corporate Governance
Staterment on page 64



22 CLINIGEN GROUP PLE
ANNUAL REPORT ARD ACCOUNTS 2021

MARKET OVERVIEW

Clinigen operates from phase |l

to commercial in a pharmaceutical
market with an increasing number
of niche and targeted therapies
developed by smaller companies.

it has a un gue business moda’
that provides access to medcinges
ard saryices across the med:cine
Iifecycle The Group operates in
larae, high growth international
pharmaceut.car markets with bhoth
macro trends which affect the
industry and micro trends speacific
to each of the Group § two DusIness
operations. Some of the more
common macro market trends ana
key market drivers for Climgen are
discusseg In this Market Overview

CLINIGEN'S MARKET DRIVERS AND DIFFERENTIATORS

SERVICES
MARKET DRIVERS

- Ircrease requirement for besooke
ard tallorea soldtions far smalier
nat ent populations
Focus on natient-centric solutions
that help with recruitment and
retention in climeal trals
Increased ro e of patient advocacy
groups and onhne resources lead ng
to greater patient demand for
2arly arcess

- Continued need far additional data
to support approvals and pricirg
ard reimmbdrserment
Reouiremernt for digital solutiors
that support access

CLINIGEN DIFFERENTIATORS

- Flexinle ard agile global suop!y
chain and dstribution network

- Abuity to marage deep co'd
storage including cryogemc

- Patent-focused offerings such
as drect-To-patient shpoing

- Market-lead ng cffering for early
access solutions coupled with
pat ent-focused initiat.ves
(Pat ent Advocate Fel owsaip}
Rea World Data capture alengs de
early access that has been utihsad
to suppsrt market access

P
"

RODUCTS
ARKET DRIVERS

Pharma looking ta reduce nu.mber of
partners they have for ther products
Conunued cnal enges global vy in
access rg uranproved and approved
medicres due 1o shortages
Increased need for pharma to fing
outsourced access solutions in tier
two and three markets

Continued budget chai'enges mahking
price a larger factor in pharmacy
buying decisions

CLINIGEN DIFFERENTIATORS

ABility Lo provide access in igensed and
unhicensad markets across the ¢gl'oog
Global sourc ng network with abihty
to provide rapid solutions for hard

to find medicines

- Established capabiities across the

glabe watniozal teams in thne US.
Eurcpe Asia, Africa and Lapan
Existing relationship vath network
of pharma manufacturers ana
whiolesaiers built up over 30 vears
leading 1O greater sourcing power



GLOBAL MARKET TRENDS

CONTINUED GROWTH
IN R&D AND APPROVALS'

There cantnues to be strong growth
in the overall size of the R&D pipeline
as well as the numbaor of now
medicines coming to the market,

The R&D pipeline 15 growing year-on-
vear with further graowth in 2020 of

S 62%. Thisis up from 5 92% growth

In 20'9 The result of this 1s estimated

to be around 1,556 more drugs i
development (p totald Thisis aresu't of
both more researcn on existung therapias
as wel as new therapies comng intc
the pipe. Ir fact, in 2020 there are
reparts of 4 730 new molecules be ng
added into the pipeline which s a rise
from 2013 1t .5 also impaortant 1o note
that there was an Increase at every
phase of development fram pre-climical
tarough to launched medicines

Alongside this R&D growth there
continue to be a hign number of drug
approvals In 2020 there were 53
novel therapeutics approved which

s up from 4810 2019 This represents
the second highest number of FDA
approvals outside of 2018 Whilst the
US 15 not the aorly indicator here we
believe it s a key indicator of new
medicnas coming INto the market that
healthcare professionals will want to
access The US was the first approval
market for 75% of 2020 FDA approvals,

R&D 15 a key driver for growth across
clinical services, likely leading to an
increase n logistcs, dstrnbution,
labelling ard sowrc ng opportunities It
15 also likaly to lead 1o a rise In managed
access opportunities as these filter from
phase two to phase three and beyond.

Year-on-year FDA drug approvals are

a key ndicator for managed access

and partnering deals as healthcara
nrotessionals look to access and charma
need to roll out global iaunches

RISE OF SMALLER COMPANIES

Srnaller pharma compantes with one or
two drugs in ther portfolios account for
around 10% of the tetal pharma poe'nie
Within this there has been a significant
r.se in the astual number of small
companies conducting the research

There ara a reported 735 companies
with just two drugs In the portfolio which
represerts a 10% ircrease from 2019
There are a reported 1,843 compan:es
with a single drug in deveiopment

which eguates to over 50% of all

comoan es with a drug in developrment,

Alongside this of the 101 drugs that
have been approved by the FDA 1n the
last two years it 1s noted that a large
proportion of these were developed
by what coud be defimed as a smaller
company’ or one with a hmited
geagrapnic footprint outside the USA

The nigh number of new drugs in
development and baing approved
that sit with smaller companies

15 a key driver for Chnogen

These companies are often more
focused on an outsource model at

the clinical stages and are lgo«ing to
companies ke Chrigen to support them
through the development pracess.

They also don't bave tne capacity or in
some cases. expertise to supply ther
drugs outside the US into unhicensed
markets or 'rdeed to commercialise
these medicines themselves They will
be looking for a partner that can guide
through the unhicensed to licensed
process and ensure patients around
the world can access therr medicinas

STRATEGICREPORT 23

FOCUS ON ONCOLOGY
AND NICHE THERAPEUTICS

There remains a farge focus on
driving R&D 1in oncology with

36 7% ol molecules in devalopment
being carcer candidates,
ncreasing by 13 2% from 2019

Thisis also the case with drug approvals,
with 30% of approvals in the last two
yvaars bemng for cancer treatments

Furthermore we see the biggest increase
in the cellular therapy, chimeric antigen
receptor, or CAR-T, category whose
pipeline s1ze has increased by 77 9%,

Outs:de of cancer there have peen
further increases in the development
of gene therapies where R&D has
axpanded by 47 3% Thare has

also been ar increase of drugs In
developrment for rare and arphan
ingtications, which 1s up /% and
covers a total of 808 rare disgases

Al of this focus 1s good for patients
with unmet medical needs put prasents
challernges for pharma companies

Firstly, these moleculas are often
cemplex 1o hand-e and patient mapping
can be difficult, meaning devalopment
can be complex and costly.

Secondly, when they do get approvals
the supply chans are complex and
there are often other significant
barriers to the rnarket such as

pricing and reimbursement,

Clin-gen's model s set up to address
these challenges Qur model 1s baing
developed to support these highly
complex therapeutics. where there
is a high unmet med-cal need from
clinical through to commercialisation.

YEAR-ON-YEAR GROWTH IN NON-SOURCING CLINICAL WINS

L Mearme T RAS ahey oo

Dodarmey 2T

KUMBER OF PHARMA CLIENTS

]

% OF MAPS /N ONCOLOGY & RARE DISEASE

h0y-
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%A WITH CLINIGEN CEQ, SHAUN CHILTON

ONE THING THAT HAS BEEN
HIGHLIGHTED DURING THE
PAST 1218 MONTHS IS THE
IMPORTANCE OF OUR
BUSINESS T0 PATIENTS
AROUND THE WORLD.




Clinigen CEQO, Shaun Chilton,
discusses the Group’s performance

in 2021 and addresses some common
guestions received from investors

over the past year.

@ TELL US ABOUT THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL RESULTS THIS YEAR

A  Clnigen this year has seen financial

I performance mpacted by COVID-"9,
partcularly in our Products dovision
across On-Demand and Proleukin
This nas been due to hospitals globally
focusing therr efforts on deal ng with the
pandem:c. signmificantly reducing usual
activit-es which we provide solutions for.
and patients understandably not being
willing or able to get into hospitals

However, despite the challenges
brought about by the g abal nandenic
we demonstrated cur ability to

refine our services ta maxe them
relevant and helpfu! :n th's scenario.
We have continued to demonstrate
the stremgth of our platform with

a record numupoer of business wins
acrass the services division, the roll-
out of Erwinase and continued strong
performance across the 4 AA region,

Due to the strength of the underlying
tusiness we anticipate EBITDA growth
between five and ten percant in the next
fnancia’ year We alsoremain focused
on reducing the net debt positian

@ COVID-19 HAS FORCED MASSIVE CHANGE
ON THE WAY THE PHARMACEUTICAL
INDUSTRY DOES BUSINESS. HOW HAS
CLINIGER RESPONDED?

COVID-19 has bean a major global

= crisis, not just for those directly
impacted but also for patients suffering
from other diseases that have been
deprniontised during the gardermic Over
the past 12-18 months our business has
pear able to assist many patients around
the world and we have been proud to
play a role at this very challenging time

Clhnigen nas supparted more thar

50 COVID-19 related projects and has
continued to provide access to critical
rmechicines for hundreds of thousands
of patierts during the pandemic

We like most businesses. have had

to adapt to a more virtual way of
wOorking and our employees have
beer steadfast Iin the way they have
continued to focus on domng what needs
to be done to get the right medicine
to the right patient at tha night time

Qur direct-to-patient chnicat support
sarvices have been utiised more
widely during the pandemic as we
see a shift ta chrmicai trials being
managed in a more decentra 1sed way
which could be a long-term trend

we are well placed to support

The Chmigen pfatform has been bult
to provide accass to difficult to find
medicines globally and provides
tanginle benefits toc both pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies and
healthcare professionals We enable
comparmes to provide access to therr
medic res 1N a way that maximises
ther value and mnimises risks,
praotectng critical relationships with
their customers, These customers
depend upon us to save them valuable
time and provide these med.cines
quickly and safely These services

will continue to be 1in figh dermand

In the post-pandemic worlid
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@ IS THE STRUCTURE OF THE BUSINESS

NOW RIGHT TO DRIVE FUTURE GROWTH?

We recagn se that in order to

continue to deliver good growth
we naed to focus the busness on those
areas we feel we make a difference and
have competitive advantage - a major
reason why during the past 12 months
we have worked hasd to simplhfy the
business Moving from three divisions
to two was a natural step for us and
helps us better position the business to
stakeholdars as well as realise synergies
across the organisation The divestment
of the UK Specials ang Assptics business
was also important to ensure that we are
focused on those services and products
we belheve can deliver most vawue for cur
stakeholders

We have also continued to strengthen
odr team. which .s integral to strong
future growth We brought ina Ch e
Oparating Officer Sam Herbert, to
ensure operationally we have the
rght capaoihitias and capacity for
future growth Qur Boara has also
been strengthened ard further
internationalised over the period
Elrmar Schnee has succeeded

Pater Allen as Group Chairman,
brirg.ng straong experience from

the international pharmaceutical
industry Sharon Curran and lan
Johnson also joined. adding significant
histed UK healthcare experrence

Looking forward, n response to the
agrowing demand for services such as our
Managed Access Programs. we will seek
to accelerate our focus an those areas
of the Group where we have growing
and sustainable competitive advantiage
and, as we do 50, contrrue to drive
revenue and cost synergies Chnigen's
most different.ated offerings are from
the Services division and the Partnering
seagment of the Products divisior where
our glatform provides market-ieading
solutions from the clinical phase through
the cammercial lifecycle nhases of

a drug product In addition, we are
focused on streaml-ming and stmplifying
the Products division and optimising
our core business, which we bhelieve

will strengthern our offering whilst
creating greater shareholder value

We also continue to focus on developing
our people and bulding the right culture
to ensure we have a thriving work force.
And we will continue with cur digital
roll-out with key milestones approaching
N FY2022 which we believe are central
ta Clinigen's future growth plans
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Q&A WITH CLINIGEN CED, SHAUN CHILTON contivueo

0 : WHAT ARE THE MOST IMPORTANT DRIVERS
- OFGROWTH ACROSS THE BUSINESS?

. i  Firstly, we arein a posttion where

' the markets we cperate in are
growing, which is clearly important Far
example, there are more chnical trials
being conducted year-on-year. mare
being spent on R&D. more innovative
drugs being approved-all of which are
real drivers in the first instance for the
Services part of the business, an area
where ocur pipeline remains strong and
where we are engaging with pharma
companies as early as phase Il research

Secondly, a growing proportion of these
pharma and biotech companres will need
a partner to supply of their medicines into
both unhcensed and licensed markets

It s because of this that we recognise
a key growth driver moving forward

is partnerng Qur abitity to marags
the heensed and unlicensed markets
of a product through one platformas

a key differentiator and makes us an
attractive partner for a pharmaceutica’
or biotechnclogy company

The akihty to really drive the synergy
{or handover) between the two
divisions ana realise long-term and
maore predictanle revenue ana orofit
- what we call Jomn The Dots 1s a key
driver of growth Inthe shoert-term,
licensing agreements such as Erwinase
and Hunterase are good potential
growth drivers and in the medium-
taren, Proleukin with the successful
launch of TIL therapies and also low
dose use m additicnal indications

. - THERE HAYE BEEN A NUMBER OF
~ ACQUISITIONS IN RECENT YEARS. HOW
HAYE THEY CONTRIBUTED T0 THE GROUP?

A The acqguisitions we have maads

have al beer focused on expandmg
and enhancng the offerings across the
platform or oringing in products which
we can max rmise tha value of through the
clatform CSM and 1Qone are good recent
examples of acqusitions that have enabled
us to oroaden cur offering to pharma
chients and ultimately (2d to us winning
busiress on othear parts of the platform
which we would not otherwise nave won

From a croduct perscectve Proeukins
a product we beligve we car maximise
the value of given our ab hity to supply
nto clinical, unacensed and commercial
markets. sormething that may be

kay as |1t goes through development

for new ndications Products like
Proleukin continue to allow us ta

bu ld out our technical capabilities

3s wel expand geograph.cally

Q . HELP US UKDERSTAND THE
- SYNERGIES BETWEEN THE PRODUCTS
AND SERVICES BUSINESSES?

u . There are a number of synergies we
B see across the two divisions Firstly.
with the number of pharmaceutical and
biotech compantes we now Interact with
across the two divisions, we have the
abnlity to leverage these relationships
and crass-sell across our offerings so
Clhimical Services leading to Managead
Access Programs to product Partnering
opportuMmues

There are capability synargies even
within a Diviston where offerings in one
part of the busmess are beng positioned
through another part of the platform

A good example of this 1s where the
Chimical packag ng bhusiness supports
work far Managed Access Programs

There are cusfomer synerg.es since
often the physiciarn or pharmacist
coming to us for a managed access
product s also an investigator in

a chirical trial henefitting from our
Chrical Serveas and at the hospital
that reeds a number of products
not avallable in their country.

And there are also Cost synergies

for cur clients where they are able

to store medication in a s'ngle locatien
that carn then be utiised 1o supply out
to unlicensed markets cemmearcial
markats or chinical tria's reducing

the needs for multiple partners

The operational elernents underpinning
the olatform such as Logistics Customer
Services Quahlty Assurance, Regu'atory
Finarce, Legal amongst others are
deployed across tne two divisions

rather than having two separate
operatng platforms by division Th s
prov des cost syneraies as welt as
maxing it a more diverse and therefora
attractive career for those involvea,

A key rmeasdra of success here 15 how
many pharmacautcal and biotech
compan es wea work wih across multiple
parts of the busiress ovar a tweive
month period. We have sesr prograss
this yvear with that rumber increasing

by six to forty-three in total ana we

will Pave continued focus in this ares

.o HOW WOULD YOU VIEW THIS
= YEAR'S PROGRESS AGAINST
YOUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES?

. a . This year we have made good

"2 Tprogress against our strategic
objectives Despite the challenges of
workmg remotely for maost of our
people, we continue to nvest a huge
amaunt 1N them, for example we have
nad an addtional 110 people that have
completed our Management Academy, a
module that not only impacts managers
out the teams that they lead

We also assess progress through
Peakon, an anonymous employee
feedback platform we have embedded
m Chrilgen We continued to scars well
on employee engagement through

the vear with an engagement score of
75 whichis above industry average

Operat-onally we have achieved a
nuge amount, with the simphfication
of the business model, the successfu!
implementation of our Brex:t solution
and the contirued development

of capabilities such as cold chamn
expans.cn COf course bringing

ma Chief Ooerating Cfficer has
baer and will ba «ey to ensur ng
cperational excellence in tne future

We continde te yrow the number
of relationsnips we have with
mharmaceutical companies across
the Group and we continue to

see growth in business wins :i»
born Services and Products.

Digntal 1s a key strategic olyectve and

dr ver of future growth There have

heen further roll cuts of our digital
platform - to expand and extend cur
relationships with Chents and Customers
- as well as the implementation

of a new global CRM platform 1o

‘urther drve uomnng The Dots’

Alongside this we have been able to roll
out a new ESG framework and within
that framework imitiatves ke tne Early
Access Feilowship which 1s kay to both
thought leadership and patient focus

Looking forward we will continue to
pursue odr goal to delver so'utions

to long-term unmet and underserved
neeas for pharma and bictec
companies ard HCPs arourd facilitating
access to medicires To that end, we
wi'l seek to accelerate our focus on
those areas of the Group where we nave
growing and sustamable competitiva
advantage and as we do so. continde to
drive revenues and cost synergias




ONE OF THE GREATEST
OPPORTUNITIES IS THAT MORE
THAN 570 PHARMA CLIENTS
AND THOUSANDS OF
HEALTHCARE PROFESSIONALS
USE OUR PLATFORM.

.0 WHERE ARE THE GROUP’S
~ GREATEST OPPORTUNITIES?

'A' Access to medicines s a ‘ong-term

©unmet need for both pharmaceutical
and b otech companies and healthcare
profess onals A sign ficant propartion
of the warld's popdlation st don't have
access to the medicines thay need

The majority of research ard
development be ng done s by smaler
compani2s who need to partner around
the world as they don't have the
capabilities ta manadge therr medic nas
globa ly wWhilst we have focused on
grawlng the amaount of pharmaceutical
clients taat utihse multip'e parts of the
Climgen platform there s Clearly an
opportunity to increasae thas number. n
fact. rcreasing it by just 5% or 10% could
have sigrificant impact on the business

Pressures on g'obal supply chains

and the prasence of counterfet

and substandard medicings means
pharmaceutical companies and
healthcare orofessionals need a partner
they canrely on and that can deliver a
auality assured service global solution,

With a platform that now spans over 570
pharmaceutical and biotech clhents and
thousands of healthcare professionals
that have utihsed our platform over

the past twelve months, we have the
atnlty to embed ocurselves between
these two stakeholders and maximise
the valde of these relationships.

@ WHAT DO YOU THINK ESG LOOKS LIKE
FOR THE INDUSTRY AND HOW ARE YOU
ADDRESSING THIS AT CLINIGEN?

‘ The work we do at Chimigen is an

2 important part of our pharnraceutical
chents ESG strateg.es For example,
help.ng tc facthitate better access to
medizines on a global basis is directly
algrned with some of the UN sustainable
developrment goals - someth ng we
ourselves have signed up to

Whirst ESG s someth.ng we have haa

to get better at communicating about
to our stakeholders, a ot of the key
arinciples have always been core to

tne business and not necessarly new
Driving a diverse, responsikie, thriving
culture has been alignad to our values
for scme years it just has not necessary
peen sormething we have communicated
as well as we could

Qur new ESG model helps us better
cuthine cur aoproach to these principles
and ensure we have cantinued and
consistent focus on the night areas For
example. a key area of focus for us over
the last twenty-four months has been
amployee engagement and we have
worked hard to improve on this through
management training and the employee
engagerment platform Another area we
are focused on 1S our impact on the
environment and we are already taking
steps to put together a more globa:
picture so that we can put In place a
sensible action plan Certainly ESG 1s
nere to stay and given the global naturs
ard size of the pharmaceutical iIndustry
we car rmake a hugely positve
difference If we get it right
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OUR VISION IS ALL ABOUT
THE PLATFORM WE HAVE
CREATED AND CONTINUE
T0 DEVELOP.

@ WHAT ARE THE MAOR MILESTONES T0 LODK
OUT FOR IN 20227 WHAT DOES SUCCESS
LOOK LIKE?

: A'  FY202T saw a recora number

of signings across the Services
oIV SI0N, SO we are very focused or
turning this order bhook into completed
projects Domng this and doimng it wellis
key .n =Y2022. Some of tha projects
secured could also be very large In thair
own rght so we will be fooking at how
they progress i the first half of the year

Alongside this, the continued global
rollout of Erwinase will, of course also
ke veryimportant for the Products

d wvision and wo will of course e
providing updates through the year

Clearly we are focused on business
performance and continuing to
reduce our dedt levels - we know
this will be critical to the market and
we are confident we will do so

Q : WHAT IS YOUR FIVE-YEAR
YISION FOR CLENIGEN?

. A , Ciimgen s the 'go to’ partner for
managing niche hospital medicines
globally

Clhimigenis the ‘go to' digital
marketplace for companies neading
truly global access for ther medicines
and for Healthcare Professionals

to quickly, easiby and safely ge*

the medicines they need

Complemeanting the global digital
platform, we will have distribution
hubs in each major pharmaceutical
region in the world

The platform will cantinue ta support
hundreds of thousands of patients
arcund the giche gam access to
critical medicines every day



28 LINIGEN BROUP PLC

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

QUR TRACK RECORD AND FUTURE GROWTH GUIDANCE

OUR HISTORICAL
PERFORMANCE

2010

Chniger Group formed by
Peter George Acguires its
first product. Foscavir

20m

Recognised as the fastest-
arowing private company in
the UK by the Surday T mes
Virgin Fast Track 100

2012

L:sts on the AIM of the
London Stock Exchange - the
first UK bealthcare company
to hstin London i five years

2013

Wins Best Newcomer at the
London Stock Exchange
AlIM Awards Acgdires its
second product, Cardioxane

2014

Extends nheadguarters in
Burton-on-Trent, UK Acquires
Its third product. Savene and
fourth product, Ethycl

2015

Acqguires 'dis to become the
global leager in providing
ethical compliant access

to unlicensed medicines.
Acquires Link Healthcars
CLink'y to expand its abiity to
provide access to medicines
for pat entsIin the AAA reglon

PHASE TWD 2015,/18
N --

2016

Acaures s fifth product,
Jotect and Foscavir bag
line extenson

21

Acoures IMMC, stirengthen.ng
the Group's presence n
Japan, the world's secand
largest pharmaceut.cal
market Acauires Quantum.
strengthening Clinigean's
posimion as global leader in
ethical access to madicines

e




2018

Acguires its sixth product. Proleukin
(glubal ngbits outside the Us) and its
seventh product, Imukin (globa' nghts
outside the US, Canada ana Japan).
Acquires CSM. a specialist provider of
packaging, labelling. warehousing ard
distribution Acouires Qong, a Swiss-
based specalty pnarmaceutical business
providing EU MSL capabi'ity

2018

Acquires the US rights to Praleukin,
providing breadth and diversity 1o the
portfolio and creating an ideal platform
to expand exisiing foctprint in higher
value US market

PHASE THREE 2018 ONWARDS

Dok oposr o o Heare

2020

Signs exclusive g.obat higensing and
distributicn agreement to commercialise
Erwinase, strengthening Cinigen’s existing
product portfolio anog customer base

20

Launches Hunterase In Japan and begins
roll-out of Erwinase in icenced and
unhcenced rmarkets, COVID-19
headawnds impact demand for Proleukin
and On-Demand Divests UK Speacials
and Aseptic Compounding business
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As anrounced 1n the half year results
from 1 January 2021 the (Garoup
structure was simpified. moving from
three divisions to two Services and
Products This change better reflects
the algnment of the Group's activities
toits erd custormers. pharmaceutical
cients and healthcare professionals

CAGR SROWTH (N ADJUSTED NET REVENUE

36

CAGRGROWTH IN ADJUSTED EBITDA

41




3“ CLINIGEN GROUP PLC
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

STRATEGY

STRATEGIC
DBIECTIVES

WE'RE FOCUSED ON SIX
STRATEGIC PILLARS

The Groups six strategic piliars
are fundamental to everything
we do at Chiriger By Unking our
day-to-day acrivities as weil as
our long term prionties 1o these
six pilars we able ta ensure thare
15 a clear and consistent pathway
to growth for the business

2021 PROGRESS

The oiliars provide clarity for

all our stakeholders on the kay
mitanves across the pus.ness
why we are doimng them and how
success will be measurad They are
also inked to our Envieonmental
Social and Governance approach
where key priorities and goals
can sit within both the strategic
pilars and the E5G framework
fas outlined on oage 327

LINK T ESG MODEL PERFORMANCE

METRICS
@ ENVIRDNMENTAL IMPACT

PRODUCTS & SERVICES
82 DURPEOPLE
RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

2022 0BJECTIVES

CULTIVATE A THRIVING
HIGH PERFORMANCE
u CULTURE

- »80% of employees have
personal development
plans

- O indivdua's completed
Management Academy

- »95% of ro'ss advertised
Internally

- =60 internal promaotors
durmng Fy 2021

- 10% incraass N averages
franing spend per
employee

- Launcheaed new e-learning
program or career
development for employses
and managers

- Rolt-out of job grading
framework acrass Group

- Conducted talert and
SLUCCESSION RIaNNING reviow
across the Group

- New COOmm place to drive
opearatioral change

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

13

- Roll out of leadership
acaderny for business
leaders
Next cohort for
Management Academy

- Development of hybrd
work ng practices

- Continued focus on talent
and success on planning

- Embedamg of job grading
ACross group

- Launchof CAL ™M - welnass
apo far all employees

- Introduction of flexible
bensafiis platform

ORIVE
OPERATIONAL
m EXCELLENCE

- Successful implementation
of Brexit solution

- Conducted global review of
supply cham to enakle
optirmisation of current
partners and nubs

- Simphfication of
orgamsation from three
divis ons to two divisons ta
dr.ve synergies

- Expansiors of US. EU hubs’
deep ultra-coid storage

- Disposal of UK Specials
anrd Asepbic busness to
ansure oparational focus

- Intrcduced pracess
governance structure

- Introduced internal Audit
and Risk funct on

- Launch of serialisation
i tha US

COUNTRIES SHIPPED TD INLAST 3 YEARS

128,

- Uninse Al technoicgy to
momtar supply cnam cost
and service leveis in real
timie

- Cortnue to develep
synerg es netweaen
Dwvisions and Businasses
througn development and
integration to drive value
for clients and customers



PARTNERWITH = -
CLIENTS TO DELIVER.

LEAD THE MARKET
IN CUSTOMER

In SYNERGISTIC VALUE - . Nm EXPERIENCE

- Increase in clients ut.hsing
rmore than one part of the
platform

- 10 successful cross-
dwvisicnal referrals to drive
value for existirg clients

- Increased total number
of clignts that have ut lised
Chnigen olatform cver last
12 months

- Initiation of Erwinase
roll-out ahead of schedule
l.aunch of Hunterase
n Japan

Held first Lowve Your
Pharmacist Awards' to the
recogn se wark done by
HCZPs

Customer worksheps to
inform drect on of
e-commerce platform
Prvoted focus to provide
muitiple COWVID-19 solutions
for pharma chents ana
HIPs

ENHANCE THE
PORTFOLIO OF

m ASSETS, SERVICES
AND TERRITORIES

Highest numtber of
Managed Access Programs
added to portfolio thar
ever before

Record number and value
of busingss wins N Cinica’
packagng and log.stics
Strang growth in number of
Partnered products being
rmanaged

Roil-out of Fatient
Fellowship to change
Sebaviours in early access
Opening of Malaysia office
to strengthen presence in
Asia
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REALISE COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE THROUGH
= TECHNOLDGY

Implementation of new
CRM platferm to support
BO activities

Beata release of Chrigean
Direct delivered

First full Chmigen Direct
service release
Continued ennancements
of ClimgenQOne ERP
plattorm

NUMBER OF CLIENTS UTILISING MORE THAN % REPEAT CUSTOMERS NUMBER OF PRODUCTS UNDER AGREEMENT ~ NUMBER OF HCP USERS IN CLINIPORT

ONE PART OF LIFECYCLE PLATFORM (MAP AND PARTNERED)
14

- Pipehne of 15 additional
campan.es that are at
proposal stage for utihsing
more than one part of the
Climigen platform

- rFurther focus an securing
Partnering deals with
existing Services chents

- Ornving crass divisional
referrals and Group client
approaches

Customer loyalty and
satisfaction benchmarking
Process exceilence in CTIF
Utihise MSL netwark to
educate specialist
prescribers

Continued enhancemenrt of
client services team across
Services division to deliver
on exising and rew
business

Expansioninte China and
Kgorea through business
partnarship or 'go alene’
strategies

Furthar rall-out of
Developed products and
SKUs

Roll-out of Erwinase into
addchtional hcenced markets
ncluding the USA
Further portfolio growth
across Managed Access
and Partnersd

- Roll-out of Chnigen Direct

Imto kay markels
cnhanced data platform
and insight tools to proviae
deeper customer insights
Transit.on Managed Access
clients and HCPs onto
Clintgen D rect

Further CRM roll-out to
global business
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

- WE'RE CREATING
- AMODEL FOR
- THE FUTURE

Chinigern s dedicated 1o salving an
increasingly global healthcare prablem -
ansunng patients around the world have
accass to the critical med.cines they
read Our miss on to deliver the Rght
Meadicine, to the Right Patient at the
Right Time s at the heart of everything
we do Ths mession gives Chinigen a
clear purpose - to 'himately improve
healtn outcomes and improve the lives
of patients accessing our Mmadicineas
whilst also delivenng greater value and
sustamabihty to our stakeholders

Cur business operates to the higheast
standaras of governance and
comprance We recognise the value of
having a clear purpose supported oy a
strong culture of ethics, quality and
catient safety We are responsible,
transparent and focused on making a
positive IMpact across our value chain
the erviranment and society.

As a global leader in ethical access to
medicines there 1s an iNcreasng
expeciation amongst our stakehoiders
that we contribute measure ana
communicate the impact aur strategy
has on a range of sustamabil ty ssues

This year Chinigen conducted a ful
review of how our strategy ahgns to
stakehaolder values to ensure that our
business model. apjectives and growth
plans are ciearly aligned to the
sustainability agenda

OUR JOURNEY S0 FAR

The Environmental Sociai and Govarrance
{ESGY agenda over the past 12 montas nas
significantly gathered pace We nave used
this t.rme to gather understand and
forrnulate cur sustainability framewsrk,
approach and cammitmenrts

This [ourney started oy consuliing
with various internal and externa’
stakehoiders to understand what
the key eiemeants a successful ESG
model would need to ncorporate

The Group then signed up to the Lnited
Mations Globa' Compact CUNGC )

and UN Sustainab'e Developrmant
Goals {'SDGs) and formalised our
commitment to sustamability Mowving
forward the Clinigen will more formally
incorporate the Ten Principlas of tne
UNGTZ Inte aur strategies, poiicies

and procedures in the future

The Group then conducted its first
materiahty assessmeant - something
that will now ke carried out every
year The process helped dentify the
economic, social and eaviranmental
Issues that matter most to our
business and our stakeholders.

Conducting a tharough assessment in
this way not only helps i identify.ng
1ssues to be covered in our reporting
and disclosures but also bealps us

to decide winere to pricritise cur
resources Tne assessment also

feads direct v into our enterprisa

risk management framewor< ard
estatlisnad r sk governance framework

The assessment identifed 30 issues
of material importance The issues
ident fled were placed on a matrix
their position relative to the degres
of stakeholder importance and
potential pusinegss Impact Thase
results represent the material 1ssues
facing ocur business wath Js focusing
most on those categorised ard hav ng
significant Impact on our busingss
and alsc sign ficant :mpartance to
our stakeholders The autcames were
Ls2a to helo drive sustainabihty plans
and targets and wtimately inform

tha ESG maodel we have kuilt

WHAT WE'VE
DONE SO FAR

Consulted with
20+ investors to
gauge views on
approaches to ESG
and importance

Consulted with
the business and
external firms

Signed up to

UN Sustainable
Development Goals
and Valuable 500

Conducted
materiality
assessment
to highlight
areas of focus

Compiled key
data points
to be tracked

Created model
to guide how

we approach ESG
within Clinigen

Created website
content for
sustainability
and approach
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MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

SIGHIFICANT

IMPORTANCE T0 OUR STAKEHOLDERS
NODEMATE

DI |

NOTO

ONOJOJONOJO.

HINGR MODERATE SIGNIFICANT
INPACT ON DUR BUSINESS
ASSESSING MATERIALITY OUR SUSTAINABILITY PILLARS
The ongoing review of our approach " ENVIRONMENT O DUR PEOPLE
to ESGssues 15 1n ine with the 01. Fuel Fleet Management 15 Employse Recrutment,

prnaiple of matenality as described
in the Gicbal Reporting Initiative
('GRI") Standards, and with reference
to the maternalty considerations set
out In the Sustammability Accounting
Standards Board ( SASB ) Standards

We assess the strategic relevance of
ESG factors via two lenses therr relative
importance to external stakeholders,
and ther potential impact on our
business success, This kelps us to
priontise and govern our activity.
ensuring that we are closely ahgned
with our stakeholders’ expectations.

02 Waste Management

03. Carbon Emussions

04 Energy Efficiency/ Usage

0% Chrmate Action Faillure

06. Biodiversity Loss

O7. Human Envirormental Damage
08 Majaor Geodraphical Dhsasters
Q9. Natural Resource Crisis

10, Extreme Weather Events

O PRODUCTS & SERVICES

6.

Develapment & Retention
Healthy, Safe & Happy Workforce

O RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

1 Access to Medicines (Healthcare)
12, Affordability & Pricing

13. Product Lifecycle Management
14 Infectious Diseases

Drug Safety

Counterfeit Drugs

Froduct Safety

Supply Chain Management
Data Privacy/Cyber Security
Patient Privacy & Electronic
Health Records

Econormic Contribution
Ethical Marketing

Taxation & Complance
Human Rights

Gender Equality

Business Ethics - Healthcare
Fraud and Abuse

- Contributing to ocur Communities
 Safety of Chimical Trial Participants
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPGRATE GOYERNANCE continuen

OUR MODEL & COMMITMENTS

Clinigen’s sustainability model contains four key pllars
tnat will be used to guide, embed and communicate

our approach te the ESG framework Through the model
the Graup 1s making 17 key commitments that align to
seven of the UN Sustainable Development Goals (UN
SDGsy where we can make most contribution Through
each pillar there are data points that will be captured
and reported on through the sustamabiity framework

...........
. -
.

‘oo, ENVIRONMENTRL ..+

. .
LI -
L

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Minimise any negative impact
we have on the environment.

- Minimising our impact on the environment
- Compliance with environmental laws

and regulations
- Responsible consumption and production
- Combating climate change

SDGs

PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Enabling better health by maximising
global access to important medicines.

- Broader access to approved medicines
- Quicker access to new medicines

- More access in developing countries

- Patient-focused solutions

SDGs




STRATEGICREPORT 33

4 KEY 17 KEY 7 UN SUSTAINABLE
PILLARS COMMITMENTS DEVELOPHENT GOALS

......
---------

OUR PEOPLE

Making sure our people are happy and

thriving will help us achieve our ambitions.

- Attract, retain and develop our people

- Promoting greater diversity, inclusions
and quality

- Supporting our employees to be healthy

- Engaging with our workforce

RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

Conduct business in a responsible way
and to the highest ethical standards.

- Safe production and supply
of products and services

- Ethical supply chain

- Zero tolerance towards bribery,
corruption and fraud

- Robust data governance and compliance

- Upholding external standards to protect
human rights

SDGs

SDEs
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ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Minimise any ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING
. . Chrnigen have continued to capture
negatlve Impact UK emissions as reguired by the SECR
regu'atons that came into play on 1 Apri!
we have on the 2019 The coilection and creaton of the
. SECR report was facilitated exterrally
enVH’Oﬂment by TEAM (Energy Auditing Agency

Limited). The SECR report covers
Scope | cirect ermissians, which incluges
company-awnead vehicles, Scope 2
ndirect emissions from eiectricty
purchased and Scope 3 emissions from
private vehicles for business use The
SECR report matches tne financial

vear for the yvear ended 30 June 2021
Using the latest f-gures provided by the
Depariment for Business. Energy and
Industrnial Strartegy and the Department
for Environrent. Food end Rural Affairs,
TEAM converted the data into tonnes
af carbon dioxide equivatent { tannes

of CO,ey and categansed into Scope

1 Scope 2 and Scope 3 ermissions The
results are shown in the table below

There has been a total of 254 6 tonnes of
CG e emitted during FY 2020 which
compares to 681 tonnes for the pricr
financia year Fowever, this will largely bea
drwven oy the fact that a large propertior
of the workforce has been Pome working

SCOPE1 SCOPE 2 SCOPE3
% 13% 0%
0E SEIPE SCOPE
YEAN ENDED 30 1IN 1 H 3 L
Tonnes of CO,e S18] 18607 056 254.6

Parcentage 26.69 73.09 0.22 100%

C0,2 TONNES

2046 e

Thentansity measure vanable that the
Grodp has used s total carbon dioxide
eguivalent emissions (tonnes) per Em
of turnover, This 1s considered to be the
best metric to alleviate any skew In the
data as a result of the unprecedented
mpact of COVID-19 Furthermore,

if the consumption Increases due to

an increase N ousiness operation. e
generates more emissions and turnover
during subsequent years, this metnic
allows for a good comparnson across the
years to determine whether the eanergy
performance and carbon savings of the
Group have improved The result for theo
year enchng 30 June 202115 an intensity
ratio of C 438 toennes of CO,e per £m

of turnover (FY2020' 149 tonnes)

During FY2022 Clirigen have set
cursalves the goal of capturing

and reporting glubal ermissions and
wastage data which wil. be reported
N FY2022 resuits This data will be
used to set global environmental
abjectives and imtiatives In FY2022
we will alse be reporting utilising the
TCFD disg'osure Clinigen have also
completed g CDP disclosura as we'l as
registered on EcoVardis both of which
crwver greater transparency to all our
stakeholders on the impact we have
on the envirgnment and the measures
put in place to reduce that impact

During the year Clinigen put Iin place

a number of irtbatives o reduce our
impact on the environment such as
converting to reusable plastic totes
across some of our US nubs and in
April 2221 we annaunced the launch of
our Foscavr Infusion Bags in the USA
The launch of an IV bag oresentation,
wh-ch replaced glass vials, wiil result

M aghter we ght frransportatior and
ultimately a reduced carbon footprint
durimg transportation We also continue
te promote recychng and waste

d sposal througheout the Group through
educaton ana audit through our
Envircnmental Management System




PRODUCTS & SERVICES

Enabling better
health by maximising
access to important
medicines.

COUNTRIES SUPPLIED

19

LATIN AMERICA

\

Clnigen ox sts to provide gu cker and
broader access to crtical medicines
around the world Inthe last three
vears Clrigen have provided access

to mecdicinas into 128 countries around
the globe. 66 of which were develooing
countries and a further 12 transitioning
countries where there are challenges in
gaming accass to or-tical medicines

Chmgen currently provide access to
maore thar 1400 medicines through
aur Managed Access Partnered and
On-Demana channels We also supzort
access of medicines .nto nundreds of
prarms fea and physician led comical

tr als through the cuncal services
functon meaning the portfono of
medicines we provide enables access far
patients in cl nical studies, unhcensed
rnarkets and licensed markets

Climigen a so work with classly with
our pharma partners to provide
solutions that enable them to fulfil
therr ESG gaals of provid ng broader
acceass to therr medicines In the last
12 maonths we have partnered with 577
pharma and biotech companies to
facilitate better access to madones

DEVELOPING COUNTRIES”

128 66

26

ASIA

2

AFRICA

STRATEGICREPORT 3]

MEDICINES

1,400+

Climigen currently have more than
25 00C healthcare orofessionals
registered as users on our online
platform Cliniport. of which

more than 6.000 where added

in the oast 12 months

PATIENT FOCUSED

1t 15 wital tnat the solutions we provide
cut the patients' needs first and so0
tnroughout the year we have
remalred focusea on patient-

centric solutions anag offerings.

We continue to provide Direct-to-
Patient services through cur chrucal
services andir 2071 we also joned

the Decentralised Trals and Research
Allance CDTRA )Y The DTRA consists of
an athlance of life sciences and healthcare
companies that seexs to accelerate

the broad adoption of patient-focused
decentralised clinicai trials and research

It 15 estimated that chinical tnals may
be set back by several years in the
context cf COVID-19, due to prospective
catients inabihty or reluctance to
schedule visits at physical research
locations Decentralized approaches
to conducting ressarch facihtate
participation by a more diverse patient
population and could ease COVID-
19-imposed difficulties for both
patients and climcal investigators

'n FY2021 the Group also roied out

the Patient Advocate Fellowship in
early access, an mitiative aimed at
equipp.ng patient groups and their
leadership with the skills and experignce
they nead to engage meaningfully
within early access (pages 16-17)

RN LA B
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OUR PEOPLE

Making sure our
people are happy
and thriving will
help us achieve
our ambitions.

PEOPLE DEVELOPMENT

Durnng =Y2027 the Group has conhinued
to focus an the development of its
taten? and has seen a 10% ncrease

on average traimnng spend per
emiployee As part of that traiming

a further 110 peopie complete the
Chnigen Managermeant Acadermy

The Academy s a s x month-long
develcpment program and s aimed at
provider leadership and managament
skills to current ang future team leaders
N FYZ0Z21 we opened the Academy up
to more of the global locat ons and had
gracduates frorm more than six countries

MANAGEMENT ACADEMY GRADUATES

110

INTERNAL PROMOTIONS

60+

MENTAL HEALTH AND WELL BEING

Dunmg FY 2021 Chnigen ran menta’
healtn awareness training for managears
50 they are able to spot mental healtn
1s5ues within ther team and guide

thern to apprognate resources This

has been part cularly important given
COVID 19 and tneisolaticn some people
feel from remote warking conditions

In FY2022 we interd to launch
CALM across the Grouo whichiis a
rrentat health and weliness agp

DIVERSITY

Age celour race, gender. cisab ity
ethmic onigin, ~ationg: ¢r g.n. mar-tal
status. sexdal orientation rehgious or
palitical views must not be seen as
barriers to emp oyment and we ara
proud of tne Group's diverse
employment base

The Sroup 1s COmMMItTes to providing
equal apportuntties for indnviidua’s i sl
aspects of employment and considers
the s«<il s and aptitudes of disaoled
DErsons N recruitment carear
development, tra.ming anda promichion
The Groun supports employees w in

d sabilities, ersuring the nacessary
reasonap.e adjustmeants are - place to
support them

We have corducted an analys:s around
age grouns empioyed across the Group
and can report that our workfarce

s balanced and in re with general
age/work ng population distnibution
Clhinigen currentiy nave 17% aged 20-
20 32% aged 30-32 25% aged 40-49,
18% aged SC-59 and 8% gyged 60+



BOARD GENDER DIVERSITY

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM GENDER DIVERSITY

GiROUP EMPLOYEES

One route through which we helg to
ensure continued diversity 1s through
the Manaoement Acadermy whare
one-module s largely dedicated to
unconsclous Bias to help managers learn
how o make fair and equitable decisions
when recru ting, hinng. promoting and
giving opportunities to team membars

In FY2021 Clhimrgen joined Yaluakle
500, a global campaign to uniock
the valua of 1 3 bilhon people ving
witn disatilities around the world
As part of that intiative we wiil

- Revew our Diversity and Inclusion
pohicies to ensure wa commit 1o
driving an ncusive and accessible
workplace for all

- Ensure gur recrutment and
seeCction processes are INciusive
and accessible for all

- Provide freguent reportirg tc the
Executive and Management Team
on mtiatives supporting a more
inclusive workplace
Delver targeted tramng for our
pecple managers to buid a culture of
inclusivity fraorm the top down

GENDER RATIO AND PAY

Out of the 1.069 empioyees, S8%

are female and 42% male. Tne

Group continuas to actively seek 1o
recruit and advance wamen into its

top rranagement through manager
traimirg apphcation monitoring and
robust, transparent selection processes
The Group aiso publishes a gender pay
gap report each yvear Based an the data
we know that gender 1s not a factorin
setting the rate of pay at Chinigen (in
the UK) The report showed that our
JK median gender pay gap 1s 9 5% -
below the national average of 15 3%
We have also conducted preliminary
calculations into a global metric and
can confirm it doesn't show any signs
of gender being a factor in setting

pay at Chinigen at a Group fevel

From April 2019 - April 2020 62%
of internal promotions were for
female employees and in FY2021
59% of Management Academy
participants were female
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CLINIGEN WAY

The Group has a culture and set of
values which are understood in each of
the locations Ir which it oparates. At
Clirgen, this 1s called the "Chinigen Way',
and Is captured in six Clear and powerful
principles that underpin everything the
Group aces. They are’ Make a difference.
Show mutual respect Nurture success.
DUt best interests first Maintan integrty,
and Measure progress They reflect the
Grouo's nch and var:ed hustonc
husinesses and the common purpose
employees all share today

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

15 i portant the Group histens

toits emplayees and understands
therr views on Clirigen as an employer
The Group operates a culture of
open communication through a
range of two-way mediums including.
regular employeoe representative staff
forums' a glokal intranet platform,
newsletters: and reauiar Group and
divisional performance updates from
the semor management team The
strategic objectives of the Group are
communicated to employees through
regular updates and. this year that
included at virtual all-staff conferences,

In the last 12 months we have continuad
to use Peakon feedback to drive "You
Spoxe We Listened’ acticn planning
with a particular facus on career

paths, support and development The
externa platform ensures anonymity
and empowers managemeant to take
proemet and informed action

Clinigen cont:rues to measure employee
engagement and in FY2021 achieved
ascore of 75, which is the same as
FY2020 and above industry standard

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

13
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

Conduct business
in a responsible way
and to the highest
ethical standards.

REGULATORY INSPECTIONS OF CLINIGEN

AVERAGE CRITICAL FINDINGS
PER AUDIT OF CLINIGEN

0.02

PRODUCT RECALLS OF OWNED PRODUCTS

PRODUCT QUALITY AND PATIENT SAFETY

Ensunng the quahty of the medicines
we deliver 1s of the utrmaost . mportance
Tne supply of our products and servces
s becarning ever more complex. and
with the sigmificant regulatory changas
taking place across the mdustry, tne
expectations of g specialist service
prowder n terms of technical and
project management capatulitiss

are incraasingy demanding

We use our Guality Policy and
Quality Managerment System
(QMS) to meet the requirerments
of aur cherts andg customers n
canfaormance with the Company's
Quality Specificat:ons and current
legal and regulatory reauirements

Sur gaahty systern s underpinned
By our holding manufacturer/
wholesaler/distributor hcenceas around
the world, including in the ELU UK,
JS and Asia-Pacific regions Al of
our sites are auaited regularly by a
combination of regulators and our
pharmaceutical company chents -
we see this as g core part of doing
busingss and are very prodd of our
ability to complete them successfu'ly
In FY2021 there were 1'4 audits of
Chnigen with an average of 0 02
crivcal find ngs per audit There
were alsg zero product recalls of
Chrogern Owned oroducts

SUPPLY CHAIN, QUALITY ASSURANCE, ETHICS

In 2021, we took steps to further
strengthen our approach tnrough tne
introauction of a new Suoplher Code
of Conduct This new code will sit
alongside the existing Quahty Supp er
Terms & Cond tons (Q7C) document
wh cnoset out 1n detal our T&Cs in hine
with our Q™S ana complance witn
<oy régulators sucn as the MHRA

Chinigen works in a highly regulatec
industry, and the requirements

for guaufying supphers are well
defired within legislat.on

For exampls, EU Good Distnbution
Practice reguires Chinigen to shtain the r
supphes of rmedicina' products anly
from persans who are themselves in
passession of a wholesale d-striouticn
authorsation, or wha arg in possesson
of a manufacturing authornsation which
covers tne proddct o guestion and

are required to verify that the supplier
compl es with the prinoiples and
guidelines of good distrbution practices

ln Fy202. Clmigen gerformea 4% audits/
inspections of it suppliers and partners

The Group fully supparts the aims o tha
Modern Slavery Act 2015 to eraciicate
human slavery and trafficking We
support the UN Guiding Principles on
Business ana Human Rights ard are
committed to upnolding and resoecting
humanr rights both within our business
and in that of our third parties

In FY2021 Climgen roled out a new
Human R.ghts Pohcy which was
approved by the Board i Apry

2021 We alsgrequire all of aur
suophers to confirm caomplance

with our Suppl er Coae of Conduct
which equally sets out the Group's
expeactations regarding Human Rights

We also developed a new 'Speak up’
Polcy which provides a formal route
For emplovees to confidentially speax
up about any concern they have at
work that they fee s imoartant



COMPLIANCE

In FY2021 a new Internal Audit and Risk
function was established, with the
appomtment of 3 new Group Head of
Internal Audit and Risk who s supported
by an external firrm to provide add-tionat
capacity and experfisa

The Internal Audit rermit imcluces
moritaring and assessing the robusiness
of our Ethics and Complance activitics,
including the Anti-Bribery and
Corruption (ABAC) Policy and program
witn periocic renorting to the Audit and
Risk Caomm ttae,

Durng FY2022 further work will be
completed to strengther our appreach
to fraud prevention and detection This
includes conducting a Fraud Risk
Assessment and monitering our Ethics
and Compliance orograms through the
internal control framewerk and activities
of Internai Audit

OWNERSHIP

WHAT NEXT

The last 12 months have been

a critical milestane in our ESG
journey as we develoged and ralled
oLt & clear ESG framework

During FY2022 we will be tracking 29
different data points that we bensve
are key indicators for progress agaimst
our ESG principles and abjectives Thig
will give us a true bernchrark as to
where we st across these measures,
enabling clear goals and targets to

be set in FY2023 and bayond

We have set out a clear cwnerskip
structure (see balow) to ensure ESG
15 fully embedded throuahout the
Group and progress communicated
regularty to all stakeholders

We are prodd of what we have
achieved in the last 12 months

and ook forward to aaeveloping
further in aur approach to ESG

BOARD
(WNER

- Approves ESG strategy
- Overall responsibility for moniterng sustaimability
performance and aoproach

BXEC
SPONSOR

Supnorts Board in communicating tone
regard-ng sustainability approach
Monitors and reports progress to
Beard through KPIs

STEERING
COMMITTEE

0'0'C

- Responsible for operaticnalising
sustammabiity framework

- Deovelops policies. targets and mtatbves
- Captures progress against KPIs

Individual accountaoihty for specific
sustainabinty topics
Engaged to drive Group-wide cbjectives

OUR

PEOPLE Identify. manage and mitigate
sustainabiity risks

Y

ASSURANCE AND
COMPLIANCE OVER
ESG FRAMEWORK

Individual accountabiity for specific
sustamakility topics

Engaged to drve Group-wide clbjectives
Ident-fy, manage and mitigate sustamnakility risks

STRATEGIC REPORT |

FY2021; FRAMEWORK
Create framework for £SG
and embed into business

FY2022. MEASURE & REPORT
Measure key data points
and commuricate ESG
principles and progress
to key stakeholders

FY2023: MPROVE

Set realistic targets
ta drive up ESG rating
Builg on data coimnts
wnere readed

ESG RATING BY MSCI IN 2021

SUSTAINALYTICS ESG RATING

MEDIUM
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Our performance
is measured against
a number of KPlIs.

FINANCIAL

ADHUSTED NET REVENUE (EM)

4586 ~m

Why we measure it: Adjusted rel reverue 15 viewed by the
Board as the preferrad rragsure of top- ne nerformance |t
allows management to assess the performance of the businass
after remowving the mpact of pass tnrouan revenue which
varies dependent on the mix of charged-for ano free of
charge programs Net revenue provides additiona' inforrmation
to enable management and users of the accounts to assess
growth im the business and irproved comparabi'ny of marain
YEeSr On year

Performance: Adjusted net revenue from continuing
operations increased by 7% (13% on an crganic bas s), ariven
by ncreased valume and profit mixin tne Services division

ADJUSTED EBITDA (£M}

1163 viw

Why we measure it: Aajusted ERITODA provides managemant
w th an approximat.or of cash generation from operating
activit.es after removing transactions that are raot reflective of
the urdarlying nerformance of the business

Performance: 2d,usted EBITDA from continaing operatiors
decreassd by 10% (-5% on an organ ¢ bas s) te £116 3m (2020
E129 8my reflecting the impact of COVID-12 ana a charge in
gross profit mix partally offset oy good cost control

ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (PENCE)

599 Vi

Why we measure it: Adjustied EPS growth al ows maragemeant
Lo 855255 the post-tax underlying performance of the business
rcormoination wth the impact of capital structure actions on
_he share base

Performance; Ad;usted =FS from continuing operations was
down 4% as aresult of the decline n adjusted EBITDA and
noregsed armart sation and depraciabion costs



NON-FINANCIAL

COMMUNITY OF REGISTERED USERS ON CLINIPORT

25,121 ~3su

STRATEGIC LINK: 6

Why we measure it: Measures the progress made in bulding a
camrmunity of HCP castomers

Performance: There nas been continued growth in the total
HCP users reaistered on Chimiport This wll be partly driven oy
rew products wthin the portfolic as wel as regional custamer
development

NUMBER OF CLIENTS UTILISING MORE THAN ONE PART OF LIFECYCLE PLATFORM

43

STRATEGIC LINK: 3

Why we measure it: Measures how many chents utilise
multiple parts of the ifecycle platfarm within a 12 month
neriod-drving greater value and strengtnening the
relationshp

Performance: Increase of s partly driven by ten successful
crass-divisional referrals
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NUMBER OF PRODUCTS UNDER AGREEMENT (MAP & PARTNERED)

M6

STRATEGIC LINK: §

Why we measure it: Measures the guantity 0° managed
access and partnerning agreements with pnarma chents,
demonstrating the busingss’'s potential for future growth

Performance: 1 here have been a 19% increase In products
within managed access and partnered This s driven by a nst
gain of thirty new Managed Access Programs and a ret gamn
of 27 partnered products

KEY T0 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

] Cultivate a thriving high
parformance culture

Drive operational excellence
Fartner with clients to deliver
synergistic value

Lead the market ¢

custorner experience
Enhance portfolo of assets,
sarvices and territor.es

Realise competifive advantage
through technology

[—r TN ¥ » BEN - N #L O N ]
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OPERATING REYIEW

. SERVIEES The division comprises of two service ines

Clinical: Provision of innovative
logistics packading, dstnibution and

biorepository solutions alongside glotal

’ sourcing and supply of comparator
medicines ancil'aries and devices for
use in chmical studies (o both industry
and investigator led researchers

Managed Access: Design and

implementation of giobal Managed
' Access Programs ( MAPs') - otherwise
known as Compassonate Use Named
. Patient, Early Access, or Expanded
Access) to enable pre-aporoval access
toinnovalive new medacinas for the

treatment of unmet medcal needs

The high number of business wins
and delivery against kay projects
contributed to a 15% increase in net

, revenue to £218 9m (2020 £1900m}
Due to the profit mix of these wins

favounng l[owser-margin sourcing

' activity alongside slower thar expected
Lptake on Managed Access Programs.
gross profit was flat at £66 &m (2020

i £66 9m) and ERITDA dechined by 6%
to £32 /i {2028 £34 9m} It should
be noted that COVID-19 headw:nds

continued throughout H2 for the
Services division with the impact of
delayed or canceilea studies and lower
uptake on Managed Access Prograrms
due to reduced numbers of patents
attending hospitals being felt

Within Services, Clinigen provides Tns outlook for Services 15 0ositive
a unigue set of niche, high value 35000 Punber Of now nan value
services to pharma and biotech clients A R
prior to launch. This combined offering OPROMUNILSS SCTaSs (e ppelng nt

3 combined value of more than £80m

helps accelerate drug development
plans and enable compliant early
access for patients with unmet needs.

NET REVENUE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

GRINTH
i HE
™ ] REPATED ORGANIC
Clinical 191.3 1622 18%
Managed AcCcess 27.6 278 {1va
Divisional Total 218.9 1800 15% 18%

Divisional EBITDA 32.7 34,9 &) (2%




SHARE OF GROUP ADJUSTED EBITDA*

QO Services © Products
NET REVENUE (£M)
2]8 9 2020;190.0
0
. A%
ADJUSTED EBITDA (£M)

2020:34.9

Vb

321

NUMBER OF CLIENTS

923

COUNTRIES SHIPPED TO (FY2021)

14

ADJUSTED NET REVENUE BY PORTFOLIO

ADJUSTED NET REVENUE BY REGION

CLINICAL

Net revenue In the Chrical business
grew by 18% to £191 3m (2020, £162.2m)
driven by new business wins across both
sourcing and logistics offerings despite
a number of trials being cancelled ar
delaved due to COVID-18 There was

a higher weaighting of comparator
sourcing revenue in these new busiress
wins which s at a lower margin

Business wins across both existing
and naw clients continued with
a19% increase in the number of
non-sourcing work orders signed,
representing an increase of more
than S0% in totat hfetime value versus
FY2020 1ts expected that tms will
contrnbute to future growth and
offer new opportunities for cross-
seling across both the Chmical and
Managed Access businesses

During the year the cin cal sourcing
and non-sourcing (iegacy CSM) parts
cf Clhinica” were brought together
under the same operat-onal teams
and branding This will drive further
Improvemant In service levels and
overal competitiveness, ensure

our chents have a single Chimigen
expenence. and enhance cross-selling
opportunities At the year-end theare
were mare than 300 apportunities
across the chimcal pipelhine (2020 1683,

In FY2027 Chirmigen signed 34 COVID-19
related chimcal projects, bringing the
total te 45 including one for vacone
storage which has alowed the Group
to expand Its deep freeze storage
capacity across European and US
facthties This expansion s expected

to positon tne Group well for Tuture
rmanagement of n.che medicines

such as cell and gene therapy

Tne Clinical team has also formed a
partnership with N-Side, an EU-based
Innovative software consulting company.,
to further optimise chmcal solutions
provided to pharma and biotech
companies The man benefits to pharma
clients include waste reduchion, risk
managerment, and drug allocation
optirmisation In turn, tris will delver
Cetter cost control and potentially
reduce time-to-market. THhis 15 an
offering that will be rolfed out 1In FY2022
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MANAGED ACCESS

Net revenue was flat at £276m (2020
£27.8m) with the impact of COVID-19
being offset by a record number of MARP
wins with a 36% increase varsus FY2020
with 25% coming from new chents

A5 at 30 June 202" there were 161
individual product MAPs (2020: 1313
including products in the COVID-19
space. Collectively, the top ten MAPS
contrhutent 22% af the Managod
Access gross profit (2020 38%)

There was also continued strorg
parformance in the number of Managed
Access Progrars that have Real World
Data (RWD" ) coltection, with 30%

of new programs inciuding RWD

On Clmoort the Group's proprietary
onhne patform for Managed Acceass. tne
number of registered HCP users grew
strong y 10 25,727 (June 2020 18.625)

The ppelne of Managed Access
Programs remains healthy with 44
potential new programs in progress

Althougn COV'D-13 has impacted
hospital demand, particular y for
oncology as this impact abates ana
demand returas to more noarmal levels
tne bus ness wil benefit from the
ncreasing rnumber of MAPs In place
as wel as the strang pipeline caming
through in the meaium to long term

Througrnout the year there continued
to bhe afozus on draving nnovation and
thought leadarship across Managed
Access with the launch of the Early
Access Feliowship. an initiative aimed
at equipping patient groups and

therr leadership with the skills and
experience they need toc engsge
meamngfully withir early access
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OPERATING REVIEW conrinuep

" WERE
ENABLING

CRITICAL
ACCESS

Within Products, Clinigen enables
access to critical medicines at a
country, regional and global level.
The Group’s focus is to build a
portfolio of specialist medicines
to service the needs of healthcare
professionals and patients in both
licensed and unlicensed markets.

NET REVENUE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE

The Products portfalio comprises threa
distinct strategies

Owned: Medicres that have bean
acquirad or developed by Chmgen
Clinigan acquires products with the
geoal to maintain access to those that
raly on them and growing access Info
new markets and disease areas through
atargeted product revitalisation
strategy Products developed in-
house were praviously supplied in an
on-demand farm, the Unlicensed

to Licansed ¢ ULZL ) strategy

Partnered: Partner of choice for

pharma and biotech to provide access

Lo their medicines in both hicensed and
urhcersad markets at a country, regionat
or global level through an exclus ve
distnibution aor hcensing arrangameant

On-Demand: Scurcing and suppgly of
unhicensed and short supply madicines
inresponse to demand for access
from nealthcare crofessionals

There has been promising progress in
key areas of the divis.on with am increase
N the number of products and net
revenue in thae Partnered partfohio Thea
impact of the pandemic nas however
been more pronounced n the Products
drvision due to the reduced demand for
non-COVID-19 products, particularly
the gilobal reduction in hospital-based
onco'ogy treatments Net revenue

from continuing operations reduced
shghtly to £248 3m (2020 £250 2m)
while ad,usted EBITDA feli by 14% to
EQO0 6m (2G20 £105 Zm) Tne Cwned
and On-Dermand parts of the d vision
were goutely impacted by the pandamic
with net revenue falling by 11% and

18% respectively Partmered products
performed in ing with expactations
with a high numbber of business wing

OWNED PRODUCTS

Chnigen has a portfolio of 20 Owned
products (7 acauired and 13 devealoped)
Net ravenue decreased by 1'% to
£106 . 4m (2020 £120 1m) refiecting

the continued impact of COVID-12

ar hospital admissions the tmimd of
shipments to key customers and the loss
of Ethyoi sales due to mandfacturing
disrupt:ion offset by sohd growth

from the developed oroducts

CROWTN

wn un
i} L) REPIRTED OREANIC

Cwned
Partnered

On-Dermand

106.4 1201 (1%
94.3 721 31%
47.6 58.0 (18

Divisional Total

2483 2502 (L)Y az,

Divisional EBITDA

90.6 1052  (14)%  (10:%




SHARE OF GROUP ADJUSTED EBITDA™

O Sarvicas © Products
NET REVENUE (EM)
:!!‘1l'[l: :E|: 2020: 250
0
. vi%
ADIUSTED EBITDA (EM)
!!]Ilﬂ' lii 2020: 105.2
0
. vidh
NUMBER OF CLIENTS

COUNTRIES SHIPPED TO (FY2021)

ADIUSTED NET REVENUE BY PORTFOLIO

ADJUSTED NET REVENUE BY REGION

A5 previcusly announced, Proleukin
was negatively impacted by COVID-19
during the year with a significant
reduct.onin US prescriptions for on-
label iIndications, resulting in a key
oroder from a US wholesaler not being
olaced n G4 Management belhoves of
15 prudert to expect this reduced level
of demand for Proleukin to remain until
revitalisation efforts into new indications
alongs:de novel cell therapes are
successful and normal hospital and
cancer centre services have resumed

Net revenue from Foscavir remained

res lient despite the aoproval and

launch of two generics This 15, however,
axpected to have a negative iImpact

on F¥2022 growth rates and beyond
During the year the bag formulation was
launched in the US which 1s expected to
siow decl ne and protect some market
share along with existing GPO contracts

Ethyol remaimed off the market in
FY2021 due to manufacturing disruption
and furtmer clarity on when this can ne
resclved will be avallable in the next

12 months Totect wil e wathdrawn
from the market in H1 2022 due o

the market being weli-servad, with

the product carry ng value havirg

baen fully impared in FY2020

Good progress was made with the
Developed portfehio and internal
expectations exceaded with net revenue
increasing by 31% driven by key products
Melatonin and Glycepyrronium Bromide,
which alsa saw ther first international
launches Melatonn capsulas were
launched, representing the first
immediate release capsules in the UK
market. Melatorin Oral Scolution has been
subrmitted for approval across ten other
countrias utilising the decentralised
procedure CDCRY with further launches
across Europe expected in 12-18

months The DCP procedure was also
followed for Glycopyrronium Bromide,
with subrrssions in 14 countries, with
commercialisation Into seven of these
countries expectad in H1 2022

Further diversif-cation of the portfolio
1s expected over time Alongside the
opoorturity for acguisitions there

are 10 assets in the development
nipelhine that coula delver a total of
E4O0m+ in ifetime net revenues

PARTNERED

Nat reverue ncreased 31% to £94 3m
(2020 E721m) Thare has been positive
progression with the total number of
partnered products (both for icensed
and unhcersed markats) nsing tc 183
(2020.156) This s driven largely by
strang growth in the numer of exclusive
products being supphed into unilcensed
markets. Partnered 15 seen as a potential
key growth driverin the future
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Growth across the AAA region
remains strong where a further 16
local heensing deals were signed for
both new and existing products dur.ng
the year. one of the most significant

of these was Hurterase (Idursulfase-
beta) ICV 1n Japan wh ch represented
the first approval for Hunterase 1ICY

N any country worldwice, providing
an important treatment option for
patients with the rare enzyme deficiency
canchtion Hunter syndrome,

Onboarding of Frwinass continuad
with JK commercial launches rolled
out and supply already being provided
in mora than 35 other countries where
Erwinase 1s not currently commercial v
avallakle A Biologics Licence
Application (BLA) has been subrmitted
n the US by Parton Biopharma and
llcences have already been received

in four BEurgpean countries with six
mare expected in H1TFY2022 through
the mutual recognition process

There will be further submissions N
Furope and beyond durnng FY2027

The pipeline across Partnered
products rermains healthy with mare
rthan 69 oppartunities for both
hcensed and unhcensed products

ON-DEMAND

Net revenue from continuing
operations fe!l by 18% to £47 6m (2020
£S8 Om) as activity was materially
mpacted by COVID-12 wth hospitals
pricritising treating patients more
directly affected by the panderic

The AAA regicn saw good growth

In spite of the market backdrop by
continuing to meet :n-market demand
for shortages The On-Demand
performance 1s ikely to remain subdued
untl the pandemic ful'y subsides;

but to lessen the impact and drive
growth, the product mix s being
adapted 1o meet market needs

At the end of the year Chinigen
disposed of its non-core UK Specials
manufacturing and Aseptic non-

core UK Specals Manufacturing and
Aseptic Compourding busimess The
Compounding Business sourced and
manufactured specific unlicensed
rmedicinegs referred to as 'specials ma
ranga of formulations for supply acrass
the UK market and had begen part of
the On-Oemand part of the business
The divested business contributed net
revenue of £38 6rn (2020, £37.6m) ard
adjusted EBITDA of £1.0m (2020 £12m),

The On-Demand portfalio
remains strong with more than
900 active products avalable
through Climgen Direct
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STRON
OPERATING
CASH
CONVERSION

L 1

THE DIRECTORS ARE

PLEASED WITH THE STRONG

OPERATING CASH CONVERSION RICHARD PALING

IN 'I'HE PERI“B uF 86%_ \ntem@ Cheef F\r'aerIaJ Officer

and Group Financial Controller
i5 Sectember 200

REPORTED REVENUE (£M)

9236~

ADJUSTED GROSS PROFIT (EM)

1980 &

ADJUSTED NET REVENUE (£M)

1585

ADIUSTED EBITDA (£M}
IIIB 3 2020:1298
0
. v10%
ADJUSTED EPS (PENCE)
55 9 2020:65.3
0
. V18’
REPORTED EPS {PENCE)

298 o

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (£H)

o8

FULL YEAR DIVIDEND (PENCE)
7 BI 2020:161
0
. 0%
NET DEBT (£M)

3308

£316.9m excluding IFRS & haoilmeas,
reprasenting leverage of 2 8x. maan.nafully
below “he Group s temparary zarking
covenant of 3 bx



Given the significant headwinds experienced as a result of the
COVIDA19 pandermc, Chmigen has seen a reduction in
profitabibity compared with the prior year In spite of this, the
business has demonstratad its ability to meet 1ts challenges
head on with a3 number of significant new wins, particularly
within Services. and was successful in bringing forward the
first sales of its new n-licensed product Erwinase

Strong cash conversion remains a key objective and the
Directors are pleased with the Group's operating cash
conversion of 86% in spite of 2 sigrificant snvestment in
warking capital from the earlier than expected onboarding of
Erwinase The strong operating cash flow in the period meant
that net debt only rose by £28 om to £316 Im (ex-IFRS 163 1n
spite of making the final deferred payment for CSM (E67 9m)
n September 2020, Following thes payment, Group fres cash

flows can be pricnt:sed on organic growth and debt paydown,

with the Board remaning committed to achieving a leverage
ratio below 2 Ox and wh.ch it expects to achieve within
Fy2023

Owverall, net revenue from continuing operaticns sncreased by
7% (13% on an ocrgamc basis) to £458.6m (2020, £428 6m)
whilst gross profd fell by 6% {-3% on an organic Lasis) to
E198 Om (2020 £210.0m)

SUMMARY ADJUSTED INCOME STATEMENT

CRIWTH

EAN ENGEO 30 1WRE ui 1w

ADJUSTED RESILTS' j1.] o] IEPIRTED ORRANIL!

Grass revenus 523.6 466.7 12% 17%
Net revenue? 4586 4236 7% 13%
Gross profit 198.0 2100 (6% (3%
Administratve expenses (81.8) (B0 &) (1%

EBITDA from joint venture 0.1 0.6 (8%
EBITDA? 116.3 1293 (107% (5%
EBITDA" as % of

net revenue 25% 30%  (490)bps
Depreciation and

amort:isation (15.7) (104

ERIT 100.6 1194 (16)%

Finance cost (8.3) (11.3

Profit before tax 92.3 1081 (5%

Basic EPS 55.9p 653p (4)%
Dividend per share 7.61p 76lp 0%
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A numtier of adjusted measures are used by the Board in
reporting. planning and decision making Adjusted results
reflect thea Group's trading perfarmance and excluds
amortisation of acquired mtangibles and products, and
non-underiyving costs relating to acauisitions and disposals,
one off restructuring costs and impairment charges which are
explamed in note 7 of the consoldated financial statements

PROFITABILITY

As announced in the half year results, from 1January 2021, the
Group structure was simphfied, moving from three divisions to
two Services and Products This change batter reflects the
alhgnment of the Group’s activities to 1ts end customers,
pharmaceutical chients and healthcare professionals

The Services drv:sion compr.ses the old Clinical Services
cdivision and the Managed Access element of the old
Unlicensed Medicines division The Products division
comprises the old Cammercial Medicines division and the
Global Access (ncluding UK Specials) elament of the old
Unlhicersed Medicines division

ADJUSTED EBITDA BY BUSINESS FROM CONTINUING DPERATIONS

GRONTH

on n

YEAREMDER 30 JINE ™ N REPORTED NREANIC

Services 32.7 24.9 (6)% (2.
Products 90.6 105.2  (14¥  (10)%
Central unallocated costs (7.0) (10.3) 32% 40%

116.3 1298 (1% (5)%

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing aperations decreased by 10%
(5% on anarganic basisy to E1'6 3m {2020 £129 8m) reflecting
the impact of COVID-19 and a change in gross profit mix within
Services, partially offset by good cost contral

The Products divisional adjusted EBITDA reduced by 14% 10
£90.6m due to the reduction in demand for iIn-haspital critical
medicimes as a direct impact of COVID 19 along with
headwinds from Foscavir genencs launching dunng the year
and Ethyol manufacturing disruption. Thus was offset by strong
growth in partnered products which includes the onboarding
and rofl-out of Erwinase and better than expected growth in
revenue from the developed portfolio

Adjusted EBITDA 0 the Serwices division declined by 6% to
E32.7m as a result of COVID-19 headwinds throughout the year
with the impact of a delayeg or cancelied studies and lower
uptake on Managed Access Programs due to reduced patient
numbers, partly offset by strong growth in clinical sourcing
activity.

RECONCILIATION OF ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO REPORTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX

The table on the following page shows the reconciling items
betwesan the adjusted profit before tax of £92 3m (2020°
£108.1m) and the statutory reported profit before tax fram
continuing operaticns of £51.8m (2020, £23.2m).

The ad,ustments to profit before tax comprise costs relatng to
amortisation, acguisitions impairments and the Group's share

of the tax charge on the joint venture earmings of £0.1m (2020-
£0 3m)
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YEAR ENDED 34 INNE ] 2}
Adjusted profit before tax 92.3 108.1
Amortisation of acquired intangioles

and products (41.9) (44.3)
ACQuisition COsts €0.1) (0.5)
Restructuring costs 1.9 (2.9
Decrease/(increase) in the fair value of

contingent consideration 5.9 (11.8)
Impairment of assets ralated to

acquired products 2.7) 9.1
Impalrment of Investment in joint

venture - (5.9
FX revaluation on contingent

consideration 1.6 (2.0
Unwind of discount on deferred and

caont'ngent consideration (1.3) (8.1)
Tax on joint venture 1n South Africa (0.1) {0.3)
Total adjustments (40.5) (84.9)
Reported profit before tax 51.8 232

Tctal amartisation fram continuing operations was £51Tm
(2020: £48 2m). of which £25 2m (2020 £29.3m) related to
acauired intangibles. €16 7m (2020, £15 0m) related ta
acauired product hcences, £8 3m (2020 £4 Tm) re'ated to
saftware and £0 9m (2020 £0 5m) related to internally
developed product licences

Based on the latest forecast for the earn-out penod the fair
value of the contingent consideration payatzle on the 1Gone
acqguisition has decreased by £5% 9m Inthe prior year an E11 8m
charge was recognised as a result of an increase in the far value
of the contingent consideration pavable on the CSM acauistion

Restructuring costs relating to continuing cperations were
£19m (2020 £2 9m) in respect of redundancies as well as
preparations for Grexit.n the first half of the year

There was a £16m foreign exchange credit (2020 £2 Om
charge) fram the revaiuation of the cortingert censiderat-on
or Qone @and CSMan the prior y2ary which s dencmimated in
foreign currency

CASH FLOW PERFORMANCE (EM)

FINAKCE COST

The adjusted finance cost from continuing operations
was £8 Om (2020 £ 3m) with the decrease due to a
fareign exchange credit on the revaluation of the Group's
borrowings Tre average interast charge on gross debt,
excluding the impact of IFRS 16, was 2 4% (2020, 2 8%).
The reported finance cost from continuing operations
was £9 4m (2020 E£19.6m3. after taking account of the
non-cash £1 Im unwind of discount on the contingent
consideration relating to acguisitions (2020, £8.1m;

TAXATION

Taxation from continuing operations was £12 1m (2020
£9 Om}, based orimarily on the prevalling UK and overseas
tax rates. Thus charge s calculated as £17 9m basaed on the
adjusted profit before tax of £92.3m offset by a credit
of £5 8minrespect of the adjusted items The Groun's
adjusted effective tax rate CETR™) was 19 4% (2020 19 8%)

DIVESTMENT OF THE UK COMPOUNDING BUSINESS

On 30 June 2021 the Group camp eted the divestrmert of its
non-core UK Specials Manufacturing and Aseptic Compounamy
business for an initial £5m with up to £2 75m deferred ana
contingent consideration A loss on disposal of £8 3m s
recogrised within discortinded activities Further infarmation is
provided in note 30 of the canselidated finangial statements

EPS

Adjusteo basic EPS from continuing opearations. caiculated
excluding amortisation of acguired intanaibles and products,
and ather non-underlying items reduced by 14% to 55 9p
(2020, 65 3p) Reported basic EPS from continu ng operations
Incraased oy 178% 1o 29 8p (2020 10 8p) pnmar'y due to
the reduct onin non-underlying charges from caontingent
consideration payments and impairments recogrised n

the prior year

DIVIDEND

The Directors are preoosing to mamntain the firal dividenad
at 5 48p par share (2020 5 46p), resdlting i a full year
dividend of 7681p per share (2020 7610).

The final devidand will be paid subyect to shareholder aporoval,
on 4 January 2022 to shareholders on the raqister an
3 December 2021




CASH FLOW

Adjusted operating cash flow for the year from continuing
operations was £92.9m (2020, £93.9m) with the increase on
prior year bemng in spite of a £15m increase in working capita!
from the onboarding of Erwinase This reprasants an operating
cash conversion from adjusted EBITDA of 86%

Capital expenditure was £28 2m (2020 £22 7m), which incluaes
£8 8m related to warehouse |IT and ather nfrastructure
investments. £8.3m related to ongoing investment in the Group’s
digital strategy, and £11 2m on product oevelopment Capital
cxponditure in FY2022 15 oxpocted to remain at 3 similar lewvel
with continued spend on digital, new product developmenrt
and infrastructure improvements to increase capacity

The Group paid £673m (US$893 om) as a fina settlement of the
CSM earn-out in Septermber 2020.

The other main cash cutflows frem continuing operations were
tax pald of £15 6m (2020, £22 9, interest pard of E10.6m
(2020 £10 2m) and diadends oad of £10 1m (2820 £9.2m),

Tctal cash inflows from discentinued operations were £3 8m
(2020 £0 2m)

USES GF CASH FLOW

Deferred cons.darat.on payments 69.7
Capex 28.9
Dividend 10.1
Restructuring costs 4.6
Total 113.3
Financed by

Free cash flow 83.0
Business disposal 3.1
Increase in net dept 27.2
Total 113.3

TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND NET DEBT

The Group's operations are financed Ly retained earnings and
bank borrowings, and on occasion theissue of shares (o
finance acquisitions,

At the year end, there were two covenants that apphed to the
bank facility interast cover of not less than 4 Ox and net debt/
adjusted EBITDA cover of not more than 3 5x (excluding IFRS
163 As at 30 June 2021 interest cover was 10.0x and the net
debt/adjusted EBITDA leverage was 2 8x The Group has no
history of default onits borrowings, includ ng against its
covenant terms The laeverage ratio i1s expected to fall below

2 Ox target range during FY2023

Borrowings are denominated in a mixture of sterling. euros and
US dollars. and are managed by the Group's UK-based treasury
function, which manages the Group’s treasury risk In accardance
with policies set by the Board At 30 June 2021, the facility was
denorminated in £263m sterbng (2020: £2684m) €39m euros
(2020 €30m), and US$E9m US dollars (2020 US$108m)

Chrnergen recluces its exposure to currency fluctuations on
translation by typically managing currencies at Group tevel
using bank accaounts denommnated in foreign currendies
Where there 1s sufficient visibitlity of currency requirements.
forward contracts are usad to hedge exposure o foreign
currency fluctuations
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A E£26.2m (2020: £4 Cm credit) charge was recogrnised during
the year inrespect of currency translation differences within
other compreheansive incame, arising fram the impact of the
strengthening of sterhing on the translation of the Group's net
investment in overseas antitigs

Thea Group's treasury functior does not engage 0 speculative
transactions and does not operate as a profit centra, The
Group has applied hedge accounting where permissible to
match hedges to the transactions to which they relate thereby
reducing volatihity in the results which may arise from gains
and losses on hedging instrumeants

CURRENT TRADING AND OUTLOOK

In F¥2022 we expect strong cash generatior, driven by the
strength of aour underlying business and robust activity levels
across the Group. and remain focused on debt paydown We
now expect EBITDA growth cf 5% ta 10% due to lower than
anticipated sales of Erwinase 1n H1

I Services, business wins secured in FY2021 are being
Integrated as expected, the pipeling s strong with a number of
new high value projects already underway As we refine our
strategy our Services business 1s positionad to become a focal
growth area for Clirrgen in the future

In Products. specific nisks reramn from COVID-19, as demand
remains subdued for some products but has not warsened
There s contnued momentum across the Developed portfolio
and Partnering deals signed in FY2021 are contr.buting to
growth alongside the ant.cinated further roll-out of Erwinase

The long-term fundamentals of the business and its end-
markets remain strong despite the near-term uncertainty
created by COVID -2 and we are confident that we will deliver
long-term value

CURRENCY SENSITIVITY

The Group's activities expose it to currency risk grimardy in
relation to the US doliar and euro The Group uses forward
contracts to reduce the ympact of this risk If the current
exchange rates are assumed toc apply throughout FYZ022. the
Group estimates it would have a 1% - 2% negative impact on
ad;usted EBITDA. Current spot exchange rates to sterling as at
15 September 202Tare USD 138 EUR 1Y/ ZAR 1977, and
AUD 1.89

CAPITAL ALLOCATION

- The Group’s capital allocation framework exists In order to
pricntrse tha use of cash and maximise shareholder value
whilst retaiming the flaxibility to make value-ennancing
acauisitions The four principles within the framewcrk are as
follows.

- Reinvest for orgaric growth

- Maintain a progressive dividand policy

- A1 to pay down and maintain net deot within a range of
10xto 2 Ox EBITDA on an ordinary basis

- Make acqguisitions in hine with the Group's strategy with a
disciplhined approach to valuation

PRINCIPAL RISKS FACING THE BUSINESS

Chrigen operates an embedded risk management framework,
which 1= monitored and reviewed by the Board There are a
number of potential r sks and uncertainties that could have a
material impact on the Greup's financial performance and
position These include nisks relating to the palitical
environment, competitive threat, supply chain disruption, legal
and regulatory 1T systems and infrastructure, cyber and data
securnity, foreign exchange. people, COVID-19, strategic
acquisitions, and environment and climate change These risks
and the Group's rmitigating actions are set out on pages 52 to 41
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

WERE
IDENTIFYING,
MANAGING

AND MITIGATING
RISKS T0 DELIVER
OUR MISSION

Operating in the current environment,

it has never been more important to
ensure that a rigorous and disciplined
approach to risk management is
embedded across our business. The
success and sustainability of Clinigen

is underpinned by our ability to identify,
manage and mitigate those risks which
may prevent us from delivering our
mission and strategic plans.

A MATURING APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT

Qur risk management approach

aims to strke a3 balance hetween
mitigating and moritaring aur risks and
maxirmsing the potential oppertunity
and upside We understand that risk
wll natdrally arise from the operat.onal
and strategic decisions taken by the
Group which need to be actively
managed in pursuit of qur mssion.

The Board and Executive Managemant
Team continue to recogmise the
importance of adopting a mature
approach to risk management through
the ongoing iImplementation of a
framework based around the principlas
cof the Committes of Sponsornng
Crganisations of the Treadway
Commession { COSCO ) Enterprise Risk
Managemeant - Integrated Frameawork
and ilA's three lines model Inadditon,
the implemenrtation of several
recommendatons made by KPMG in
2019 following a strategic review of the
Group’s governance, f1sk management
and nternal control framework,

have strengthened our approach to
risk management. heiping to ensure
we effectively identify. guantify

and then imp ement m-Higations to
reduce risks to an acceptable level,

In support of improvirg the rnigowr
arcund risk ard control. the Board has
continued to invest In the Group’s risk
managemsant capability, notably through
tne appointmeant of an experignced
Group Head of Internal Audit and Risk
ard the appontment of BDO LLP (¢
provide subject matter expertise and
additional resource to the in-house
internal Aachit function This iInvestment
has enaonled the Group to acge'erate
changes to how 't undertakes risk
rmanagerment. through a Group-wide
risk governance framewaork and clear
accountabil'ties This maodel wil continue
to evelve during the next 12 months.
with the full implementation of Risk,
Ethics Compliance & Sustanabdity

{ RECS ) Boarads (groun and draisional)
the roll-cut of rew risk and control
software (Rhiza) to support tne

facil tation and timely reporting of

risk. and the full implermentation of

a centro attestation process




RISK GOVERNANCE MODEL

The Board has overall responsibihity for
ensuring that there s ar effective rsk
management framework embedded
across the bus ness. Itis accountable
far strategic nisk management, iIncluding
sarting and art-culating the Group's

r sk appetite, and ensuring a sound
system of internal controf and risk
management 15 in place The Audit and
R sk Committee assists the Board by
providing oversight and challenge of
the effectiveness of risk managsament
and mitigating controls, It annually
provides an independent assessment
ana gpinion on the effectivenass

and efficiency of the Group's Internai
contrals and risk management
systems. obtaring assurance from
Imtermal Audit and other independent
assurance providers The Audit and
Risk Committae periodically reviews
the Group s strategic risks and provides
regular updates to the Board or azthions
taken to mitigate those risks to an
acceptable level Detans of the Audt
ang Risk Commmittee’s composition.
responsibilhities and activities can

be found in the Audit and Risk
Cammittes Report on gages 70to 75

Aligned to the Group's risk management
appraeach a three hines model (2hgned
to the Institute of Irterma’ Auditor’s
guidance;} has been adopted with a set
of controls, policies and procedures

and respons-bilities designed to provide
reasonabte assurance Operational
management across the business
cperate as the first hine This ensures that
day-to-day controls are implemented
and monitored and that relevant systems
are n place toidentify, evaluate and
rmitigate operational risks inherent
within ocur activities. The second line
comprises several functions such as
Qualty. Legal, IT, Health & Safety (H&S)
and the Process Governance team
These functions orovide axpertise,
support, morntonng and challenge

to the managemsant of risk across

the Group suoporting the first line,
Internal Audit together with other
independent assurance providers serve
as the third line, providing independent
assurance over the effectivenass

of the Group's risk management,
internal controls and governarce

All principal risks are assigned to a
member of the Executive Maragement
Team and this, combined with our
three ines model, helps to ensure
accountak:hity throughout the business,
in addition, targeted assurance over
the Group's principal and operational
risks i1s provided through the adooticon
of a nsk-based internal audit strategy
by the Internal Audit team
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OUR FRAMEWORK FOR MANAGING RISK
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Overall responsibility for risk management:
Risk appetite, strategy, policy and systems,

approval of the strategic nisk register

BOARD
r
Supporting the Board with monitoring
the apphcanon of the risk maragement ?hivéfg!mf
framework. identifying and scrutinising P
AUDIT AND areas of grearor nsk internal cantrol,
RISK COMMITTEE s ehgreat risk management
Assessing the effectiveness and i:rg’e}fem?car?i
=ff ciency of the intarnal coniro! =g
. register
ard r.sk rmanagemesnt systems
A o
Defining accountabihtes and REVIEWING
responsibilities for risk management & UPDATING
the Group's
MHEECIEHMTEAM Monitoring the risk management strategic risk
govaernance framework and pernodically register and
assessing the strateqic nsk register and agreeing risk
risk mitigation plans mitigation
strategies
A A
Identification of strategic and Escalation

RISK, ETHICS,
COMPLLANCE AND
SUSTRINABILITY
(RECS) BOARDS

Management and mitigation of risk
through target remediation and risk

aperaticnal risks inherent at a group,
dwisianal and regional leve!

Assessment of risk to guantify the
inherent and residual probab ity and
impact of the risks

rrutigation strategies

A

N

&repsrung
those risks above
appebite and/

or assessed as
likely to have a
sigaificant
Impact on
delivery of
strategy

y S

FIRSTLINE

Business Operations/
Functions

Frovision of products/
services to chents

Management controls.
internal contro!
measures

SECOND LINE

Quality, Legal, IT, H&S,
Process Governance
Expertise, support,
rantonng and
challenge on rnisk-
related matters

Risk ownership and
control ensuring
day-to-day risk
management controls
are implemented and
montored, and that
systems arein place to
wdentify, evaluate and
rmfigate Group's
strategic and
operational risks

Monitoring and
compliance regara:ing
internat controls,
processes and systems
established to control
and mitigate Grouo
strategic and
operational risks

THIRD LINE

Internal Audit
Independent and
objective assurance
and advice on all
matters related to the
achievement of the
Group's objectives

Independent
assurance ovar the
Group's risk
managerment,
internal controls
and governance
frameworks
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IT HAS NEVER BEEN MORE
IMPORTANT TO ENSURE THAT
A RIGOROUS AND DISCIPLINED
APPROACH TO RISK
MANAGEMENT IS EMBEDDED
ACROSS OUR BUSINESS.

RISK APPETITE

The UK Corporate Governanca Code
requires Companies to getermine ther
risk appetite This s anexoression of
the amodnt and types of risk that the
Group rs willing to take in arder to
achieve its strategic ang oneraticnal
objectives A risk that can seriously
affect the gerformance prospects or
reputation of the company 15 deemed
a principal risk These are gligned to
the Group s strategic pihars The level
of risk acceptable for prircipal and
emerging risks -5 assessed on an annuai
basis by the Exccut ve Managemeant
Tearn and subsagqueantly by the Board,
which defines rnisk appetite through tne
consideration of the potent al mrpact
cf nisk, hkeihood of risk and ability to
reduce nsk through mitigaton Ths
ensuras allgnment Detweean gur view
of acceptabtile risk exposure and our
abnlity to achieve qur strategic pulars

Climgen faces s broad range of

risks reflecting the hughly ragulatea
envronment nowhich it operates

The risks arising from the business
amvirorment and operating model

can e sigrrficant f not apgropnately
controllad and managed Saccesstul
and sustamable financia perfermanca
for the group is achigved by managing
these risks tnrough ntelligent dec sion-
making. ¢clear artculation of risk
appetite and through the adoption of
a strong internal control frarmewor«

EMERGING RISKS

Emerging risks are tnose which, while
not immediate, have the potential to
materialise over a longer penod of time,
and could have s.gnificant impacr or the
Group Emeraing ris<s may be new risks
Aot previousty ident fied and/or fully
understood. or changes to existing risks
that are currently difficult to quantty

Chnigen applies a consistent process
o dentify emerzing risks. faciitated
through our annual Lang-Range
Planr:ng { LRP) process Emerging
risks are identified within our divisional
and functional business plans bhefore
being auantified and aggregated at
a Group level This process supports
Clinigen in farming a larger-term
vigw ¢f emerging nsk in respect of
proosmhty, impact ano expected
tirmenne of impact on the strategy

In acdition to the LRF process the
Group seeks to dentify emergimng

risks at the earl 25t cpportunity, w.th

risk trend reports (sucn as the World
Economic Farum s 'Glabal Risk Report'
collated and analysed nerodicaily by the
Groug Head of 'miternal Aumt and Risk

Emerging risks are mortored
managed. mitigated. and reported
upon throuah the acopted nisk
management framework

RISK IN CONTREL

The Group faces risks across a broad
range of risk categories, ncluding
srrategic, operational, fimancial,
technological. regulatory and peaple

To ensdre these rnisks are appropriately
controlled we invest time. resource and
capabiity inensuring an appropriate
tevel of control 1510 place to mit:gate

the risks to ar acceptable level

This commitment aligns with the
Groun’s strategic pillar of ‘operational
excelence’ Assurance aver the Group’s
systerms of internal control s provided
through the adoption of a targeted and
r sk-based approach by Internal Audit In
February 2020, the Comrnittee approved
a three year nisk-based Internal Audht
Strategy which will provide continued
ASSUrance Coverage over Our risks

During the second hal® of this year.
rtermal Audhit commenced a range of
aJdits, including risk based reviews of
[ata Privacy, IT Seneral Controls and
Cyboer Secunty Each of these aud ts
have orowv.ded direct assurance over
controls establishea to mitigate specific
stratedic and operationa’ fis<s
Iriaddilion, rranagernent assurance

via the second line provides additional
comfort over the strength of tre
Group's internal control systems most
natably i pharmaceutical compliance
whereoy the Group s Quahlty Assurance
tearm moeniters comphangs against

key regulatory regd rements including
Good Distribution Pracuce ( GDP') and
Good Manufaciunng Practice { GMPY

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES ASSESSMENT

The Group's pnncipal nsks, together
with the management actions to
mitigate the nisk, are set out in getan
or pages 56 to 61 Trney aranotin any
order of prionty and do not comprise
all risks assaciated witr the Group
The principal risks are shown on <he
Groun’s r sk map ¢n page 55, piotted
by risk category and res dual risk level
Further nisks not currently Known

or risks that have peen considerad

o o2 less matenal may alsc have an
aciverse impact or the business The
princpal risks and unceria ntes were
considerad in assessing the long-term
viakuhty of the Compary The viaoiity
statenent can be found on pages 87

“bre Boara conhirms that

- It has carried out a robust assessment
of the prircpal risks facing the Group
includ ng emerg ng risks, and those
that would shreaten ts busress
model. future performance, solvency
or hguichty

- The nsk management framewaork has
operated effectvely for the vear under
revieyy and up 1o the date of agproval
of the Annua! Report and Finarcial
Sratements



RISK MAP s

PRINCIPAL RISKS

ROt Political

RD2 Compatitive Threat

RD3 Suoply Chain Disrupt on

RM Senalsation and Counterfert Broducts
RS Legal and Regulatory

ROB 1T Systems and Infrastructura

RO Cyber and Data Securty

RO Foreign Exchange

RO9 Strategic Acquisitions

R0 People

RNl impact of COVID-19 on Group Trading
and Demand

R12 environment ard Chimate Change

REGULATORY & COMPLIANCE

RISK LEVEL
HIGH

The residual risk 15 above
an acceptable level of
risk appetite Reguires
immediate attention

by management ¢
arder tc bring about a
reduction in exposure

MEDIUM

The resiclual risk 1s broadly
within an acceptable leve’
of risk appetite, howevar.
risk mitigation plans are
required to bring about
areduction in exposura

STRATEGIC REPORT

23

Low

The residuar risk s wathin

an acceptable level of

risk appatite The risk has
bheen assessed as being
effectively managed by
existing controls and normal
operationa. procedures,



56 CLINIGEN GROUP PLE
ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continuen

ROI:
POLITICAL RISK

STRATEGIC PILLARS

000
0] 10,

RISK APPETITE

_]0]®

MOVEMENT VS PRIOR YEAR

®

WHAT IS THE RISK?

The Group’s expanded global footprint has

ncreased the exposure to adverse local political
ecisions, changes i regulation and economic

events impacting the pharmacedtical Industry,

which may affect the abilhty to supply loca dermand

and/or pric.ng

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

The lorger-term effects of Covid-19 and Brexit
continue to be difficult to predict but could include
financial instabibity. slower economic growth or
economic downturn (UK/globally) and/or continuad
impact on demand of products

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group mitigates this risk by naving an
increasingly broad product, serv:.ce and
geograpnical rarge, imiting the impact of events
N any singla territory

- The Group monitors developments in key
geograpnies and maintamns relatienships with
regulatory bodies to enabte the Group to respend
rapidly tolocal changes In circumstances or
events The Group also takes account of political
risk when assessing new contrachs or product
acguisittons

- The Group completed the actions necessary to
ansure 1t can continue to trade In a post-Brexit
anvironment.

- The Group's priority 15 to mamntam continuity of
supply of 1ts products taits customers in the UK and
EU Tne Group manages supply of unhcensed
medicines in the EU through its EU based subsichary
alongside an inventory management plan to ensure
appropriare stocks are availakble across the
contiment

- The Group has ensured that its preducts continue
to be avaiatie in the EU by registering Marketing
Authorsations within an EU registered subsichary
and established a relationship with a third-party
warehouse agent to act as cur EU distribution hul.,

RO2:
COMPETITIVE
THREAT

STRATEGIC PILLARS

DO
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RISKAPPETITE
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MOYEMENT VS PRIOR YEAR

®

WHAT IS TRE RISKT

The Group faces a threat tcits owned products
fraom generic products and/or the developmeant
of altermatve therapies by compeltors

The threat of ‘genenc rnisk increases as the
Group's product sales increase In s1ze as INncreasing
market size mproves the vialiity for a putental
genernc product

Tha competitive landscape could also cnange durnng
a product's development before commrercial.sation
The Group also faces compeat:tive thireat with n the
services operations

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

The Group's products are not typically protected
by patents and thus compehtor threat could
significantly erade sales of cur products resulting
nanadvarse impact on the Growo s financ al
performance

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The continued diversificatiorn of the Grouo readces
the overall effect if one of its products or services
15 mpactaed by significant ¢hangen the
campetit.ve landscape

- Tnedentification and ability to promote new usears
of cur products and services and exganding into
new geographies are a key part of our strategy
and this helps mitigate the mpact of compeantion
i~ a particular geography treatmant area or
service.
Tne Group closely manitors the competitive
landscape in key markets to ensure a rapid and
appropriate response 1o changes in compeatition

KEY T0 STRATEGIC PILLARS

0 Cultivate a tnriving high
perfarmance cul-ura

o Drive gperationa’
axcelence

Partrier w.th clents to

de ver syrergistic vaue
o L 2ad the rrarket 1n

CLStOMEr experence

Enharce portfolio of assets
services and terrtores
Kealise compenitive
advantage througn
rachnology
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RO3:
SUPPLY CHAIN
DISRUPTION

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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MOYEMENT ¥5 PRIOR YEAR
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WHAT IS THE RISK?
The Group 1s unabfe to meet market demand for its

products due ta drug shortages and/or a major 1ssue

in the supply chain, for example, the manufacturing
process at a Contract Manufacturing Organisation’s
(CMOs)

Far several of our oroducts, imcuding Proteuk.n and
Erwinase, the Group s often reliant ona single
source suppher for manufactuning A significant
chsruptionn this procass could impede our abiity to
supply and meet demand

In addition, the 1gss or damage tc product during
transit could also cause sigrmificant disruption to
supply due to lead times in the re-mandfacturing
nrocess and/or ability to re-supply

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

The Group's reputation could be urdermined and
profits impacted if its products go into shertage of
supoly

An gsue in the manufacturing process at one of cur
CMOs rmay rosult i significant busmess disrupt:on
aro limit aur abilty to meet demang Such a delay
could a so result in aloss of market snare, part.cularly
if a genernic competitor enterea the market

The re-rmanufacturing process l2ad time could result
N the Group baing unable to fulfi orders and demand
resulting i loss of revanue and markat share

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group has effective supply cham
management, only working with trusted
manufacturing and g'oba’ distribution partners

- The Srodp also seeks to mamntamn approgriate
stock igvels of its own products and related AP to
minirise the risk of shortage of suoply.

- Bus ness Interruption OB Y insurance 1s procurad
to transfer an element of the financial risk
exposure assoc:ated with potential loss of
revenues in the event of significant disrupticnn
the supply of product and services,

- Maring nsurance 1s 10 place to it our financial
exposure and habihty in the event of product
heing lost and/or damage during conveyance

- Thrd party vendor rmanagement controls are in
place to mrirmise the risk of disrupt onin the
supply chamn

RO4:
SERIALISATION
AND COUNTERFEIT
PRODUCTS

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THE RISK?

The Group falls to meet ts chligations to cormply
with increased regulation on the serialisation of
licensed pharmacedtical products

WHAT IS THE (MPACT?
The Group's repataton could be undermined and

profits impacted f o fals fo comaoly with senahsation

regulatory requirements to m t gate the risk of
counterfart products in the supply chain,

HOW WE MAKAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- During the year the Group went live in the US with a
Verfication Router Service (WRS), enabling
wholesale distrioutors in the US to verify the
product identifier before re-dsstrbuting sateate
returned products Chrigen s also now able to
confirm that product identifiers are genuine, Inthe
event of a suspected illegitimate product

- Inthe US, the Grouo implemented a numoear of new
pohcies, including a US Drug Supply Chain Securnity
Act ( OSCSAY) Poacy and a US Suspect and
I'egitimate Product Management Policy.

- Due to Brexit products supplied to GB no longer
comply with the EU Falsified Medicines Diractive,
and are not subject to venfication and
dacommissioning at the point of supply, The MHRA
confirmed that as part of therr 2021-2023 roadman
they wil be deliverning a phased implementation of
the UKNI Medicines Venfication Systern (‘'MVS), {0
replace the EU system The Group continues to
monitor the iImpact of these ¢hanges and respond
accordingly to ensure complance

- Robust supplier management practices are
adopted by the group to ensure that supply chains
are as short as possible and products are traceable
to the manufacturer

- The Group has implemented industry-leading
qguality management systems and audits supp'y
partners where appropnate.

- The mandatory global serialisation of hcersed
pharmaceutical products 1s expected to reduce the
trade of counterfeit medicines. &s a pharmaceutical
company with its own specia'ty product portfehomn
its Praducts operation and a suppher of icensea
camparator preducts in its Clinical Services
aperation. Clirgen s fully complant with
senalisation regulation

KEY TO RISK MOVEMENT

@ Increasing

@ Decreasing

@ New risk

@ No change
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RO5:
LEGAL AND
REGULATORY

STRATEGIE PILLARS
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RISK APPETITE
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MOVEMENT ¥$ PRIOR YEAR
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WHATS THE RISK?

The Group fails to proactively ident®y and comply
with global laws and pharmaceutical regulatory
reguiremants across our value cham ircludirg
rranufacturmg. sales supply and marketung of our
products and services,

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

The fallure to comply with laws and regulatary
requirements could result In fines. penalties business
chsruption, reduced revenue, potennal exclusion
from government programs, and 1oss of tradirg
hcances

HEW WE MARAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group nas a business and Group-wide
compliance structure which 1s continually assessed
to support complance given the highly regulated
ndustry that it operates within

- Employees are regularly traimed In key areas
inctuding pelicies relating to Chaigaen's approach
to GMPAGIDP actrvitias, including
pharmacoviglance. manufacturing and
distribution, as well as lega: palicies including
whistieblowing, and anti-bribery and corruption. In
addition, the ernpiayee code of conduct remnfarces
the Group's values of ethics, trust and quality

- The cortinued integratan of quality systems such
as Electronic Quality Management System
{2QMS and Learning Management System
L LMSD) auring the year has further strengthenad
our rescurce and capability to supDart Cross-site
activities In addition, during the year the Quahty
Cepartment restracturad into three pilars Sharad
Services and Process Governance, Products QA
and Sarvices QA enabling graater algnment with
Chingen's divisions
Despite the pandermic. Clinilgen has undergone
numerous Competent Autherity Inspoections and
chent audits aver the past year. with the majority
result ng inan excellent result Periodiz internal
audits and management reviews aemonstrate that
the gualty managament system 1s under contreol

- Chnigen continges to manitor the regulatory
fandscape. with the main focus during tne year
being on the changes relating to Braxit Clirnigen
has implemented rew ways of working where
required. to ensure continuity of supply to patients
and climeal stadies

- Inaddition. the Group's three lines provides
assurance gvar the interral control framewaork
established to mimgate the risk of non-compliance,
Targeted assurance s provided by Interaal Audit
ard tne Group's Juaity Audit tearn

IT SYSTEMS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THE RISK?

The Group s dependence on techrology n our
dav-to-day business means that systerrs faillure
and loss of data wouwd have a high impact on
our operations

Tre loss of a ¢critica! system and/or data could
significantly impede our ali'ity to trade and cortinue
to supply our products ana services ir ing with our
standards ard commitments ta cur customers ard
chents

A csignificant loss of data could asaresatin adata
prvacy breacn and ultimately reputatonal damage
andsor financ al penalties

HOW WE MANAGE AN MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group’s technaology strategy s regu'arly
reviewed t0 ensure that the systems it operates
across the Group supportits strategic direction.

- In 2021, the Group appo nted a new VP IT whao
commenced a detalled review of the Group's
existing IT nfrastructure (nclud ng platform
architeciure and operating model) sarvices,
structure ana IT contros A refreshed T strategy
and roaomap was developed as a result of the
revigw

- Ongomng asset ife-cycle management programs
mitigate risks of Fardware cbsolescence whlst
back-up procedures mitigate risk of data loss

- The Group nas contrnued to embed the ERP
during the yvear. with further integration planred in
202122 The ERP s designed to maks tha
bhusiness systems maore efficient scalable and
relatle

- 17 disaster recovery plans are developed ard
testing completed to ensare critical systems/
apohcations could te restored inthe event of a
disrunticn

KEY TO STRATEGIC PILLARS

0 Cultivate a thriv ng hugh
parformarce culture

Drive cperatiznal o _ead the market 1n
customer expernerce

excellence

o Partner with clierts to
deliver synerg stic vaue

Enhance portfono of assats,
seryvices and ferntories
Realse competitive
advantaye through
rechnclogy
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ROT:
CYBER AND
DATA SECURITY

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THE RISK?

increased levels of cybercrime represent a threat to
the Group and may l2ad to business disruption or
loss of data The Group 1s exposed to the risk of
exterral parties ga:ning access to Group systems

and deliherately disrupting its businass This includes

the risk of ransom demards, a matena. loss of
revenue and profitabihty while systems are being
restored, stolen information or fraudulent acts

Cyver and data secunity remains a key and
Increasng risk as technclogy and third-party
cloud-based services continue to be subject o the
threat of iIncreasingly complex cyber-attacks

WHAT I3 THE IMPACT?

Fa:lure to protect agamnst the threat of cyber-attack
could adversely impact the systems performing
crincal functions which could lead to a s:ignificant
breach of security, jeopardising sensitive Informaticn
and financial transactions of the Group.

A data treach or attack resulting 1in operationa:
cisruption coula reduce the effactiveness of our
systems This in turn cou d result :nloss of revenue
lass of financial customer or employee data fines
and/or reputational damage

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group has invested in the protection of 1ts
data and IT systerns from the threat of cyber-
attack. Cyber security pelicies and procedures
exIst to munimise this risk, Including preventative
and detective controls

- Cur dedicated IT support teams and external
service providers monitor and respond to new
and expanding cyber risks and look o mplement
best practice In T secunty management

- Proactive and reactive secunty controls are
imolemented, including up -to-date anti-virus
software across the estate, network/system
monitoring and regular penetration testing to
idertify vulneraoiities

- Incigdent response capability 1s 10 place to mitigate
the impact of a cyber-attack on our day-to-day
operations This includes disaster recovary and
business continaty plans to support the business
N the event of a sign:ificant attack

- Internal audit conducts period:ic reviews of IT and
securty controls

- The Group recently socught re-accreaitation under
Cyber Essentials + CCE+") 1n order to validate the
strangth of its cyner contras

- The Group alsc has n place Cyber Insurance,
providing coverage and pratection against a range
of cyber-related secunty threats This pohcy
enables Chrigen to transfer an element of financial
rnsk and habihity

RO8:
FOREIGN EXCHANGE

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THE RISK?

The Group has significant operations and actvities
outside the UK and has a high level of trading across
a numibzer of foreign currencies 1t s therefore
exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates

The volatlity of sterling. as a result of Brexit has
heighten the foreign exchange risk

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

Foreign currency movements may impact profits,
balance sheet and cash flows Ineffective hedaing
arrangements may not fully rntigate volatihty or may
increase it

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group reduces iI1s exposare 10 currency
fluctuation using bank accounts denominated in
the principal fore.gn currencies for payments and
recepts The Group seeks to optimise the
matching of currency surpluses generated to the
foreign currency needs of the wider Group, and
where there s a sufficient visibihty of currency
needs

- Hedaging s in place for foreign exchange to help
mitigate volatility and aid margin management

- The Group does not 1ssue ar use financial
instruments of a specu'ative nature and the
Group's treasury function does not act as a profit
centre

KEY T0 RISK MOVEMENT

@ Increasing @ Decreasing

@ No change @ New risk
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R09:
STRATEGIC
ACQUISITIONS

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THERISK?

The Group fails to integrate acguisitions efficienty,
leading to disruption in operations and reduced
returns an investment

N addition, the Group coula make acguisitions which
do not suppart the business as intended or could fail
to identify potential acguisitions to drive future
agrowth aspirations

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

Strategic acqu-sitions fail te provide the planned
Return on Investment { ROI)

Faiiure to enact the acquistion strategy could result
Inncreased inefficiencies in gperations, INCreased
casts, and greater risk of non-compiiance with laws
and regulations

Loss of market confidence in the Group s acqu sition
strategy

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group utiises specialist advisers on all
acguisitions and conducts the appropriate level of
due diligence ta ensure the costs and benefits are
“ully evaluated prior to acguisition,

- Al acauwsitions are thoroughly reviewed and
approved by the Board and supported by
experianced integration teams with detailed
ntegration plans These plans are then momtored
regularly to raise any deviations and corrective

ction taken.

- The Group's Program Management Board oversee
all strategic acquisitions and undertake a ngorous
approach to due ail.gence on all proposed
acauisitions (and divestments).

- Fimancial modelling and stress testing 15
comoleted on all proposed acguisitions

R10:
PEOPLE

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT ISTHERISK?

The Group s ability o delver onits strateg-c
obhjectives could oe adversely impacted by falure to
recruit, devaelop and reta n the right people

The risk that a combination of <ey peoplz in senior
roles depart al shaort notrce coula impact the
Group's abihty to deliver on s strategy

Failure to address and adapt to the chal-engss of
wel bema and menta' bealth as a result of the
pandemic may also nmcrease tne risk that we are
unable to retam employees

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

Loss of key individuals cauid result in operational
disruption while competiticn for emnoloyees could
read to higher-tharn-exnected increases in tne cost of
recruitrment. training and ermployee costs

Loss of key personnel could have a reputatioral
impact

We fall to protect and offer a waorking environment/
cultare that supoorts our people’s haalth and
wo'loeing resulting rncreased atintion and
turrowver

REW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- The Group has grown rap dly and now employs
aver 1,000 people 1n 14 cocuntries The Group
cnsuras effoective and reguiar mnternal
communcations i order to communicate and
update on strategy and akrectives

- The Group has approptiate remuneration
packages to nelp recrut and retain key employees
Aonew ok grading framework was introouced in
2027 providing aur peapla with a clear and
transparent mechanisrm “or progression, oay and
rewsard Inadditian. all permanent employees are
given the oppartunity to becorme shareholders of
the Company
The Group provides sigrificart opportunmtias for
learning. deveiopment and leadership trainng.
dermonstrated by 1ts managernant academy which
1s recognised by the Institute cf Leadership and
Management to ass st wath career develcomant
and improve compeiency

- Clear succession olans are nplace for senior
positigns across the Group

- Throughout the pandemic the heath and
wellbeirng of our people has beern paranmount
Increased leve s of communicat on ard
engagement have bheen in place throughout whilst
arange of In vatives incluchng mental health and
wellbeing traming have equipoed cur managers
to ensure the best suppertis offerea to all our
peopla

KEY T0 STRATEGIC PILLARS

@ cuitvate a thnving nigh
parformance culture
Drive coeratinonal
excellence

o Partner w th clients tc
achver synergistic value

o Lead the market in
customer experiance

o Erharce portfolio of assets,
sarvices and terntones
Real s competitive
advantage threugh
technalogy
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Ril:

IMPACT OF
COVID-19 ON
GROUP TRADING
AND DEMAND

STRATEGIC PILLARS
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WHAT IS THE RISK?

COVID-19 contnuas to have a negative impact on
demand as a resu't of 3 contiruad global reduction
i1 hospitai-based oncology treatments and delays to
chnicai triars In particular. demand for Proleukin
coniinues to be below forecast levels due tc the
panderrc

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

Revenue and gross profit are nat in line with forecast
and expectations

Adjusted earrings before interest. tax, depreciation,
and amaortisation CEBITDAD 1s below both internal
and external expectations

The Graup 1s unable to achieve doubie-digit EBITDA
growth \n Fy2022

Trne Group 15 unable to generate sufficient levels of
cash to reduce its debt level in ine with internal and
external expectations

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIRATE THE RISK

- The Group beneves it s prudent to expect a
reduced level of dermand for Profeukin to rema:n
urtil revitalisation efforts nto new ndications
alongside novel cell therapias are successful and
normal Hospital and Cancer Centre Seryvices have
resurned

- The Group continues to have ampla aguidity and
leverage meanmgfully below the Group’s banking
covenant

- Mo further deferred payments are required for
Drevious scouisition L™, nor tor Prolegkin unless
sales exceed a pre-set m.lestaone significantly
above current levels and cash generation is
focused an debt paydown

- The Group will continue to support COVID-19
projects across the business The Group 1s also
gaining further share nits Service end-markets
and has made faster-than-expected nrogress on
the launch of Erwinase

- The cont-nued roll-out of ClimgenBirect the
Group's online patform to customers, will act as
an enabier for greater access 1o our med:icines and
connectivity with HCPs ana hosputals

R12:

ENVIRONMENTAL/
CLIMATE CHANGE

STRATERIC PILLARS

000
01010

RISK APPETITE

_Ol®

MOYEMENT ¥S PRIOR YEAR

@®

WHAT ISTHERISK?

The Group fails to plan and respond to the
environmental and chmate change agenda

Future emission restrictions and the transition tc a
low carbon economy cou.dimpact operations and
performance 'n the madium term

WHAT IS THE IMPACT?

The Group's impact upon the envrronment or the
effects of chmate change could expose it to
regulatory breaches significant disruption.
reputational r.s« or a reduction in demand for its
products and services

The Group fals to discharge its responsitrlities as a
qoCd corporate citizen, making 1t a less atfrachve
place to work ana invest in

HOW WE MANAGE AND MITIGATE THE RISK

- In 2021, tha Group signad up to the UN Global
Compact imitiative and s also committed to
rmaking a voluntanly disclosure against the
Taskforce for Chimate-relatea Finanaal Disclosures
( TCFO Y in rext yvear's Annudal Report and
Accounts

- The Group s commrtted to satting targets,
implernenting sustamabihfy imitsatives and
reporting performarce (o1ts key stakeholders

- A robust governance structure was implemented
I 2021 to provde clear oversight and ownershio
of the Group's ESG/sustainability strategy and
management of climate-related risks

- Identification, mitigaticn and reporting on
chmate-related nisks continues to be embedded
inta the Group's existing nsk management process
and s complementary to governance of the
Group's ESG/sustainability strategy

- The Grodp has developed a clearly arliculated ESG
strategy which outhnes four key pillars and a range
of sustamability-related initiatives a:med
supporting cur ccmm tments as a good corporate
citizen norelanon to ESG This strategy s also
alignad to the UN Sustanable Cevelopment Goals
(SDGs).

- The Group also reports anrually in hne weth the
Streamhined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)
requirements ard Section 172 of the Compantes
Act. under which Directors have a duty to act with
regard to the company's impact on the
env.renment.,

KEY TO RISK MOVEMENT

@ Decreasing

@ increasing

@ No change

@ Mew risk
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ELMAR SCHNEE

Indeperdent
Non Executive Chairman

SHAUN CHILTON

Chief Executive Officer

SHARON CURRAN

Independent
MNaon-Executive Director

ALAN BOYD

Non-Executive Director

APPOIRTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPRINTED
Dhrector in August 2021 and Directar in July 2013 ano CEOQ In Apnil 2021 Novambear 2018
Chairman in September 2221 Novembear 2016

COMMITTEES COMMITTEES COMMITTEES COMMITTEES

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE SKILLS AND EXPERSENCE SKILLS ANO EXPERIENCE SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

Zlmar brings a wealth of
expenence from the international
nharmaceutical indus:ry, having
held sen-or 1eaderstup and Board
pesitions at a number of glakal
pharmaceutcal products and
SEryvICes Companes

Elmar rmost recently served or the
Board of Jazz Pharmaceutica s
He also serves as a Mon-Executnve
Director on listed Santnera AG
and Calllditas &F and severa
rrivate compan-es Pror to this
Fis alokal career spannad arange
of semar roles at companies
includirg Merck kGaa as General
Partner and member of the
Executive Board, and Merci
Serong as CeO

Shaun has played a pivotdl rale r
the develapment of Chrugen,
Joining the Compary in Jandary
2C'2 as Chief Operaunyg Ofhicer,
when it was a orrvately cwned
company wath a turnover of £322m
Snaun was appointed CEO N
November 2016 and Pas the
responsibihty far the Group
achiey no s WPIS and plays a
central role in setbirg the Group
strategy

He was & key part of the executive
team that took Chimigan through
IPO n September 2012 and has
been a ‘undamenr:al part o the
leadarship ot the impressive
strateqic grasvth of the Campary

Prior to joimng Cumger, Shaur
held serior g oba' strategic,
commergial and cperational
roles at Pfizer, Sarchi, Wolters
Kiuwer Health and the
KnowledgePont3eD Group
(new part of UDS Healtheare:

Sharar 13 an expenenced
Non-Executive goard Cirectar ds
well 35 havng proven top level
expenence in leading hugh
mpact glotal marketing.
commerciabsation and growin
strateg es for word class
pharrmaceuncal corporations

Sharor has held namerous senior
operational anci strategic roles at
EhoL Ly Abbott and mast recently
as VP Glona Marketing and
CommerZial Operations at Abbyvie
JS leading tner global specialty
framchize and development of
comivercial and 'aunch
capabihites 5~aron has an M 5¢
it Bustness admurnstratan from
Trinity Caleys, Gubinand a B S
in Biotechnalag, from Dubin City
niversity Sharor s a Chartered
Director acoradited by the
nstitute of Directars London

Professor Boyd bas accumulated
ovar 30 yvears of extensive meadical
and paohcy exper.enca w.thin the
nharmaceutical sector, holding
semar rales within some of the
world's largest pharmacenbical
companies

He began his pharmaceutica’
career wth Glaxo Group Research
Limited From 1988 heled 1Cls
cardioy, ascular medical research
tearn, and later assumed the rale
of Director of Thncal ard Medical
Affars at 1IC1 Pharma Canaria

In 1999, after tour years as Head

of Medical Research for Zeneca

Friarmaceunicals, be became

Director of Research and

Develgpment for &Ark Therapeutis '
Limited where he was respons ble

for delivering the maonity of key

aevelopment milestones

In 2005 Professor Boyd left to set
up Alan Boyo Consultants Limited,
to focus on aid ng and supportng
early stage fe-scence based
companies N Europe. Nerth
AImerica and apan

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Inaddition to Santhera and
Talliditas, Elmar Schnee alc
ser/es as a diaector of Gerk jotex
SA (@ subs diary of Calliditas)
alonysiae pri.ate companies
Maleac Pte. Moleac RX Pte Noarik
=5 Damian Pharma AG Kuste
Biopharma Mindmiaze Genoharm,
GenkyaTex Suisse SA ProCom Rx
Holding 4 and MyDIC SA

"he Board has undertaken 5
torcugh review of each of Elrar’s
axternal appointments and s
satisfied that he has suffic ent
time to meet all of s Board
responsityhities a7 Chrigen

Furthar, the Boara finds the
additional insight ga nea by Fis
participation om other Beards to
be of erormous benefit

EXTERKAL APPOINTMENTS

Shaun s currently Cnairman of
C7 Fealth L mited. a prowider of
software ard sar v ces tor the
nealthcare sector

The Board s satisfied tnat this
external anpointmeant dees not
impact ypon the CEO 5 ability to
chscharge his rale at the Corrpan,
effectivaely

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Snaren s currently 2
Non-Execut ve Director for

T rcassia Groug ply where she
s Charr of the Remunaration
Cormmittes Sheis also on

the Beard of MorphoSys AG
(audit and Risk Committee)

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Crofessor Boyd s currantty

CED of &lan Soyd Consultarts
Lmited s ornate specalist
Diopharmaceutica corsaltancy
comipary e s also a Director of
Celentyx Limited ard Non-Exec
Director of Trapsine Tharapeatics
Ltd




IAN JOHNSON

Senior Independent Directar

ARNE HYLAND

Independent
Non-Exacutrie Director
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IAN NICHOLSON

Independent
Non-Executive Director

AMANDA MILLER

Ceneral Counsal
and Campany Secretary

APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED APPOINTED

August 2021 January 208 September 2012 June 2017
COMMITTEES COMMITTEES COMMITTEES

SKILLS AMD EXPERIENCE SKILLS AKD EXPERIENCE SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

lan has extensive experience
Raving spent hus business careerin
life science He aso has histed
company experience and was
faunder and ZEQ of Biatrace
'mternationa’ PLC which was a
listed company unti its sale to 3M
in December 2006

Prior ta these appomtments 1an
was a Nan-Executive Director of
Ergomed PLC and Executive
Charrman of Bioquell PLT,
Non-Executive Chairman of
Juantum Pharma PLC. Cyprotex
PLC and Cels s Group Ltd He has
also served on the boards of
variaus other public and private
comparies including &1M-hsted
companies Evans aAnalytical Group
and A0l Medical Inc

lan studiied at Carchff Umiversity
obtarung a B Sc and M 5c in
Microbiology Heas a Chartered
Biologist. a Fellow of the Rayal
Socety of Biology and a member
of the Institute of Cirectors

Anne has a strong track record
within the blooharma sector.,
bringing with her over 25 years of
financial experience witn both
pubic and private companies

Anneas a Chartered Accountant
(FCA) and corporate tax adviser
(CTA - alIT) ard holds a degree
in Business Studies from Trinity
Colege. Dubin Anng's previaus
roles include CFO of BB:
Diagnostics Group Limited and
FTSE-l sted Wectura Group plc
Prorto her role at Vectura Anne
held a number of senor finance
positions at Celltech Group n'c,
Medeva plc ard KPMG

lan has over 2% years of
Internationa’ expenence in
management and transactions
within the ife scierces sector. He
15 currently ar Operating Partner
of London-based advant Life
Sciences LLP

an previcasly spent erght years as
CEC of the privately beald
antifungal drug development
company F25 Limited and before
that CEO of the oncology R&D
cormpany Chroma Tnerapeutics
Limited Priar to that he was
Serior vice President, Busingss
Cevelopment at Uk biotechnology
company Celltech Group plc

lan has worked extensively in
licensing, M&A and market
development in the UK, Eurcize
ard the US and holds a BSc
(Hons ) from University College
lL.ondan and an MBA from Boston
Lnreersity He holds Board
positions at Chmgen Group plc
and s Chairman of Bioventix plc

Amanda trained ard gualfied

as a Uw soncitor at Frashbelas
Bruckhaus Dernger and has over
20 years of legal and goverrance
experence Befare joiming Chinigen
in June 2017 she was Vice
President and European Geaneral
Caunser at Shire Pharmaceuticals
Group plc where she had spent 14
yvears in positions of increasing
respansibiity inthe Uk and U5
She began her professional career
as a commodity trader far Caraill

EXTERNALAPPOINTMENTS

In addition to his currenz role as
Executive Chairman of Circassia
Group PLC. lan s also currently
Mon-Executive Chairman of
Redcentrnc PLC

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Anne s CFO of kymab Ltd,

a biopharmaceutical company
acquired by Sanofiir April 2021
far an upfront payment of 511
bilhien and upto $350 mill onin
deferred consideration Sne s
also a Nor-Executive Diractor of
Elementis plc. a g'obal specialty
chemicals campany

EXTERKAL APPOINTMENTS

lan s currently Naon-Executive
Charrman of Bioventix plc. lan s
also Chairman of the Investment
Committee at Cancer Research
UK Picneer Fund, Director of
Casewaell Consuiting Limited. F23
Lirmited, and Wells Stores Lirmited
and an Operating FPartner at
Advent Life Sciences LLP

SATERNAL APPOINTMENTS
None

KEY T0 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

@ Audit and Risk

® Remuneration

® Narmination

. Chair
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION TO GOYERNANCE

WE CONTINUE TO ENSURE
- ROBUST AND APPROPRIATE
- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

WE WILL CONTINUE TO EVOLVE
© OURCORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE

THAT THEY ARE ROBUST, —

APPROPRIATEAND SUPPORTOUR ~ rckocrcens

GROUP CULTURE AND PURPOSE.  |-ocfosiiony ™

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

As 'l begin my first year as Chairman of Ciinigen, |
am pleased to introauce the governance section of
the Annual Report for the year ended 30 cune 2021
I'would ke {0 thank my predecessar Peter Allan for
nis important contribution and leadership since IPG
i 2017 and wish lim o well for the future

Inthe year unoer review tne Boara continued to
evelve the Group s corporate govarnance
arrangements Lo ensure that they are robust,
appropriate ard support the Group culture and the
Company s purpose, The Board continues to
peieve that we must adhere to the princinles of
integrity, resgect, trarsparency and openness and
Board members are expected to lead by example

As we set out Inthe pages that follow, the pnilosophy
that underp ns our Company purpose of "Right
Medicine, Right Patient, Right Time’ also influences
the Chimgen aporgach to govarnance Although we
are ar AlM sted Company. ana follow the AlM rules
we have also chosan to comoly voluntarly with the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) which
was drafted with larger, mam market isted companies
nmind We feel that this more prescriptive and
rigoraus code 15 the Cest fit for our Company, where
we strive to demonstrate best practice in all we do

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

lam pleased to report tnat, througnout the year
under review the Caompany comolied with all the
crincigles af the UK Corporate Governance Code
save for the reguiremeant to undertake a Board
evaluat on process Last year the Board took part in
aful . externaly faciitated board evaluation exercise
wnich proved very informative anag the Board actea
o g number of recommandations ta ensure that the
Board team was working effectively with the
necessary r:igour and challenge This year the Baara
took the decision ngt to repeat the exercise due to
the number of changes but wiil be underraking an
evaluation in 2072 Recently tne Board membershic
has beer through significant changes nopersarnel
and we have now taken the decison to allow the
new boara members to settle ntc ther roles before
embar<ing on an evaluatior exarcise

lam lookirg forward to leaaing the Board throuagh
tne coerming year and continuing Lo evolve and
strengthen our governanis arrangaments



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

As a company whose shares are traded on AIM, the Company
Is subject to the A1M Rules (the A'M Rules’y for Companies
Pursuant to (amended) AM Rule 26, every company whose
shares are traded on AIM s required to state on its website
which corporate governance code it applies, how it comples
with that code, and wheret departs from its chosen corporate
governance code an exglanation of the reascns for doing so
({Corporate Governance Statement)

THE CLINIGEN APPROACH TO GOYERNANCE

The Board has elected to report against the UK Corporate
Governance Code as we believe that it encompasses the bosl
practice in UK governance At ts heart, the Code emphasises
the va'ue of good carparate governance to long-term
sustainable success and this fits with cur own carpcrate ethos
Although AIM Lsted companies are not required to comply
with the Code (Untke those with a prermium hst:ng on the Main
Market), the Board's elect on to follow it underpins our belef
that effective corporate governance assists the delivery of the
Group's corporate strategy, the management of risk and the
generation of shareholder value Good governance 1Improvaes
Board efficiency, boosts investor confidence, reduces cost

of capital and helps protect our shareholders long-term
interests Chinigen valuas corporate governance Pughly, not
only 1n the boardroom bat across the wnoie obusiness of

the Group

Whilst the Chimigen Board follows both the Code and AIM
Rules when ensuring that the highest stardards of governance
are met, we are a'so influenced by our corporate culture and
our Company purpose Our culture, which encompasses the
values of excellence teamwork, putting patients first, ethics
and integrity 1s known internally as the "Chiniger Way as
referenced in the ESG section on page 32 Qur Commpany
purpose of ‘Right Medicine, Right Patient. Right Time’ 15 set
out -nour Strategic Report on pages 8 to 11

BOARD ACTIVITIES AND THE GOVERNANCE, CULTURE AND MISSION INFLUENCES

THE UK CORPORATE

BOYERNANCE CODE

CONSIDERING AND
COMMUNICATING
WITH STAKEHOLDERS

RISK MAKAGEMENT

GOVERNANCE REPORT 63

The foliowing section cuthnes in broad terms how the Board
has managed and appled standards of corporate governance
that are appropnate for the Group's size and circumstances

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY PURPOSE

Chrigen s ted by an effective and eatreprenesunal Board wh ch
establishes the vision and strategy for the Group ana takes
responsitility for the long-term success of the Company The
individual members of the Board have equal responsibility for
the overail stewardship, management and performance of the
Group and for the approval of its long-term objectives and
strategic plans

Tre Board 15 responsiple to the Company s sharehclders, and
other stakeholdears, with its main cbhjactive to increase the
sustainable value of assets and long-term viability of the
Company. The Board reviews business opportun tigs and
determinas the risks and contral framework. It also makes
decisions on budgets, Group strategy and major capital
expenditure. The day-to-day management of the business

s delegated to the Executive Directors and the Executive
Management Team

The Board has a schedule of matters specfically reserved for
s approval twhich s reviewed annually) and follows an annual
work schedule which s designed (o ensure that all matters,
which fall under its remrt, are considered at the appropriate
umes of the year Matters ars delegated tc the Board
Committees, Fxecutive Directors, Executive Management
Team and senmor management where appropriate and

there 15 an effective feedoack loop in place to ensure that
the Board has cantinuous avers:ght on progress The
schedule of matters reserved for the Board and terms of
reference for each of its Committees can be found on the
website www.clinigengroup.com

CULTURE -

MONITORING THE THE CLINIGEN WAY

PERFORMANCE OF THE
BUSINESS

EXTERNAL o SETME ) INTERNAL
INFLUENCES >\ dmaret BOARDACTIVITIES smateer | < INFLUENCES

OVERSEEING
CORPORATE
CULTURE

CONSIDERING
STRATEBIC
DISPOSALS

COMPANY PURPOSE -
RIGHT MEDICINE,

APPROYING
BUSINESS PLANS
AND BUDGETS

RIGHT PATIENT,
RIGHT TIME
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT contiuen

MATTERS CONSIDERED BY THE BOARD IN 2021 INCLUDED:

TOPIC DISCUSSIDR CONSIDERATIONS DELEGATION AND FEEDBACK
STRATEGY Strategy Review The generation and preservat on Day-to-day mplementation of
Acquisitions, d:sposals of Company value the strategy s delegated to the
and earp-outs Executive Management team
The CEQ provides a detalled
report on progress at each
Board meating
GULTURE ESG/Sustanability The necessity that our Directars. - The Sustairability Steering

Approval of a Human Rights Pohicy
Approval of a Supplier

Code of Conduct

Review and approval of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015
Staterment for 2021/22, including a
Modern Slavery Risk Assessment
for 2021

Agreeing the Cliniger Valuirg
Diversity’ Commitment

the wider workforce ard thosea
comparies and individuals we
work with exhibit beraviours ana
actions which fit weth the
Company's culture The need to
ensure that ail who work for
Chirigen cammit to creating a
workpiace that maximises the
patental of all pecp g and where
everyone s vaiued and fesls
empowered to contnbute to our
coentinued SUCCess

Group s tasked with
operationabsing our
sustamatility framework, This
group reports to the Board at
regular intervals

The Group's HR and legal teams
monitor deve.opments in the
field of human r.ghts, modern
siavery and employment law to
assess any Impact on the rights
of the waorkfarce, our customars
or stakeholders

The procurement team ensures
that the cormpames we work witn
comply with our Supplier Code
of Conduct and report back to
the senior laadershup of there are
any 1ssues or discrepancies

FINANCE

- Approva of tne financial

statements and tracing updates

- Arnual budgef

The need to provide transparent
and accurate information to the

market and the need ta ensure that

the Company gererates ana
preserves va'ue over toe long term

The Audit Committes reviews
the financia’ statements and
relevant market announcaments
before mawking recommendations
to the Board

The CED and the CFC presenrt
tne nudget to the Boara for
scrutiny and challenge and
report financia. performance
against budget at each Board
meeting

RISK AND
INTERNAL
CONTROL

- External and Interna

Audit cians

Tne need far the Board to establisn

formal and transparent policies
and proceddres to ensure the
effectiveress of its 'nternal
controls systems and the integrty
of finanwial statements

Tne Audt Commitize scrunnises
the plans ano the performance
agairst plan befare making
recormmeandations to the Board

GOVERNANCE

Consideration of the Directars
duties under Section 172 of
the Compnanias Act 2006
Montonng of developments
wethir the sphere of corporate
governance

To ersure hign standards of
gavernance and adherence to
apphcatble regulations throughout
the Group

The General Counse' and
Company Secretary is tasked
with mon-toring corparate
governance developments and
reparts to the Board anany
significart 'ssues of relevance to
rhe Group She also provides
training ard information papers
on governarce topics at regular
Intervals



TOMC

DISCUSSION

CONSIDERATIONS
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DELEGATION AND FEEDBACK

SHAREHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

Annvestor relations report s a
standing item o0 Board agendas
Review of nvestor presentations
Discussions on any meetings
inchwvidual Diractors have had
with sharenolders

Recognising the neea to ensure
that investors are provided with
timely and accurate information
and that there I1s a process by
which the views of the investors
can be fad back to the Board

The CED and the Investor
Relations Director take
responsibility for the investor
relations program, ensuring that
investors have apportumties to
rmaet with the Board, where
appropnate. and have tner
views relayed to the Board for
consideration.

WORKFORCE
ENGAGEMENT

Reqular review of the ootpatr
frorm the Peakon employeae
engagement platform
Presentation by the Workforce
Engagement Director on his
program of wark for the year

The naen for the Board 1o ensiire
that the workforce s engaged 135

aligned with the Campany cuture
and that the Board 15 alert to any

concerns employees may have

The Warkforce Engagement
Cirector, along with the SVP HR
are tasked with ensuring that the
views of the workforce are
communicated to the Board ana
with ongoing communication to
the workforce abbout how the
Board has considered and acted
on feedback.

The Workforce Engagemant
Director ensures that the views
of the workforce are taken inte
consideraton during Board
discussions

OTHER KEY
STAKEHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

Ongomg consdaration of how
any decision made by tne Board
w llimpact the Company s

key stakehalders

Trg need to consider all
stakeholders when making
strategic decisions

The Executive Directors and
Executive Management Taam
are required to demonsirate
consideration of tne Company’s
key stakehaolders when putting
proposals to the Board

The impact of the Company's
actiaties onits key stakeholders
are Included in any review of
the significant nisks faced by
the Company

AGM OUTCOMES

Review of voting at the 2020 AGM

Recagrising the need to take into

account any significant numoers of
votes against any of the resolutions

at the Company's AGM,

Moritoring of votes as they are
cast by the General Counsel
and Company Secretary who
updates the Board ragularly on
any dissent.

The votes cast in favour of each
of the resolutions put to the
2020 AGM were well over B0%
of total votes cast

WHISTLEBLOWING

Approval of the Freedom to Speax

Up Policy including an anonymaous

errall function avallable to all
employees globasly,

Recognition that employees and

contractors must be aole to access
a means of reporting any concerns

of Hllegality or wrongdoing at
work, This systarm must provide
anonymity for users If this s
desired

The Audit and Risk Committee
ragu'arly reviews any reporfs
which come up through the
Freedom to Speak Up system
and. where necessary, would
escalate these up to the Board,
The legal tearm monitors the
systern and would escalate any
serious matters which come to
ight between regular Audit and
Board meetings

CONFLICTS
OF INTEREST

Directors are required to declare
any conthcts of interest an any
matter to be discussed at the
beginning of each Board meeting

The need for Directors to avold
situatiora' conflicts of interest
and recuse him/hersel® from any
discussions where a conflict of
interest might arise

Any conflicts or potential
conflicts of interest are dealt
with at the time they arise.
The Board does not delegate
this responsibility

RECORDING OF
ANY MATTERS
OF CONCERN

Any matters of concern expressed
by any Board member will be
included in the minutes of that
meesting.

The necessity to ensure that
minutes accurately reflect the
wiews of the Directors including
any that conflict with the general
CONSENSUS

The General Counsel and
Company Secretary produces
accurate minutes

These are reviewed by all Board
mermbers before they are
approved.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT conriuep

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Nominatior Committee, Audit
and Risk Comrittee, and Remuneration Committee. each
having separate duties and responsibilities Reports from
each of these commilttees can be found on pages 69 to 85

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Tha Board meets or a formal kasis regularly throughout the
year and met eught fimes in the year ended 30 June 2027

The Committee meetings are scheduled arouna tne Boara
meetings Agendas Committee papers and other appropriate
information are distributed prior to each meeting to allow the
Board 1o meet its dulies 1he non-executive directors meat
regularly without management present

Moving forward the Audit Carmrmittes shalt meet regularly witn
an extarnal auditor (ncluding once at the planning stage
before the audit and once after the aud t at the reporting
stage) and. at least once a year, meet with the external auditor
without management baing present, to discuss the auditor's
rermit and any 1ssues artsing from the audit

The Directors attendance during the year ended 30 June 2021
was as follaws

AVDITAND RISK REMINERATION HONIHATION

BIKRD TIAMITIER EAMMITTEE CIMMITIER

S Chilton 3 3! 2! 4
N Kehear 2 3’ e A1
P Allen 82 3 4 3]
J Hartug”’ 3 3 3 3
I Nicholsen El 3 4 5]
A Hyland 8 I 4 2!
A Boyd a 3! - 2!
S Curran’ 1 - - |

DIVISION DF RESPONSIBILITIES

There s a clear division of responsibilities hetween the
Chairman, the CEQ of the Company and the Senior
Independent Diracter The Board includes an appropriate
combination of Executive and Non-Executive directors so that
no ong individus’ or small group dominates dedision maxing

The roie of tne Chairman 1s to lead ard manage the Board
2n5ur Ng the Board's effactiveness in al aspacts He ensures
the active engagerment by all Board members promoting

a culture of challenge, openness and scrutiry The CEQ
manages the Group's business and deve'ops 1ts strategy

Tha CEQ leads tne senior managemeanT tearm in dal varing the
Group's strategic objectives The Senior Independent D rector
(S0 serves as a sodnding board for the Chair and acts as an
intermmedhary for other Directaors They haold annual meaings
with non-executives without the Chair present. tc appraise
the Chair's performance They are a'so avalable 1o meat with
fellow non-executives on other such cccasions if this proves
necessary Rale descrintions of the Chairman CEQ and SID are
avalable on the Company s webs te www.clinigengroup.com.

The Workforce Ergagemert Director s the Nan-Executive
Diractor tasked with helping to ensare that tha views and
concarns of the warkforce are prought to the Board and
taken into account

The Non-Executive Directors responsiollities are to challengs,
guide and contribute towards the Group's strategy, and to
challenge the financal contro's and systems around risk
managemeant to ensure that are suitably robust. They are
tasked with appointing Executive Directors if and when
vacancies arise and they are requ-red to hola the incumbent
executives ara management to account The Chairman
gnsures that the Non-Executive Directars meet at least orce

a year for discussion without management present. Non-
Executive Directors are reauired to devote a mimmurn number
of hours per annum to ther roies on the Clinigen Boara and
this 1s set cut in their letters of appointment Directors are
required ta gamn prior approvat for any addiional external
appointmerts The Code sets out crteria designed to assist
the Board in determiring whether there are circumsrances that
might affect or could appear to affect a Directar’s judgemeant
and therefore therr iIndependence As required by the Code.
half the members of the Board are deemed to be indenendant

The Company Secretary, who s alsc the Group's General
Counsel. supports the Board and agvises or a.l governance
matters ard along with the Chairman, ensures that tne Board
has the palicies, processes, iInformation and resources to
function effectively She schedules the Board meetings,
ansuring that sufficient time s allowsd to carsider all the
relevant agenga items All Directors have access to the advice
of the Company Secretary and her appamtment s a matter
for the Board

BOARD COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

The Board believes that it has the right combination of
skills and experiepce among As members and the memoers
of the senior management team Biographies are set out on
pages 62 to 63

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Board continually assesses its membership to ensure i has

the necessary qualtes reguired to operate within a robust

governance structure which the Board believes fits the

requirements of the Group During the year the Board

strengthened its membership with the appoimmtment of Sharon :
Curran as an indeperdent Non-Executive Director Sharor will

take over as Char of the Remuneration Cemmittee when lan

MNichalson steps down from the Baard in Nowvember

Peter Allen. independent Nan-Executive Chawrman

{Chairman }, wha served the Company for nine years as

Charman of the Board stepped down on 1 September 2028

and lan Nicnolson, who has also served for @ years, will be

standing down at the Company's AGM N November 202)

Elmar Schnee, who was appointed to the Board on 4 August

2021 was appointed Charmar on 1 Septemier 2021, lan

sohrson was also appoinied to the Board on 3 August 2021
and serves as the Company s Semior Non-Executive Director

Nick Keher stepped down from the Board or 24 Augast 28021

Detalls of the pracess fallowed for both apoointments and the
work underta<en arcund success on planning within tne Group
15 set out In the Nomination Comrmittee report on page 69

2021 BOARD EVALUATION

njuna 2012, the Board conducted an external'y fazilitated

evaluation and the recommendatiors of that repart were

set outin the 2020 anmug! report. The Board has not I
conducted an evalualior in tne year ander revew ard further

detalls on the reascns for this arg incluged ir tne Cha rman’s

introduction to this renort

A% reguired by the Code all D rectors, apart from ian Micholson 4
whao s stepping gown, wi | offer themiselves for eection or
re-glection at the AGM



BOARD COMPOSITION

BOARD TENURE

BOARD GENDER DIVERSITY

SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM GENDER DIVERSITY

APPOINTMENT PROCESS
SCOPING

NOMINATION COMMITTEE DISCUSSION
{both scheduled and ad hoc meetings including
Executive Directors where appropriate)
CONSIDERATIONS - Icdertification of a vacancy
- The needs of the orgarisaticn,
currently and 1in the future
- The personal skills and
qualfications reguired
The dynam:cs of the current Board

e

APPOINTMENT OF A HEADHUNTER
CONSIDERATIONS - Market reputation
- Reach
- Understanding of the Chrigen cu'ture
and company purpose
SEARCH

PRODUCTION OF A LONG LIST
Q CONSIDERATIONS - Skillset
- Experience
- Gender, ethricity, and background
diversity

PRODUCTION OF A SHORT LIST
CORSIDERATIONS - Specific skills

- Experience
- Potential for overboarding

BOARD MEETINGS WITH THE SHORT-LISTED CANDIDATES
CONSIDERATIONS - Cultural fit
- Aoty to challenge

APPOINTMENT

CONSIDERATINS - Due Diligence findings

%ﬂ NCMINATION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION T0 THE BOARD

PST APPOINTMENT

i INDUCTION PROGRAMME

CONSIDERATIONS - Chrector's duties and responsibilities
- Fammar-sat on with the business
- Meetings witn key employees

GOVERNANCEREPORT 69

HOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee 1s Elmar Schnee
(previously Peter Allen), with Sharon Curran (and previously
John Hartup)y and lan Nicholsen being the other memibers of
the Committee Tha Committee meets at such times as the
Chairman of the Committee requ res The Committee met six
timeas during tne year to discuss successson planning and
Board composition

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The primary role of the Committee 15 regularly to review

the structure, size and composition of the Board. give full
consideration to succession planmng for Directars and

other senior executives and evatuate the balance of skills
knowledge, experience and independsence on the Board When
considering succession plannng. the Committee s cognisant
of the desirabiity to promote diversity of gender, social and
etnaic backgrounds, and cagnitive and persanal skills The
terms of reference for the Commuttee can be found on the
Company’s website www.clingengroup.com

BOARD CHANGES

At the AGM N Novernber 2020, John Hartup steoped down
from tme Board. John had been on the Board for over & years,
and during that period had served as Senior Independent
Director. Workforce Engagemeant Director and a member of
the Audit and Risk, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees

During the year the Comm.ttee considered the appointment
of a new Non-Executive Director and was assisted in 1ts work
by an external headhunter. RSA Following a formal, rigarous
and transparent procedure (set out below), the Commuttee
was pleased to recommend the appointment of Sharon Curran
to the Board Sharon has significant experience i the
pharmaceutical sector and the expertise she brings from the
industry and other company boards fitted the criternia scoped
out by the Committes Sharon has also been identified as the
successor to lan Nichalsor, as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee when lan steps down from the Board 1in November

There have been a number of changes to the Board since the
vear end Elmar Schinee. jcined the Board on 3 August 2021 as
an ndependent Non-Executive Directar and designated
successor to Peter Allen as Chairman Peter Allen then
stepped down from the Board on 1 September 2021 having
served 2 years as Chairman

lar Johnsan jomned the Boaro on 3 August 2021 lan's
appointment was suggested by one of the Group's major
shareholders and the Board and Nomimnaticn Committee,
having undertaken extensive due diligence, agreed that his
appointment was appropriate. It was also agreed that lan
himself was aligned with the Group's culture and would be
pravide the necessary rigour and chailenge in the Board room
Given these factars and having only recently considered ather
canchdates for a non-executive role, In the process to appoint
Sharon Curran the Board did not use the services of an
external headhunter ar consider a longlist of candidates lan
was also been appointed Senior Independent Director, a role
he took aover from Anne Hyland who stepped into the position
temporarily, followirg the departure of John Hartup

Nick Keher stepped down as a Diractar of the Company on
25 August 2021 He has agreed to remamn in the business and
will facilitate a smooth handover once his successor 15 founa

lan Nichalson, who joined the Board in 2012, will be stepping
down from the Board at the AGM lan has served on the Audit
and Risk, Remuneration and Nomination Committees,
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

WERE
~ CONNECTING
RISK & CONTR

THE GLOBAL PANDEMIC HAS

HEIGHTENED THE NEED TO

MAINTAIN A ROBUST SYSTEM

OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK

MANAGEMENT TO ENSURE THE GROUP e vvanp
CONTINUES TO REMAIN RESILIENT,  2uarons
AGILE AND IN CONTROL. e

COMMITTEE MEETINGS ~ ATTENDANCE

J 100«

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
AUDITAND ISK
COMMITTEE
& Hyland 3
4 Hartup 3
I Nicholsan 3
S Currany’ -
COMMITTEE HIGHLIGHTS

- Assessment of the key estimates and
sdgements used in respect of the half
and full-year results.

- Oversaw the establishment of a new
Internal Audit function, including the
appointment of a new Group Head of
Internal Audit and Risk, and BDO LLP
as a co-source partner following a
competilive tendering exercise.

- Reviewed the enhanced process for
identifying and managing risk and
completed a full review of the principal
risks and how they are mitigated.

- Supported the Board In reviewing
and approving the Group’s new ESG
model, including how climate risk and
oppoertunities will be assessed
and reported In preparation for TCFD
disclosure in next year's Annual Report.



STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

I am pleased to prasent the Audit and Risk Committee's (( tha
Committea’ ) report for the yvear ended 20 June 2021 Thes
repart sets out detalls of the activities undertaken by the
Committea during the pernod. in order to discharge its
responsik hthies inrelaticn to supporting the Board inits
oversight and monitoring of tne ropustness and integrity

of financial reporting, and in gaining assurance cn the
effectiveness of the risk management ana internal control
systermn place at Chingen

The glcbal pandemic has haightened the need to mamtam
a3 robust system of internal contral and risk managemeant to
ansure that the Group remains resihent, agile and 1n control
Asa Committes we have continued ocur waork on the
assential oversight of firancial reporting internal contral
and nsk managemenrt systems, including overseeing the
implermmentation of a naw cortrol attestat.enn relation to
Internal Contrals over Financial Reporting (iCFR'), the
introduction of an enhanced approach to risk management,
and the commencement of assurance activities over key areas
of risk such as cyber. data privacy and IT general canrtrols

wWhilst the pandemic has impacted the Group’s financial
performance during the year, we have continued to operate
with minimal disruption to cur supply chain operations,
adapting cperational pracesses where required to enable
employees to wark safely whilst ensurning supply to our
customers | am pleased to report that throughout this
challenging year, the Group's governance and internal controls
over financial reporting have continued to operate as intended
In adaition, the introduction of 3 new Internal Audit functionn
October 2020 has increased the Group's focus. capability and
capacity over assurance.

Looking ahead. tha Committee wib continue to rmanitar the
potential impact of the pandemic on the financial performance
of the business whilst mantaining a strong focus cn internal
controls and the developing maturity of tne Group's risk
management approach We will also monitor the cevelopment
of plans inreadiness for the changas reguirad to meet the UK
Sovernment's proposals coming out of tne "‘Restoring Trust in
Audit and Corporate Governance' consultation

GOVERNANCE REPORT n

THE PURPOSE AND FUNCTION OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

Purpose

The role of the Auoit and Risk Committee 1s to monitar and
reviaw thewntegrity of financial information and to provide
assurance to the Board that tne Group's internal controls
and rnisk management processes are appropriate and
regularly reviewed We also cversee the work of the external
auditar approve ther remuneration ard recommend their
appomtrnant Inadditbion to the d sclosure requirements
relatng to audit committees under the Code this report sets
out areas of significance and particular focus for the
Camrmitiee

Membership, meetings and attendance

The membership of the Committes, together with
appamntment dates and attendance at meetings, are detalled
on page 70, Sharon Curran joined the Committes on her
appointment to the Board in April 2021 All Cammittee
members are Non-Executve Drectors

The Board considers that all members of the Committee are
independent and have competencies relevant to the sector
Imwhich the Company opearates Anne Hyland, as Charr. 13 a
Chartered Accourtant with over 25 vears financial, risk and
commercial expenence in histed companies. The Board has
determimead that the Group meets the Code requirerments for
the Cammittee to include at least one member with recent and
relevant financial experience The biographies of all Committes
rmembers are detaled on page 62 to 63,

Meetings are attended by the members of the Committee and
others who attend by invitation. being principally the CEC,
CFC, Group Financial Controller. General Counsel & Company
Secretary, and the Group Head of Internal Audit and Risk.
Cther members of executive management may be invited to
attend to provide insight or expertise In relation to speacific
matters The PwC Engagement Leadar and other
representatives of the external auditor are aiso invited o
attend Committes meetings tc present their reports on the
interm results and full-year audit They also present their
oreposed audit plan to the Committee

Inaddition, the Committee Chair meets with the Group Head
of ‘nternal Audit and Risk and the external audit Engagemert
Partner outside of the Committee meetings to obtan a full
understang of the key agenda itemns, enabiing these subjects
to be discussed meaningfully at the meetings
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MAIN ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE At cach meenng. tne Commities reviews the following items
The Comrrittee has met three tmes since the tast Annual routinely,

Report was issued These meetings were scheduled meetings status of statutory audits and reporting.

and are generally imed to comnade vath the financial reporting - theinterral audit progress report. and

tirmetable of the Company The annual program of work ensures the strateqic risk register

the Committee considers stancing ‘tems of business a:cngside

any exceptional matters that may anse during the year The table below shiows the full breadth of Commitree activity

during the year

TOPIC FYZOMAIN ACTTVITIES ARD KEY AREAS OF FOCHS

PURPOSE AND FUNCTION Reviewed the Committee's terms of reference

UFTHE EUMM'TTEE - Reviewed the effectiveness of the Commitiee

FINANCIAL REPUR"NG - Reviewed and conaiderad the half-yvear review memaorarcum prepared by the exterral
auditor

- Reviewed the Group's pre imirary statement, draft Annual Report for the year ended
30 June 2021 and management presertation to investors
- Reviewed the annual and Palf-yzarly finarcial reports and related statements including
clanty and completeness of disclosures and use of aliernative perfermance measdres
Discussed the key findings of tne external auditor on the interom and annual consolidated
financial staterments
- Revewed the iIndepenaance objectivity, performance and effectiveness of the extermal
auditor
Reviewed tne infegrity ana consistency of the key accounting ,udgerments ir determining
half-year and full-year results
- Considered * the Annual Report and Accounts taken as & whole are fair balanced and
understandable
Considered the audit memorandum prepared by the externa auditor incluaimg
- review of arcounting treatmert of non-urderlying items
- assessment of acquired ‘ntangible assets and goodwill including irrparrment
assessments undertaken
- commentary on the gengral contro' environmenr: acroess the Group
- Reviewed the gong concern and viaty ity statemeants
- Reoviewed tne Group s accounting for tha divestment of the UK Specials Marufacturmg and
Aseptic Caompouncina businass during the year

INTERNAL CONTROLS - Owversaw plans by Internas Aucht to implement a new cartral attestation process in support
of the ICFR

AND RISK MANAEEMENT - Reviewed and erndarsed plans to enkance the Group's approach 1o enterprise risk
management
Reviewad the Group's stated panoipal rnisks and uncertainties

INTERNAL AUDIT - Appointed a rew Group Head of Intermal Audit and Risk to builla capacity and capaoility in
respect of the irternal control and risk management framework
- Appomnted BDO LLP as Clnigen's co-source internal audit service provider following a
caompetitve tendering exercise
- Considered and approved the Group 'nternal Audtt Plan and Strategy
- Rece ved and approved the Irternal Audit Charter
- Rece ved perod c progress reports on nteqnal audit and risk managemeant

EXTERNAL AUDIT - Reviewed and approved the external aud tors ha'f-yearly plan
- Reviewed and approved the external aud tors full-year external audit strategy
- Rev-ewead the findings frem the external aud ¢ incwuding financial jludgemenrts and nternal
contro obsarvatians
- Reviewed external auditor s performarce and effectiveness throughout the financial year
- Reviewed extenal auditor s indecendancs and assoc:ated nor-audit fees




FINANCIAL AND NARRATIVE REPORTING

All significant matters that the Committee considered during
the year were supportea by relevant justification papers and
were fully discussed so that due and appropriate consideration
was aiven before any decsion was aporovad

FINANCIAL FUDGEMENTS

The Committee reviewed poth the half-year and full-year
reporting and carafully considered the key judgements
apphed im areparation of the consolidated fimancial statements
including the annual impairment raview of goodwi |,

IrmEaEr el reviews Ton inilangible assers, the revenus
recognit'on estimates for sale of products wholesale the
Managed Access judgment of beng a principal. estimates of
contndgent consideration payable for 1Qone, and the basis for
the allocation of goodwill and irtang.bles in the calculation of
loss on sales of the UK Compounding business, Further detalls
of these judagments and estimates are detated in note 2 of the
financial statements

The Committes gave particular attention to significant matters
where judgement was involved, which were complex in nature
or where alternative performarce megsures (APMs 3 were
provided to enhance investors’ understanding of the
underiying performance The Group uses various non-SAAS
AFPMs wathin internal management reporting. the Half-Yeariy
Report and the Anrual Report, The abjective of these APMs s
to isolate the impact of exceptional. one-off or non-trading
re'ated items to allow the Board ard users of the accounts

to understand better the underlying performance of the
business The Group also uses constant exchanga rate growth
percertages to eliminate the impact of exchange rate
fluctuations ana to show the underlying business growth
These matters were well supported by Dapers provided by
managerment and were specifically reviewed and agreed by
the external auditor in ther reports to the Commiettee and N
related discussIons

GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENTS

The Committee reviewed the Group's gomng concern and
viability statements set out on page 87 of the Governarce
Reoort. In cansidenng tne viability statement the Committes
pad particular attention to the robustness of the stress testing
scenanoes the cash flows forecast by the Group and the
cammitted bank facdities avallable The Committee agreed
that the process be amended this financial vear to disclose the
impact of COVID-19 on trading as a pr ncipal risk and to
develop additional viability stress testing scenarnies The
external auditor reviewed management’s assessment and
discussed this review with the Committes

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE STATEMENT

The Cormmittee considered this Annual Report and Financral
Statermnents 2021, taken as a whole. and concluded that the
disclosures. as well as the processes and controls underlying
its production, were appropriate and recommended to the
Board that the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021
s fair, balanced and understandable while providing the
necessary information to assess the Company's position and
performance, and strategy.

GOVERNANCEREPORT T3

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board retains overall responsibility for the managemeant
of the Group’s Internal Control Framewaork ( ICF') and

risk managemaeant systams. and has delegated tne ongoing
monitoring and review of the effectivenass of the Group's
internal controls to the Commuttee. During the year. the Group
has continued to rev.ew and matura its approach 1o nternat
cantrol and nsk management, faciitated thrcugh the
introduction of a rew Intarnal Aud-t functhion

The Group's nternal cantrol and nsk management

frameaworloincludes

- areveew of maragement's assessmeant over tne
effectivenass of the internal control framework:

- considerauon of Internal Audit’'s reporting and assurance
provided across Chimigen’s rnsks and controls,

- areview of the gong concern and viabiity statements
togetner with the financial stress testing conducted to
support thesa statements. and

- anongong review of baseline financial cortrols and
maragement attestations on their effect venass across
the Group Ounng the year this has included the phased
deployment of a ‘control attestation’ process to obtamn
management representations over the design and operatng
effectiveness of ICFR Ths process will continue to evolve
during the naw firancial year, extend ng out tonclude 1T
General Controls ( /TGO and key aperational compliance
controls nopreparation for addressing the potential
requirements ansnrg from the BEIS corsultation on
Rastoring Trustin Audit and Cerporate Governance'

Further detalls in respect of the Group’s risk management and
irternal contro! framework are provided an pages 52 to a1 of
the Strategic Report, along with the principa’ risks, controls
and mitigating actiors and emerging risks The Board's
statements on the effectivenass of these processes are

prov ded on page 56 of the Governance Report

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group estakblished a new Internal Audit function during
the year, appointing an n-house Group Head of Internal Audit
and Risk in October 2020, Interna!l Audit's responstbilities
inctude supporting management 1n assessing and mitigating
risks to protect the business delivering the audit plan and
repart-ng on the effectiveness of the systems of internal
control Management continues to remain responsible for
establishing and ma.ntarmming an appropriate system of risk
identification and interna: contro! and for the prevention and
detection of irreguiarities and fraud

Internal Audht operates under 3 ‘co-source’ model. with
additional resourcing and capacity provided by BOO LLP. who
were appoimnted In Dacember 2020 following a competitive
tender process The adopt:on of a co-source maodel enables
the Group to access
a diverse range of subject matter experts to provide
targeted supoort in those areas considerad to be high risk
and complex such as data onvacy, cyber security and
contract compl ance: and
- BDO's team of globai internal auditors across those
territories that we operate within

A three-year plan to develop the Internal Audsit function in ine
with orojected business growth has been approved, including
Increasing the capacity and capabiity of the functicn
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Internal Audit Plan

Imternal Aucht operates a three-year risk-basad assurance
plan which seeks to provide balanced coverage of the Group's
stratecpc and operationa: risks ang activities, The plan s
supported by a documented "Audit Un verse which mags risks
to the Group's divisions and areas of act.vity and provides
Coverage across areas considered to have a matenal fimancal,
cperational and compliance risk associated with them

The ptan was prepared following wide consultation with 3
range of key stakeho'ders It consists of a rolling program of
core assurance activitias, categorised as either routine’
(cychcal), nsk’ (specifically linked 1o a Group princinal or
operat onal risk), or reqguest’ (ncluded following a specific
request by management) Anagile approach to assurance
activity will be deployed 1o ensure new risks new 3cquis.tions
and/cr areas of major business change are cansidered for
inclusion. The annual internal audit plan, which defines the
specific assurance wor« to be delivered each calendar yvear 15
developed from tne three-year pian 'n Fepruary 2021, the
Commttee approved an interim plan of assurance work
through to 30 June 2027 alongside the full-year annual plan
far the year tc 30 JJune 2022

Thne key areas addressed by Internal Audit through to the
year-end 3G June 2021 included

- cansulting work to docurnent the internal fiinarcal control
framewaork and deploy a phased roll cut of a Group-wide
control attestation orocess.

- |7 control environment,

- data orivacy, and,

- cyber security

internal audit recommendations are communicated o
Fxecutive Sponsor(s) ana the relevant Business Leaders Al
observations ana mprovemanis to systerns. processes and
cantrols are agreed with the sponsor(s) pr or Lo the finalisation
of eacn report Moving into the new financial year the
implementatior of agreed actions wil' Be monitorea ana
reparted monthly Tha Group Head of Internat Audit and Risk
presents the results and corclusions of all assurance reports to
the Committee togather with a crogress repcrt summarnsing
the precading periods assurance act vity

INDEPENDENCE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL AUDIT

The Cornm ttee considerad the effectiveness of the Internal
Audit function and confirmmed that mits opimion, internal auait
nad operated effectively and provided an aporopnate level of
inaependent scrut'ny of the operations of the Group during
the financial year. recogmising the function was only formed in
October 2020. This assessment 1s based upon the following
considerations

- tne Internal Auait Charter approved by the Committee in
February 2021 clear-y articulates tne roie, independence
and authority of Internal Audt,

- the Internal Audit Pian and Strategy presented to the
Committee was risk-based and appropriately inked to the
Group's principal and strategic risks,

- Internal Audit has added vaiue and addtional assurance
over the Group s risk exposures,

- the aobservations and recomm™endations raised oy Internal
Aucht were clearly articulated and concise,

- effective judgement over the materiahty and risk of key
findings was applied

- Internal audii has constructively chalienged management
and displayed ndependence in providing their corclusicns
and abservations

- the dual reporting lines for the Group Yead of Internal Auchs
and Risk 1nto the CFO and Chair of Audit and Risx
Commuttae worked well and did not compromise
independence, and

- the assurance activity delivered was based on a clearly
defined plan supported by comprehensive terms of
reference for each auoit

EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

PricewaternhouseCocopers LLP ¢ Pw( Ywere appantad as the
Group's external auditor effective from June 2013 fo lowing a
competitive tendering exercize The Cammittee confirms that
the statutery aud.t services for the financial yvear under review
were conducted in compliance with the Competiticn anag
Markats Authonty ( CMA Y Order

Pw( agreed thew audit plan with the Cormmm .ttes, which
included ther audit scope kay aud.t ris< areas and mater.ahty
The Cormmittee dscussed the audit p.an win Pw and
approved 1. togethear with the fees proposed

INDEPENDENCE, EFFECTIVENESS AND OBJECTIVITY OF THE AUDIT PROCESS

Independence and objectivity

Both the Board and the external independent auditor (PwC}
have safeguards in place to protect the independence ard
objectivity of the externa auditors These were reviewed Dy
the Committee during the yvear and remain aporopriaie. In
accordance with Internat onal Standards on Auditing (UK}
PwC formally confirmed to the Board s independence as
auditars of the Caompary, Non-audit services reguire approva’
by the Committee

Effectiveness

The Cammittee reviewed the work of Pw during tne year

and concludea that they provide an effect ve audit have

constructive relationships with tne relevant oartigs and that

the Sxternal Audit Engagement Partner provided clear and

strong leadership o the audit team This assessment was

pased upon

- the Cammttea’s own assessmeant of the gqualty of tne audit
plar the rigour of tne audit fincings and conclusions ne
extent to which tne External Aud t Engagement Pariner
understands the business and constructively challerges
maragsmeant and the qua ity and cianty of tine techn-ca’
and QoVEernance review providen,



- feedoack from the Group's Fimance Leadership Team (FLT
and those involved in the audit was scught on the guality of
the external audit process and team covering the following
aspects’

- audit planning and strategy adopted,
- audit execution and conclusion
timealiness and guahty of communication and audit
report ng.,
- efficiency of the audit process ana precedures adopted
- provision of insights and understanding of the Group,

- areport prepared by PwC setting ocut 1Its processes to
ensiere irdepsndence and its copfirmatior of comphance,
and,

- theleve! of non-audit fees as a percentage of the audit fees
pald to the external auditor

The feedback frem management was reported to the
Commitiee at the mesting on 2 September 2021 Based on the
review set out above, the Commettee s satisfied with the
external auditar s Independence affectiveness ard oDjectvity

RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At tre forthcaming Annual Geaneral Meeting (AGM 3 a
rasolution to re-appoint PwC as the external auditor and to
authornise the Committee to set their remuneration will be
propaosed nrecommending the re-appointment of the
external auditor at the AGM the Committes slso considers the
time frame for the tendering of the audit financial year

NON-AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS

The ndependerce of the extermal aucitor s an essential par?
of the audit framework and the assurance that 1z provides In
line with the Revised Ethica' Standard 1ssued by the FRC In
December 2019 the Committes has adoptad a policy, which
sets out a framework for determining whether it s appropnate
to engage the Group's auditor for non-audit services and
pre-approving non-audit fees

The overalt obiective 1s to ensure that the grovision of nan-
audit services does not impair the external auditor’s
independence or objectivity This includes, but 1s not | mited
to, assessing any threats to independence and abjectivity
resulting from the provision of such services. any safeguards in
place to eliminate or reduce these threats to a level whera they
would not compromise the auditor’s independence and
objectivity. the nature of the non-audit services, and whether
he skills and expernence of the audit firm make it the most
suitable supplier of the non-audit service

A summary of audt and non-audit fees inrelation to the year
15 provided in note 5 to the Group's consolidated finarcial
statemeants

KEY AREAS OF COMMITTEE FOCUS IN FY2022

Durng the year the Committee has continued to keep under
review the BEIS consultation on Restor ng Trust in Audit and
Corporate Governance' and thus the impact of likely

regulatary reforms on the Group and role of the Committee.

Management have already started to consider the Group's
reachness in certain areas. for example the potential adoption
of a UK SOX’ approach regarding imternal controls coupled
with the introduction of an annual attestation on the
effectiveness of the ICFR We will detar in next year’'s
Committee report which recommendations we will adopt
(subject to the UK Govarnment publication of the fina’
reforms) and what progress we have made inimplemeanting
them
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In addition to monitorning and keeping under review the
Group’s response to the reforms. the Commuttee's additicnal
planned activities Include

- keeping under review the impact of COVID-12 on internal
controls, sk management and financial reparting,

- receiving updates on the operaticnalisation of the Grouo's
ESG framewaork: and,

- monitoring the development of the Growp's approach to
climate reporting as part of its commitment to repcrt and
cisclose aganst the Task Force on Climate-Related Sinancial
Disclosures CTCFD )Y in 2022

CONCLUSIONS

The Committee has had a productive year providing
aversight of financial reporting, external audit and the furtrer
develocpment of the control and risk environmeants This will
continue as the Group grows and develops in hine with its
strategy. and we will ensure that the internal control and risk
rnanagement capability across the Group continues to mature
as we continue to apegrate in an ncreasinaly challenging
external envircnmeart,

ANNE HYLAND

Audit and Rsk Committee Cha:r
15 Seontember 2027
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REMUNERATION REPORT

WE'RE PROVIDING

ACCOUNTABIL

ITY

T0 SHAREHOLDERS

IN GRDER TO DELIVER THE GROUP'S

STRATEGY, THE COMMITTEE BELIEVES

CLINIGEN MUST CONTINUE T0

ATTRACT, MOTIVATE AND RETAIN

THE HIGHEST CALIBRE TALENTIN 1N nehoson
TH[ SEETUR Cim:mfteaémt".‘malr

15 September 2021

COMMITTEE MEETINGS ~ ATTENDANCE

4 100

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
I ~icholsan 4
P allen 4
A boyland 4
JHartuo’ 3
S Curran’ -

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On benalf of the Board, | am p'eased to present
yvou with the Remuneration Committee’s ('the
Cammittes ) report for the year encaed 30 June 2021

The Committee was chaired by me throughodt the
year and my co-members were Peter Allen and
Anne Hyland Staron Curran also joined the
Comrmettes an 27 Apn! 2021 Tne Commities met
four times formally in 2021

As one of the larger histed companies on the AIM
Tarket the Board and the Committiee taks
goverrance sezriously and this repert 1s put to an
adwvisory vote each year at the AGM. During the year
l'and other members of the Board have engaged
with the Group's largest institutional investors and
proxy vobing agenc 85 Or various governance
matters including remuneration Ergagement with
our stakeholders has been invaluable to the
Ccmmittee. which has taken into ccnsideraton the
alarce of feedpack received The Commitiee also
uses independent remuneration consJltants

to adv'se on best practice and 10 ensure appropriate
disclosure ir this Remuneration Report




‘norder to deliver the Group’'s strategy, the Committee
Celieves Clhinigen must caontinue to attract, mativate

and retain the highest calibre talent in the secter The
Committee therefare must ensure that the remuneration
palcy s apprognate for a diverse and unigue team working
N adynamic and succassful business witn over 1.000
employees in 14 international locations The governance

of the remunsration policy 1s egqually impartant 1o ensure

it 1s approprnate for the size and profile of the Group

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Ihe Group’s financial resu'ls

- Adusted net revenue of £458 ém up 7%
- Adjusted EBITDA of £116.3m, down 10%
- Adjusted EPS down 14% to 55 9p

Headwinds felt by CCVID-12 have centinued to impact mult ple
parts of the business in FY2021 The Products division has been
most sigrificanty smpacted with net revenae fallng in izotn the
Cwned and On-Demand categor.es by 1'% and 18% respactively,
leading to a fallin dwisional EBITDA 11 Services, the ligh number
of business wins and delivery against key projects has led to a 15%
ircrease in net revenue, but due to the orofit rmex of these w ns and
slower thar expected uptake on Managed Access Programs
EZITOA has fallen by 6%

REMUNERATION FCR FY2021

Following the review n September 2020 Snaun Chilton s
annuJal base salary remamed unchanged at £600,000
(ro cnange sirce 1 November 2017) Nick Keher s arinual
base salary ncreased to £330.000

Feflecting the perfarmance in 2021 set aut abhove and tno
performance of the Group over the last three years. arnual
bonus payouts and Lorng-Term Incentive Plan CLTIP ) vesting
for the Executve Directors were as folows

Annual bonus

The Company related performance conditior for the annua

bonus for the last financial year was based on the achievernant

of stretching agpusted Group EBITDA targets (70%) and

strategic objectives (30%) In view of performarce. the

Comrittee has determinea that

- Adjusted EBITDA of £116 3m was below tne threshold
level of £125 6m. resulting 1n 0% cut of 70% payout for this
element

- The strategic objectives for both Shaun Chilton and Nick
Keher were set on an indiv-dual basis and are inked to the
corpoerate, financial, and other non-financia! oly,ectives of the
Group (further detalls are set cut 1In the annual bonus
secthion of this report) In the Cormmittee’s view, tnese
objectives were partially met

- Despite partiai achievement of nan-financal chjectives the
Committee has used its discretion and accordingly Shaun
Chiltor and Nick Keher will not receive bonus

LTIP

Shaun Chiltor was granted LTIP awards in Octoker 2018 This
award wil vest in October 2021, shortly after the reporting of
the results for the 2021 financial year.

The performance criteria and waightings attached o these

awards are as follows:

- TSR performance condition (40%) - the perfarmance period
for this part of the award s due to end on 30 October 2021 -
TSR based on performance to 30 August 2021 was 29% belaw
the Index ard provides an estimated vesting of 0% out of
40% vasting

- Curnulative EPS (40%) - cumulative EPS over the three
financial years to 30 June 2021 period was 175 8p whichis
above the maximurn target of 165.3p and therefore 40% out
of 40% will vest
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- 20% was subject te strategic objectives - for this element
Z20% out of 20% will vest for Shaun Chilton reflecting
strong parsonat performance over the three-year period

- Therefore, 1t 1s estimated that 60% of Shaun Chiiton’'s award
vaoll vest in Qctober 2021 The final vesting position will
depend an the TSR vesting outcome which wiil not be
known until after this repert s signed off The final positien
wil be showrnon next yvear's report

In last year's report it was estimataa that the Qetober 2077
LTIP and November 2017 LTIP would vest at 60% for Shaun
Chilton, The final TSR performarce was below the Indax and
tharefore, wa can confirm that the October 2017 LTIP and
November 2017 LTI both vested at 60% v October and
MNovember 2020

The Remuneration Committee believes tne anpcve incentives
outcomes are fair reflecticns of the Group performance and
shareholder value creation cver the relevant performance
periods

MANAGEMENT CHANGES

On 25 August 202% we anrnounced that N ck Keher stepped
down as a Director

MNick remains an employee and will leave the Group on
27 February 2022 Nick will receive his base salary and
contractual benefits during nis notice period unti” his
termination date

Upon leaving Chrigen, he sha l be treatea as a good leaver for
LTI2 awards granted in 2019 and 2020, as per the plan rules
meaning that these awards would be permitted to vest on g
oro-rata basis to tne terminanan date at the normal vesting
date. subject to the standard performance cord.tions For the
strategic obyjectives component of each award N-ck will receive
half (50%) of the maximurn 20% target He will receve a
termination payment of £181500 as well as payment in ey of
his gccrued annual leave The Committes believe that the
terms agreed in respect of Nick Keher's departure are fair and
in hne with good practice. his terms of employment and his
contribution to the business

The Company wiil proviae reasonable outplacement support
with such costs baing paid diractly to the relevant adwvisors

IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICY IN FY2022

Follow:rg the review i Septamber 2021, Shaun Chilton’s
annual base salary remaned unchanged at EEC0.000
(no change since T November 2017)

Due to the continuing focus and prevalling market practice in

relation to executive remnunaration, the Committee regularly

reviews the remuneration policy to ensure it remans

appropriate for the business Tne Committee has determinad

that the policy does not reqguire fundamental changes to

the way our Executive Directors are remunerated Therefore,

the annua bonus and LTIP schemes will continue to apply

as fallows

- Annual bonus opportunity shall be 100% of salary for Shaun
Chilton and will be based on stretching EBITDA targets with
the baiance based on strateg.c goals

- The Commitiee intends to grant Shaun Chilton an LTIP
award with a face value of 125% of sa'ary 40% of the award
witl be based on T5R 40% based on EPS and 20% based on
strategic objectives The Committee considarad the level of
award in haht of market practices
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE

As one of the larger AIM-listed comparies in the market and
reflecting the Board's approach to governance, Chiniger follows
the 2018 Code on a comply of exprain Dasis

The Code asks companies whern determ.ring 1ts Policy to have
considered the follow.ng six factors

Clarity

- Gur Polioy has a clear aim. to incentivise and reward for the
delvery of our strategy

- There have baen minimai charaes to the Policy over tme,
so itis well understood both nternally and externally
Each component of remuneration s clearly explained in the
Policy table ingiuding 1ts purpose, how (t1s operated the
maxmum poetenttal and any relevart perfarmance measures

- Full disclosure of performance measures and assessments s
provided for shareho ders’ consideration

Simplicity

- Tre Policy reflects standaro UK market practice, witk the
operation of an annual incentive ard a single long-term
share plar, full detals af wruch are set oul in tne Policy table

- Al payments arein the form of cash or Chnigen Group plc
shares, there are ro arafical structures used to deliver
remyunarat-on

Risk

- The Corrmuttee has tne aluiity to use its o scretion to overnde the
formulaic autturns of the ncentve plans £t s falt appropriats

- Malus and clawback orovisions operate in the LTIP plan, providing
the abiity to recover or wihboio payments if appropnate
There s an appropnata mix of finanoial non-finanais! and share
price measures to averd undue rsk-taking

Predictability

- Apprognate individual {and, where recessary aggregate)
Jrmits are set out in the Policy and within the respective plan
rules so outcomes can be predicted
In operaung the Policy, the Committee continaally momitors
tne porformance of in-flight iIncentive awards >0 that 1115 wal
aware of potential outcomes

Proportionality

- The outcomes of our incentive p ans are directly aligned to
the delvery of our strategy

- Cutcomes are assessad agains: multiple mearncs to ersure
performance 15 consdered on a broad basis

Alignment of culture
A key focus of our Policy s long-term sastaimanle performangce
which s reflective aof the business culture

Asan AiM-lsted company we voluntarly seek advisory
sharenolder approval for our Remuneration Report to provide
accountabilty and far shareholders to exaress their views on
the remanaration pohcy and ts mplermentator Al foedbacs
provided by shareholders helps form the Committee s
appraacn fo governance of the remuneration pancy The
Committee welcomes any foedback on the remuneratior
policy If you have any comments then please 1et us know via
Amanda Miller General Counse and Compary secretary
(amanda moller a chrigengroug comy

I hope you find the Remurieration Report useful and the
Commitree looks forward to your continuad support

As an AlM-listed compoany Clrigenis not subject to tne UK
Listing Rules ang makes “ha failowing disclosures vo untart'y

The Group's Remuneration Report will be pJt forward. on an
aclv.sory asis, for shareholder approval at the AGM 10 be held
on 24 November 2021

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneratior polCy has bean corstructed to offer
appropr:ate, campetitive remuneration te attracr, retair and
maotivate senior executives to avold excesswe Or mapproprate
risk-taking and encourage them to implement the Group's
strategy for the benefit of long-term shareholder value

The Board believes in pay for perfarmance aganst challenging
targets and stretcning goals The approach 1s to set base
salaries around the meaian for our comparator aroup A
significart proportion of the total remuneration package 1s
variable and hrnked to corporate performance In sefting
Directers’ remunerat:on, the Committes takes account of

the rerruneratior of other companies of similar size and
complaxty Tre Committes alsa takes into account the

pay and employment conditions of alf our employees

The Remuneratior Commttee defermines the remunerahion
pohcy for the Chairman Executive Diractors and senior
managers The remuneration for the Cnairman is detarmined
by the Committee (with the Cnairman not present for any
discussions). ~he remureration of the Nen-Executive Diractors
15 determinea by tne Chairman and the Executive Directors

The Committee reviews the performance targets regulany

to ensure that they are both chalenging and closely inked

to the Group s strategic priorities Furthermore because a
large part of the rermuneration package s delvered in shares
Execulive Directors are dirtecliy exoosed 1o 1hs same gains or
losses as all otnar shareholders

The Committee ensures thast the incertive structure for senior
exacutives does nat raisa envirgnmental social or governance
nsks by inadvertently motivating irrespans ble behaviour

Part of the annual borus depends unon an assessment of
eacn senior executive's persaonal contributon to Company
measures, ncluding results of the regular employee sarveys
and health anc safety cutcomes

SHAREHOLDERS' VIEWS

The Committee consizlers the views expressad by sharerolders
during the year including a: the AGM. and encourages open
dialogue wiir its largest sharehoalders Inaddiion in
aetermining the ramuaneration policy. the Committee takes
INto accourt guidance 1ssued by snarenolder representative
codies including Tha Investment Association. the Pansionsg
and Lifetime Savings Assocation and Institun.onal Sharenolder
Services (155

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Executive D rectors remunsration consists of five
components to ensure tnere s a balance betweer fixed ard
performance-related remuneration The table cpposite sels
oJdt a summary of our remuneration go cy



TOPIE

PURPOSE AND LINK T0 STRATEGY

ORERATION
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MAXIMUM OPPORTURITY PERFORMANCE METRICS

BASE SALARY

To provide a
care reward for

undertaking the role,

positionad at a level
meaded to redrat
ard retain the talent
reguired to deveion
and deiver tha
business strategy

The Remuneration

Cammittee sets base

salaries taking intc account

a range of factors

inclading

- The ndividual s skr'ls,
performance ard
exaarience

- Internal relativitias and
wider workforce salary
levels

- Externa benchrnark data

- The size and
rasponsibility of the role
The complexity of the
business and
geograghical scope
Econormic indicators

There are no maxmum
levels set although
increaseas wiil narmaliy ben
ne with the typical level of
roreases awarded to other
employeeas at Chinigen and

wilt be a reflectuon of the
indwidual’'s performance

The Remuneratian
Committee may award

Increases above this lavel n

certa n circumstances,
including if there 1s an
increase in the scope of
roles and responsibilities
Base safaries are usually
review2d annualty,

ANNUAL BOKUS

To support the
delivery of tne
Group’s annJal
business pan The
focus s on tne
delivery of the
annua- firancial,
strategic, cusiomer
and people KPis

Parformance targets are
approved annually by the
Remuneranon Committes
The Remuneration
Comm.iteg exercises 1is
(udgement to determing
payout lavels after the year
2nd based or perfermance
against targets This
ensures that the outcarme

s farin the context of
overall Group performance
and against personal goals
For Executive Directors,
20% of any bonus abaove
S0% of salary will be
deferred For example this
would relate to 10% of total
for those recaiving 100%
bonus, 5% for those getling
75% The deferral parnod
will be one year

The maximum award
opportunity N respact of
ary francial year 1s nased
cnrole andis up to 100%
of base salary

Ferformance 1s measured

aga st a range of key financal
metrics. strateqic, customer
and people indicators, and
personal performance Streten
targets arg set for maximum
payout Performance s
measured over 12 months

Ta reward
participants for the
delivery of the
Graup's goals of
driv ng sharenolder
value through
measureas such as
the Group's adjusted
EPS and TSR

sward of shares subject
to performance
measured over a three-
year pericd Performance
targets are set annually
for each three-year cycle
by the Remuneration
Committee Awards are
sublect to review by the
Remuneration Committes
at the end of the three-
vear performance period
to confirm that vesting of
the award s appropnate
Unvested awards can te
reduced or wathheld in
Certan crcumstanceas.

The maximum award
opportunity Is based on
role The maximum award
possibie under the plan
rules 1s usually 125% of
salary but may rnise to
400% in except.onal
circumstances

vesting of the award 15 based

on a combination of the

following performance

measures

- Cumulative Groun ad|usted
EPS compared to targets

- Cumulative Group TSR
compared to FTSE Smal'Cap
Index (ex Investment Trusts).
FTSE 250 Index (ex
Investment Trusts) for awards
granted from 1 July 2019

- Strategic objectives

The sphit between measures,
for each grant.is set annually
by the Remuneration
Committes In 2021, 40% of the
award was based on EPS. 40%
on TSR and 20% on strategic
objectives, The strategic
objectives component can
anly vest 1If a minimum EPS
target 1s achieved In future
vears, the Committee may
choose alternative measures
and waightngs algned to the
strategic prioritigs in place

at the time
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TOPI PURPOSE AND LINKTO STRATERY OPERATION

MAXIMUM OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANGE METRICS

Execulive Drrectors are
auto-enrolled into a
defined contribution
pension plan and ars
offered the aiternative of
a cash allowance Legacy

PENSION

To provide a
competit.ve, flexible
retirement benefit
m a way that does
nat create an
unacceptable level
of financial risk or

cost to the Group ta be honcured

Executive Directors are
provided with a package
of core benefits, including
rrivate healthcare,
health screening death
f1service protection
and revmbursement of
membershig fees of
professional badies. The
Comnany also operates
a sharesave scheme

To provide market-
competitve
maonetary and
nan-monatary
benefits, 1N a
cost-effective
manner, to 85sist
employeas in
carry-ng out ther
duties efficiantly

BENEFITS

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINE

Executive Directors are expected to build and maintain a
scgnificant shareholding in the Company with a mimimum va ue
of 200% of base salary 115 expected that any vestad share
awards are retained (after the sale o any shares for the
payiment of tax) until tho guideling has been acnieved The
Committee wilt moriter the level of Diractors’ shareholdings
regularly

PAYMENT FOR LOSS OF DFFICE

in & geparture event, the Comm ttee will typically consiaer
wrether any elament of bonus should be va d for the finanaial
yvear Generally any benus f paid, will be mited to the period
served duning the financial yvear in which the departure occurs
The Commuttae will consider whether any of the share alerrent
of deferred bonus awarced ar LTiPn prior years should be
preserved ether in full of in part and whether any deferred
cash payments should oeé praserved either in full or 10 part

The Commuittee has a discretiorary approach to the treatment

of leavers, on the basis that the facts ang circurmnstanceas of

each case are unigue The overriding approacn to ocayments

for loss of office 1s to act in the shareholders interests The

default position s that an unvested share award, LTIP or cash

antitlerrant lapses on cassation of employment This provides

the Committea with the maximum flexibility to review the facts

ard circumstances of each case. allowmng different ation

oetween good and bad leavers, and avoiding payment for

fallure When considering a departure event. there are 3

umber of factors whch the Cammittee takes into account

Tnese nclude

- The position under the relavant plan documentation

- Theindividual circumstances of the departure

- Tre perfarmance of the Company/irdividual dunng the year
to date

- The nature of the hangover process

If the Committes. arits discretion, permits an award to vest
N adeparture event, awards which would otherwise lapse

oy defauit may vest either an the normal vesting date or on
cessation of emoloyment under the rules of the recevant plan
These crrcumstances may nclude aeath, injury, ill-health
disamibty, regundarcy or sale of the Company or basress

arrangaments will continue

Employer cantribution
into the Group's defined
contributian pension plan
ofup to 10% of salary

There s no maximum value
of the core penefit package
as this s dependent an the
cost to the Company and
the individuat's
crrcumstances

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board aims to recruit migh-cahbre Non-Fxecutive
Directors, with broad commercial. international or other
relevant experierce Each Non-Execative Director has

an appointment letter setting out the terms of h s or her
appointment They do Not have service coniracts The letter
ircludes membobership of any Board Committees. the fees tc be
pad and the time commitment expacted AopoArments are
for anin tial pericd of three years During that period, ether
party can give the other at least three montns notice of
terrminalion Al Board appointments autormatcally terminate
-nthe event of a Director not being elected aor re-elected by
sharenolders at the AGM each year The appointment of a
Non-Executive Directar 15 terminakle on notice by the
Company without compensation Al the end of tne pernod,
the appomntmenrt may be continued Dy mutual agreament Tre
appoirtment letter also covers matters such as confident ality,
data protection and Climgen s share dealng code

Non-Executive Directors cannot individuaily vote on ther
own remuneration Nen-Executive Director remuneration is
reviewed by the Chairman and the Executive Directors and
chiscussed and agreed by the Board Non-Execcutive Directars
may attend the Boara discussion ut may not part:.cipate in t

Details of the service agreerments for the Execut.ve Directors
and letters of appointment for the Nor-Executive Directors
are set aut below

INEXPIRED TERM

(MONTHS) R RILLING NOTICEPERIOD

ATEF CONTRACT LONTRACT {MONTHS)

S Chilton 3 January 2070 Rolling 12
I'h cholson 1 September 28012 Roling 3
A Hyland 1 January 2018 Roling K3
A Boyd 15 November 2018 Roilng 3
S Curran 27 Apni 2821 Ro'ling 3
E Schnee 3 August 2021 Rol'ing 3
I Jonnsor 3 August 2021 Rolling 3
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REMUNERATION GOYERNANCE

The Remuneration Committes consists of four independent Non-Executive Directors In 2021 Sharon Curran joined the
Committee and. John Hartup left the Committea when he stepped down from the Board in Novermnber Since the year-end Peter
Aller left the Committee when he stepoed down from the Board in September 2CG21 ard Elmar Schnee joined the Committee in
Septemoer 2021 The table below provides each member's attendance record at Comruttes meetngs durng the year, The
Comrmrittee rrambars' biographies are s2t out on pages 02 tc 63

COMMITTEE MEMBER POSITION APPAINTED (RESIGRED} ATTENDANCE
I Nichalsan Committee Chair September 2012 4/4
F Allen Non-Executive Director (September 2021) 474
A Hyland Non-Executive Director January 2018 as4
J Hartup Non-Executive Directer (November 2020} 2/4
S Currar Non-Executive Director April 2021 -
E Schnee Non-Executive Chairman Septamber 2021 -

The key areas of focus for the Remuneration Commuttee durirg 2021 included

- Approved the Remungration Report

- Reviewed and approved UK and internationa' sharesave o.ans

- Reviawed performance conditiors and targats for 2021 bonus and LTIR

- Reviewea 2020 strategic objectives and set 2021 strategic objectives for the Executive Diractors

- Reviewea and agproved the Company's Gender Fay Gan Report

- Reviewed arnd approved base salary increases for the Execunve Directors, sen or managers ara the Chanman
- Reviewed wider market trends and bzest practice reporting in remuneration

- Engaged with the Group's l[argest institutional investors and proxy cecmpanies

The key areas of focus for the Remuneranon Cammittes for the yvear ahead nc-ude

- Prepare ard publsh tne Remuneration Report

- Determine performance conditions and targets for 2022 bonus and LT P

- Review and approve base salary increases for the Executive Board, senior managers and the Chairman

- Consider advice from FIT Remuneraton Consuitants LoP CFIT ) who are independent advisers to the Commttes
- Review and approve the Gender Pay Gap Report

- Determine the remunaration package for a new CFO appoimntment

FIT adv.sed on markeat trends, corporate gavernance. Remuneration Repart dsclosures and on Directors remuneration
arrangements in 2021/22 FIT s a member o the Remuneration Consdltants’ Group and comphas withts Code of Cornduct
which sats cut guidelings to ensure that its advice 1s ndependent and free of undue influence FiT carrnies out no cther work for
Climigen ar its subsicharies

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The table below sets cut the single figure of total remuneration for the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors for 2021
and 2020

pLH] N

tn SALARY/FEES M0KES TP OTHEN THTAL SALARY/FEES BINUS P 1THeR! THtAL
S Chilton 500 - 293 62 955 500 450 377 62 1.439
N Keher 315 - - 23 348 300 225 - 31 556
P Allen 140 - - 3 143 140 - - 3 143
J Hartup 29 - - - 29 70 - - - 70
I Nichclson 7C - - - 70 70 - - - 70
A Hyland 70 - - - 70 70 - - - 70
A Boyd 60 - - - 60 GG - - - 60
S Curran 10 - - - 10 - - - - -

The 2221 J7F Slaars e -ases b the 2oicnz

Afirs
ol N QgL irme T T

£ Faymart = Setot et N Lk Karner T aremie d sl T Eara T oS FS0 Eoter S

Two Directors (2020 two) were mermbers of the defined contribution pension scherme dur.ng the year
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As mentioned on page 77 Shaur Chiton's arnual base salary has rema.ned at £6C0.000 this year (no change since | Novarnber
20175 whilst Nick Keher's annual base salary increased to £330.000 with effect from T January 2021

The amount payable tg the highest paid Director it respect of emo'uments was £955,000 (2020 £1.489.000), comprsing bas.c
salary of £600.000 (2020. £1.050.000). long-term share-based incentives vesting of £293,000 (2020 £377.000) and ather
beneafits of £62 000 (2020 £62.000)

The bhonus and LTIP outcomes are explaired 'n mare detal below

The Executrve Directors were engible to earn ar annual bonus of up to 100% of sa'ary. based on the achievement of stretching
adjusted Group EBITDA targets and strategrc objectives Adjusted Groun EBITDA targets unlock up to 70% of maximum bonus
potential, whilst strateg ¢ obiectives uniock up to 20%

Trne bonus calculatians inrslation to adyusted Group EBITDA for 2021 are st out helow,

THRESHOLD LEVEL OF ADJUSTED GRODP EBITDA TARGET LEYELOF ADJUSTED €RUUP ERITDA WAXINHM LEVEL OF ADJUSTED GRIVP EBITDA ACTUAL LEVEL OF ADIUSTED GROUP EBVTOA FaNS EARNED
™ [ ™ w KR
256 1395 153.5 e 3 0%
40% payable 10G% nayaple 120% payakle

Tne strategis ohjectives determinng the other 20% of tne borus are ser ¢n anindividual basis and are inked to the corporate,
financial. strategic and ather non-financial objectives of tne Group }

Daspite nartisl achievement of non-financial ohiectives the Corrm ttes has used ts discrethion and accordingly Shaun Chiton
and Nick Keher wili not receive bonus

Tha annaal bonuses awarded for the 2021 franoal year wera as follows

TOTRLEINYS
AWARDED N CASHBONUSTOBE  DEFERRED AENUSTD
SEPTEMBER 2021 PAIDIK SEPTEMBER  BE PAIL IN SEPTEMBER
BANUS PAYABLE (RELATWE T 211 0 (RELATING TO I2{RELATINGTO

{111 (4 F SALARY FINANCIALYEAR) 2021 FINANCIALYEAZ) 2071 FINANCIALTERR)
S Chlton o - - -
N Keher 0% - - -

For the 2027 financial year the arnual borus awarded to Shaar Criltor and Nick Kerer was 0% of their base salary

LTIP AWARDS VESTING IN THE YEAR

Qctober 2017 and November 2017 awards

NI cost share options were granted to Shaan Chilton in October 207 and Novemoer 2017 and these wi'l vest in Octoper 2020
and Novemoer 2020 These awards are sub ect to a performance candinan of TSR (40%) for the perad from 16 Qctober 2017 to
16 Octover 2020 ard & November 201/ 10 5 Novemoar 2020 cumualative EPS (40%) for the three finarcia’ years ending 30 June
2020, ana strateg.c o ectives (20%)

WEASHRE THRESHOLD VESTIKE MAIMIM YESTING TTCHIE VESTING {*% OF MAXIMIN)
Relatve TSR Eqgual to the FTSE Irdex plus 15%
SmallCap Index outperformance or
(ex Investment Trusts) hgher Index mnus 18% 0%
EPS growth 5% p.a 10% n.a 12% p a 40%
Sirategic objectives - Broaden service capabiity to strengther market-leading positions
- Utise mterrational platform and Cent relationships 1o exclusive agreaments
- Drive performance of portfoho of acquired assets 20%
GO%

A total performarce score of 60% was achieved by Shaur Chiton mads up of 40% EPS and 20% strateg . cbhjectives
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N1 cost share options were granted to Shaun Chiltoroin October 2018 and these will vest in October 2021 These awards are
subject to a performance condition of TSR (40%) for the penad from 1 November 2018 to 31 October 2021, cumulative ERPS
(4Q%) for the three financial vears ending 30 June 2021, and strategic objectives (20%)

HEASIRE THRESHOLD VESTING MAXININ VESTING WIINE YESTING (% 0F NATIMON)
Relative TSR Egual to the FTSE Index plds 15%
SmallCap Index cutperformance
(ex investrment Trusts) or higher Imdex rminus 29% 0%
EFPS growth S%pa 0% p a. 8% pa 40%
Strategic object ves - expanding portfol.o of acaured product assets
- expanding community of key opimon leaders and customers
furthar uparades to Company s Information technology platforms 20%

Estimatad 60%

It s expected that 80% of awards will vest on 30 Cctecber 2027

LTIP AWARDS GRANTED IN THE YEAR

Awards were granted to Shaun Chiiton and M.ck Keher in Qctober 2020, with vasung of the awards sunject to the performance
conditions as set out below, in October 2023 The sphit between these measures far each grant 1s set annaally oy the
Remureration Committee. 40% of the award 1s basad on TSR agairst the FTSE 250 Index {(ex nvestment Trusts), 40% agairst
EPS growth targets (with a3 5-10% p a. (threshold and max.mum range) and 20% pased on strategic objectives The sirateaic
objectives comoonegnt can only vest if a minimum EPS target 1s achieved

The face value of Shaun Chilton s and Nick Keher's awards was enqua

to 125% of nase salary.

NUMEER 1F AWARDS ANONT #F JASE

GRANTED FACEYALGE' SALARY VESTING DATE

Shaun Chilten 127,442 £750.000 125% 30 Cctober 2023
Mgk Keher 63,721 £375.000 125% 30 October 2023

I e L LA S O L
The performance condibons apply ng ta these awards are as follows

TSR

TSR AGAINST THE FTSE 250 INDEX (EX INVESTMENT TRNSTS) OVER THE PERFORMANCE PERIOD (WHICH 15 THE THEEE-YEAR PERIDZ FOLLIWING THEGRANT DATE)

PERCENTAGE OF AWARDTHAT VESTS

Less than the Index
Equal to the index

Between the Index but less than 15% cutperformance of the Index
on a cumulative basis cver the TSR performance period

Equal to or greater tnan 15% outperformance of the Index on a

0%
25%

Calculated ona straight-line basis
between 25% and 100%

cumulative basis over the TSR performance period 100%

EPS

CUMULATIVE EPS 9YER THE PERFARMANCE PERIAR (WHICH ARE THE THREE FINANCIAL YEARS CAMMENCING WITH THE 12021 FINANCIAL YEAR) PERCENTAGE OF AWAND THAT VESTS

Less than 217 1p 0%
25%

Equaito 217 1p

Between 217 1p and 238 8p
Egual to or greater than 238 8p

Calculated on a straight-line basis
hetween 25% and 100%

100%

Strategic objectives

The element af the award relating to strategic objectves shall only vest If the strategic objectives have been achieved and the
minimum EPS threshold, shown above, 15 acnieved The strategic objectves are based on expanding our portfolio of specialist
oncalogy products, iImproving access to critical medicines through enhancing the service offering, evotving Chnigen’s globa
footorint by expanding our chent base across the range of Servicas and Products.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE AWARDS

Detalls of outstanding share options held by the Executive Directars as part of the LTIP are set aut in the table below

DATE IF SRANT J0JUKE2020 CRANTED EXERCISED LAPSED IGNEA

5 Chilten LTIF - 19 June 2015 - vested 43,811 - - - 43811
LTIF - 30 November 2015 - vested 34,457 - - - 34.452
LTIP - 21 Octokber 2016 - vested 159,893 - - - 159,893
LTIF - 16 October 2017 - vested 34,804 - - 12961 20943
LTIP - & November 2017 - vested 43,630 - - 17452 26,178
LTIP - 31 Octaber 2018 106007 - - - 106,007
LTIF - 28 October 2012 95,238 - - - 95,238
LTIP - 22 October 2020 - 127.442 - - 127442
N Keher LTIP - 29 March 2012 96,756 - - - 96,256
LTIP - 28 October 2019 38,095 - - - 38.095
LTIZ - 22 QOctober 2020 - 683721 - - £63.721
Chinigen Group Sharasave Plan 2,538 - - - 2,538

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The interests of tha Directors over the ordinary share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2021 are as fallows

RUMBER IF SHARE NIMEER BF SHARE
IPTIONS WITH OPTINNS WITHOUT NUMBER OF VESTED
NUMBER OF SHARES PERFRMANCE PERFIRMAMCE ANT UNEXERLISED

AWNED (ETRIGHT CONDITIENS BANDITIONS TRTIONS
S Chilton 330.044 328,687 - 285277
P Allen 52.232 - - -
N Keher 10,100 198,072 2,538 -
I N.cholsor 12.000 - - -
A Hyland 11,858 - - -
F Schnes 10,000 - - -
I Jobnson - - - -
A Boyd 7000 - - -
5 Curran - - - -
Total 433,234 526,759 2538 285277

There has been change in the interests set out above between 320 June 2027 ang 15 September 2021 as foilows Peter Allen
acquired 5,000 ordinary shares. lan Nichelson acguired 2.000 ordinary shares, Anne Hyland acguired 7,718 ordinary shares and
Alan Boyd acguired 7000 ardinary shares. Elmar Schriee acquired 10,000 ordinary shares befare he was appo'rted as a Director

The Group has used Alan Boyd Consultants Lirmmited a company owned by Professor Alan Boyd for regulatory services in
relation to the maintenance of country product icence approvals over the course of the year

TSR

Intha rine years since IPO on 24 September 2012 until 28 August 2021 the Group's TSR defined as share pr.ce growtn including
reinvested dividends has outperformed the FTSE All-Share Index by 225% the FTSE 350 Prnarma and 80 Index by 148% ana
the FT3E SmallCap Ingex (ex investmert Trusts) by 88%

The total remuneration for the CEQ auring eacn o the last flve finarcial years 1s shown -r the table below, The tota
rermuneraticn mncludes base salary, annua bonus (basad or prav-ous year's parformarce, LT Ps and cther benzsfits The
annual bonus payout on that year’'s performance ard LTIP vesting level as a percentage of the maximum s aisa shown

FINANEIAL YEAR FIRANCIAL YEAR FINAMCIAL YERR FINANCIAL YEAR FINANCIAL VEAR PEACENTARE  PERCENTAEE CHANGE

017 2 HE1] une i CHANGE  FORALL EMPLITEES

Total remuneration (EOQ0O) 1.266 1.202 2558 T 489 955 (36)% (3%
Annual bonus (% of maximum) 100% 58% 75% TH% 0% (200)% (572%

L7IP vest:ng (% of max mum) 100% 95% 100% 60% 50% J173% %
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RELATIVE IMPORTANCE CF SPEND DN PAY
The table helow shows the Group's actua! spand on pay (far all employees) relative to dividends. and adjusted profit before tax
for the year.

un un CHANGE
YEAD ENDED 30 1JHE M N %
Total employee pay 55.6 53.4 15%
Dividends 10.1 9.2 Ok
Adjusted profit befare tax 92.3 108.1 (4%

GENDER PAY GAP REPORTING
Thea Group recagnises the importance of diversity and inclusion, including gender. at ali leve's of the Company For further
detaills on gender pay gap renorting please see page 39,

IMPLEMENTATICN OF REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2022

Along with the salary review t-metaale far the Camnany as 3 who'e, the Executive Directors salaries for 2022 are scheduled to
ne reviewed 10 Septemoszr 2021 Any ircreases to the Executive D rectors salanes are expected 1o be inline with the average
UK employeea, other than where a larger increase 15 awarded to reflect additional duties

Shaun Chi'ton's pension contrbution 1s 10% of salary He will receve standard benefits in line w.th those provided to the waorkforce

Tre aandal bonus opportun ty for Shaur Chiltor s 100% of salary, with 70% based on EBITDA and 30% on sfrategic objectives
The actua taragets and cbjectveas are commearcally sensitive at this time but w il be disclosed when they cease to be so

It 15 expected that an LTIP award with a face vawe of 125% of salary will ke granted tc Shaun Chilton which will be based on
relative TSR against the FTSE 250 Index {ex Invastmeant Trusts), 40% against EPS growth targets (vwtha 5% pa to 1%k pa
(thresnold and maximurm range) and 20% based on strategic object ves

Follow.ng his appomntrment as Cnairman, Elrrar Schnee receives an arnual fee of £170,000 par annum

Folow rg his appomrtment as Senior Independent Director. lan Jobrsan receives an annual fee of £65.000 per annum

No changes are proposed to the Non-Executive Directors fees for FY 20272

IAN NICHOLSON

Remuneration Committes Chair
15 September 2021
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The Directors present their report together with the Strategic
Report and tne audited consohdatad financial staterments for
the year ended 30 June 2021

Chrigen Group oles a pubhe company hmited by shares,
which s l-sted on AIM, incorporatea and domicilad in the U<
and registered in Eng:and and wWales,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Clhimgen s dedicated to providing heathcare professionals
(CHCPs) and their patents with greater access to medicines
around the world. and In the procass mcreasing the va'ue
of a pharmaceutical product by extending and expanaing
its lifecycle The Group consists of two divisions Services
and Products

Within Services, Ciinigen provides a uniaue set of niche, hrgh
value services to pharma and biotech cl.ents prior to product
launch Ths comoined offering helos to accelerate drug
develooment plans and enable comphart early access for
patierts with unrmet peeds

Within Progucts, Chinigen enables access to cntical medicnes
at a country regicnal and global level The Group's focus .5 to
uid a portfolio of specal st medicines (o service the needs of
healthcare crofessionals and ther patients 1n boeth ncensed
and un! censed markets

Chinigan partner with more than 500 pharma clients and
enable access for mora than 22,000 healthcare nrofessionals
across more than 120 cauntries

STRATEGIC REPORT

As permitted by legisiation, some of the matters reguired 1o
be ncluded in tne Report of the Directors have instead been
includeg in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 47 asg the Board
considers them to be of strategic importance Specifically
these are Risk Management on pages 52 to 61, 3usiness
Review and Future Developments an pages 44 to 47 and
Ernvrormental Sacia and Corporate Goverrance on pages 32
to 41 The Strategic Report forms parl of this Report of the
Directors and s incorporated into it by cross-raference Soth
the Strategic Report and the Repart of the Cirectors have
peor drawn upn and presented 'noaccordarce with and in
reliance upon apphcable English company law. and the

llabil tres of the Directers n conmect.on with thase reparts shal
bie sukbject to the hmitat ons and restr ctions provided by sdch
law

KPI3

The Group's KPIs are discussed in the Strategic Report Tne
Directors consider the Graup KPIs a5 adiustag grass profit,
adpustec EB'TDA and adiusted basic EPS The KPIs for the
bus ness operatiors are the namiber of MAP and Partnered
oroducts unaer management, the number pharma clients
utilising more than ane part of tne platform and the

community of registered usars on C! niport

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's operations expose it (o a vanety of fnancial nsks
that include credit risk. hguidity r sk and foreign exchange risk
The Group has a nisk management orogram that seeks to himit
t1e agverse effacts an the finanoal performance of tne Group
by monitonng leve's of debt fimance and related fnance costs
ard maraging foreign carrercy trarsactions The Group has
irmplemented pohcies thast requ ra anpropr ate credit checks
before a3 sale 1s made The Group reduces 1ts exposure o
currency fluctuations on franslation by managing currencies
at Group level usng bank accounts dencminated n foreigr
Currencigs Wnere tharg 1s sufficient vistbiity of currency
regquiramments, forward contracts are usad to hedge its
excosure o foreign currency fluctuations,

Further detall 1s provided in note 21 of the consoidated
financiar statements

CREDITDR PAYMENT POLICY

1T 1s the policy and normal praci-ce of the Group to make
payments due to suppliers In accordance with agreed terms
and conditions, generally 30 days, Where suppliers o“fer early
settlerrent discounts, these may be taken advantage of Tris
policy will also be apphed for 2022

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2021, the following sharehalders held an nterest
cof 3% or rrore of the Company's1ssued snare capital

% OF TOTALYATING

HIEHTS
Janus Henderson Investars 6.6%
Slater Investments 6.3%
Rathbones 5.6%
Octopus 5.5%
AXA Investment Managers 4.2%
Invesco 38
NFEU Matual 3.1%
Alhanz Global investars 2.0%

As at 31 August 2021, the following snareholders held an
imterest of 2% or more of the Company’s 1ssued share capital

% OFTOTALVITING

RIGHTS

Slater investmeants £.8%
Janus Herderson Invastors 6. 5%
Rathbones 57%
Qctapus 5.6%
AXA Invastment Managers 4.5%
Invesco 3.7
NEL Mutual 335
Athanz Global investors 3.0

On 10 Sepremger it was annourced that Flot Management
mvestment had acguired a 5 2% interest in the Company
There wera no other charges (o tne st of major shareholders
betweaen 31 August and the date of th-s renort

DIVIDEND

The Drrectors propose to mamtain the fina dividena at 5 46p
per share. subject to approval at the AGM on 26 Novernher
2021 The d widena wal be payaole on 4 January 2022 to al
shareholders on the register on 3 December 2027 Together

w th the inter m diviaend of 2 75p per share pad on 17 Apnl
2020, this makes a combined dividena for the year of 7681p per
share (2020 78)p per share

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There have been no sigrif cart everts to regort since the date
of the balance shesat



DIRECTORS AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who served during the vear and up to the date
of signing the financial statements were, unless otherwise
stated, as follows:

S Chirton

N Keher (Resigned 24 August 2021

P Allen (Resigned 1 September 2021
S Curran [Appointed 27 Apnl 2027
PNicholson

A Hyland

J Hartup (Resigned 26 November 20209
A Bayd

E Schnee (Appointed 3 August 20275

I Johrson (Aprponted 3 August 2021)

With ragard to the appointment of Directors, the Company 1s
govarned by 1ts Arficles o Asscciation, the Campanies AcCt
and related legislation Directors are sulpject to re-electior at
intervals of not mare than three years However, as a matter
of best practice all Board members will res gn and subm t
themselves for re-e ection anrualdy -nling with the Code

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The Directors are respons.ble for prepar ng the Annusl Report
and the financial statements inaccordance with applcatie law
and regulations

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare fimancial
sratements for each frnancial year, Under that law, tne
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements i
accordance with international accountirg standards in
canfarmity with the requrements of the Comparmes Act 2006
and the Parent Company financial statements in accordance
with Urited Kingdom Generally Accented Accourting Practice
(Urited Kingdam Accounting Standards, comprsing FRS 107
Reduced Disclosure Framework” and applicable law}, Under
company law the Directars must not approve the financial
statements unless tney are satisfied that they give a true and
farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period in
preparing these financial statements the D rectors are
reguired to.

- Select suitable accounting nohcies and then apply them
consistently

- Make judgements and account rg estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

- State whetner international account.ng standards in
conformity with the requ.rements of the Companigs Act
2006 have been followed for the Group finanoial statements
and UK Accounting Standards. comorising FRS 101, have
been followed far the Company financial statements, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explammad 10 the
financial statements

- Prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis
unless it 1s nappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
recards that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and the Group. and
enable trem to ensure that tha finanaial statements arnd the
Directors’ Remuneration Repaort comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financia' statements,
Artcle 4 of the 'AS Regulation They are also respons ble for
safeguarding tne assets of the Company and the Group, and
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hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irreguianties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
ntegrity of the Company's website, Legislation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ fraom leg:slation in other jurisdictions

The Directors consider that the Annual Regort and Accounts,
taken as a whole, s farr, balanced and understandable and
oravides theinformat on necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company's performance, business model and strateqgy

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are listed
n the Report of the Directors, confirm tnat, to the best of
therr knowledge

- The Group financial statermrents which have been prepared
in gccordance with international account:ng standards o
conformity with the requirements of the Comparies Act
2006 give a true and fair view of the assets, lab lities,
financial position and profit of the Group

- The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and tne
position of the Group. together with a description of the
principal rnisks and uncertanties that it faces

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The officers of the Company andg its subsidianes would
be indemnified in respect of proceedings which might be
brought by a third party No cover s provided inrespect
of any fraudulen? or dishonest actions

GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

Assessment of prospects and viability

The Group onerates g strateqic planning process which
includes monthly reviews of business and financial
parformance, regular fimancial project ons and an annual
plannng review for the next financial year Madium-term
business and plannirg ard financial projectiens for the next
three years are prepared and reviewed taking into account
known strategic changes in that time frame. The three-year
plan considers the Group's growth potential, cash fiows and
key financial ratios Tha strategic planming process 1s managed
cantra ly, led by the Executive Management “eam

The strategic plan s subjected to sensitivity analysis
Appropriate stress testing of certain key performance,
solvency and hguichty assurmptions underlying the plan has
been conducted taking account of the principal risks and
uncertainties faced and possible severe but plausible
combinations of thosa risks and uncertamnties These include
the shortage of supply for a key product. additional working
capital reguirements and lower profitatbihity levels The impact
of these sensitivities 1s reviewad indivicually and in aggregate
onthe plan and does not indicate a viabihity cancern.,

The Directors have assessed the Group's prospects and
resilience with reference to 1ts current financial position. its
recent and historical financial perforrmance and forecasts, the
Board's risk appetite. and the principal risks and mitigating
factors The Group 1s coerationally and financially strong and
has a track record of cansistently generating profits and cash,
and this 1s expected to continue

Viability statement

Based on this assessment, the Diractors confirm that they
have a reascnable expectation that the Company will be
able to cont.nue in operation and meet 1ts iabiiit es as they
fall dua owver the next three yoars,
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Going concern

The Group's strategy and forecasts, taking account of
sensitivities within the trading projections and pessible
changes in tracding performance. show that the Group has
adeguate resources to continue in operational existence

for the foreseeable future The Group s not .mmune from
COVID-12, however, the impact on trading 15 not impacting on
the Graoup's abxlity To contirue as a going concern At 30 June
2021, the Graoup nad £83m of casn balances along witn a
further £32m of undrawn borrowing facility avalable. which
combined with the Group's positive cash generation from each
of it aperaticns, provides auffizient funding for the near-term
sattlement of deferred consideration natshities along with
sufficient iguidity for ongoing trading

After malking appropriate engures. the Directors nave a
reasonable expectation that the Campany and the Group have
adeguate resources to continue in operationa' existence for at
least 12 menths from the date of approvar of the fnancial
statements. Therefore. the Corrpany and Group conbnues 10
adopt the gaing concern kasis in preparing ts financial
staterments Further informat.on on the Group s porrowing
facihities s given i note 20 of the consaiidated financial
staternents,

EMPLOYEES AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The paincies relating to employees are discussaa in the
Environmental Social and Corporate Governance section of
the Strategic Report See pages 18 to 21 for disclosure of
employee engagement and other stakeholder engagement
staterments

POLITICAL DONATIONS

In hine with the established poncy. the Group made no poehtica!
donatiors

Although the Group dees not make. and does not intend to
make poltical donat ons. the definit:on of pehiticai denations
under the Compames Act 2006 includes broad and poternally
ambiguous definitions of the terms ‘pahtical aonation’

and ‘political expenditure’. which may apply to some norma:
business activit-es which would not generally be considered
to oe pohtscal n nature

As P previous years aresoluton wil be proposed at the
AGM seeking shareho der approval for the Directors to be
gven authority to maxe pahtical deonatiors and/or to 1ncur
pohtical expenditure. in each case within the meaning of the
Comparnies Act 2006 for no maore than £50 000. The
Directors wish 12 emaohasise that the proposed resoiLtion s
sought ana purely precautiarary bas's in order to avard
inadvertent contravention of the Comparies Act 2006 The
Board has noriention of entering 1nto ary party poalitical
activities,

PROVISION OF INFORMATION T0 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Zach of the Directors at the time wnen tnis Repaort of the
Directors s approved Fas confirmed that

- So far as that Director 15 aware, tnere s no relevant audit
nformation of wh.ck the Company s and the Group's
aud fors are unaware

- The Director nas taken all the steos that cught to nave beer
taker as a Diractor in order to be aware of any information
necded by the Company’'s and the Groug's audtorsin
connect.on wiih prepanng irer report and o estab’ish that
the Company and tne Group's audhtors are aware of that
information

AGM NOTICE

The notice convening the AGM to be held on 24 Novermber
2021, together with ar exnlaration of the resolutions to be

proposed at the meeting, 15 cortamed in a separate circular
to shareholders

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The independent auditors. PricewaterhoussCoapers. have
expressed their willingness to cortinue .n office and a
resclution to re-appoint thern will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM

This report and the Strategic Report approved by the Board
and signed or behalf of tne Board.

SHAUN CHILTON

Group Chief Executive Officer
15 September 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
T0 THE MEMBERS OF CLINIGEN 6ROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
Ir our opinien’

- Clirigen Group plc's group financial statements and parent company financial staterments (the financial statements”™) give a
true and fair view of the state of the group’'s and of the parent company s affairs as at 20 June 2021 and of the groun’s prof t
and the group's cash flows for the year then ended:

- the group financial statemeants have been properly preparced in accardance with internationa accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companes Act 2006

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (Unitea Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Raduced Disclosure Framework’,
and apphicable law); and

- the financial statements have been prepared :n accordance with tne requirements af tne Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements, included withun the Annual Report and Accounts 2021 (the Annual Report™) which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position and the company balance sheet as at 30 June 2021, the conschdated
Income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes inegu ty, the company statement of changes in equity for the yvear tnen ended, and the
notes to the financial statemeants. which include a description of the significant accounting po Icies

Basis for opinion

We conductea our audit in accoraance with International Stardards on Audit ng (UK) ("1SAs (UK) ) and apphcable law Our
rasponsibilities uroer 1SAs (UK Y are further desaenbed 'n the Auditors responsiboties far the aud-t of the financial statements secton
of our report We bel eve that the audit evidence we have obtamned is suffic.ent and aoproornate to prov de a basis for our opinion

iIndependence

We remainead independent of the groun In accordarce with the ethical requirements tnat are relevart 1o our audit of the financal
statements in the UK which inciudes the FRC's Ethical Standard. as applcable to hsted entities and we have fulf lled cur other
ethizal responsioht es in accordance with these requirements.

Our audit appreoach
Overview

Audit scope

- Following our assessment of tne risks of material misstatement of the Group Financia: Statements we identified five
components (2020 five components) where we performed a full scope auait of the r compiete financial information, either
due to their size or risk charactenstics. These compeanents are located n the UK and Un.ted States of America and include
Chmigen Group ple, Ol nigen KHealthcare Limited, Clinigen Inc . Colems Pharma Lirmited and Guantum Pharmaceuticals Limited

- O the five ful scope componentsidentified above, all except Quantum Pharmaceuticals Limited are significant components
of the Group

- We alsodentified a further six components (2020 two) where we performed targeted specif ed procedures based on risk and
matenality or. the finarcial information These components are located in Belgium. United States of America. Germany. Japan
New Zealand and UK Th.s was supplemented by analytica procedures on the components tnat are not 10 scope

- In addition the group aadit team in the UK auchted the consolidation and accounting areas that are centralised. including
goodwlll and intangible asset impairment assessments share based payments, corporate taxation and discontinued
operations

- Trus scope of work provided coverage of 68% (2020 69%) of revenue. 96% (2020, 71%) of underlyng profit before taxation
(exclud.ng consolidation adjustmeants), 77% (2020 81%) of total assets and 20% (2020 93%) of total habihties
All aud t procedures have been performed by the grouwp audit team in the UK, except for specified procedureas at Chimgen CSM
Europe S A which have been parformed by PwC Belgium. as component auditors. In addition, KPMG in Greece has assisted
with certain procedures over caoitalisation of Intargible ass2ts wathin Colaris Pharma Limited, The group engagement team
has issued instructiors to the companent teams ard overseen the wark performed by them through meetings and a review of
their dehiverables

Key audit matters

- Assassment of the carry ng value of acguired intangible assets and goodwill (group)
- Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) {(group and parent)

- Assessmeant of the carrying value of acquired intang.ble assets (parent)

Materiality

- Overall group materiality £2.600.000 (2020 £3.000.000) based on 5% of underiying profit before taxation, l2ss amortisation
of acaured intangibles

- QOverall parent company materiality £2 80C C00 (2020. £2,300,000) based on 0 5% of net assets

- Performance matenality, £1950,000 (group) and £2,100000 (parent campany}
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The scope of our gqudit

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenality and assessed the nisks of matera misstatement in the financ:al
staternents In particular we looked at where the directars made subjective judgements far example inrespect of significant
accounting estimates that involved makng assumptions and consdering future events that are inherantly uncertain

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters tnat, In the auditors’ professional ;udgement were of most significance in the gudit of the
financiat statements of the current period and include the most sigmficant assessed risks of mater al misstatement (whether or not
due to fraud) identified by the auditars includ.ng those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strateay: the alocaton
of resources in the gudit and diracting the efforts of the engagament team T hese matters, and any comments we make on the
results of our procedures thereon, were addrassed in the context of our audit of the financia’ statements as a wholg, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provids a separate comion on these matters

Thisss not a complele st of 3! nsks .denthed by our auait

CSM cortingent consideration, which was a key audit matter last year, s no longer included because of the consideraton beng
settled im the current yvear ana therefare no longer a significant risk or jJudgement Otherwise, the key audit matters below are

consistent with last vear

KEY AUDITMATTER

HOW QUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THEKEY AUDIT MATTER

Assessment of the carrying value of acquired intangibies
and goodwili (group)

Refer to tha critical accounting estimates and pudgements in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, and note 12
CAtangible assets) We fooused on this area because the
ctrectors assessment of whether impatrment triggers nave
peendentified that coad g ve nise to animpairment chargein
relation to intanaible assets and goodwil, irvolved complax
and subjective Judgements and assurmptions Nncleding the
prograss and future performarce of iIndiedual products, iny
addition to the angoing busimess achvities of acquired ertities
The directors have prepared impairment assessment models
which mclude a number of assumptions Tne assurptions
which are deamed to be the most signifcant in respect of
these madels are the short and long term growth and discounrt
rates

For each separate intanaible asset, inciuding goodwll, we
focused on the key assumotions re'ating to future revenus
forecasts, margin expectations and asscciated selung costs
We were able (0 evaluate the reasonablensss of the directors’
forecasts and expectations, including the impact upon
terminal values by agreaing changes in growtn assampuens o
corroborating eviderce and assessing the margin and selling
costs expected to be achieved by reference 1o hustor.cal
margins realised. and where relevant consideration of actual
perfarmance against prior year forecasts We validated the
inputs used by the directors to calculate the d.scount rate
appelied by using cur valuation special sts to compare this o
the cost of caoital for the Group ard a setectan of comparable
organisations The directors’ key assumuotions for long term
growih rates were also compared to ecanomic and industry
forecasts for reasonableness We assessed througn the
performance 0f sensitivity analysis over the key assumptions
abxove the extent of change ir those assumptions that either
indivichually or collectively would be reaured for any potental
impalrment charges. to nave a matenal imoact on the carrying
value of the acquired intangble assets and goodwilr We also
assessed the | kellhood of such changes occurrang We
considered other evidence gatherad in the audid to deterrmrine
if any other trigger events had occurred. and agreed with the
directors’ assessment that noimparrmsant was identif.ed for
acauired imtangible assats with the exception of Imu'<in, nor
any impairment charge for goodwill was required (o oe
racogrised
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KEY AUDITMATTER

HAW TR RVDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AVDITMATTER

Coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) (group and parent
company)

Refer to page 70 (CAudit and Risk Committee Report) Dunng
tne financial year. the COVID-19 pandemic has had a

s gnificant impact glokally with lockdown measdres neing
imolemented widely COVID-19 has alse impacred the Group,
especially withun the Froducts segment as a result of lower
nurmber of non-Cowvid-19 hospitalisations and related
treatment As at the year end date and the date of sigring the
financial staterrents whilst there continues to be scme
uncertainty aver the future impact of COVID-18,
managernent’s assessment s that the impact or Cinigen 1s not
expected to be signficant in the medium and longer term cn
the basis of its performance through the pandemic to date
Notwithstanding that. Management has considered
impl:cations for the Group s going concern assessmeant
potential imparment of certain assets and assaciated
disclosure :n the financial statements. The results of these
scenarios did not indicate any significant 1ssues as a result of
the impact of COVID-19

In respect of goirg concern,

- We evaluated management’s base case, plausible sensitiv.ty
scenarios. challenging key assumptions including the forecast
cash flows We further sensitised management’s forecasts to
undearstand the impact of @ number of more sigrificant further
downside scenarios,

- Checked the integnty of management’s moael. as well as
agreaing underlying data to source docdmeants

- Assessed whether management's mitigating actions are
reasonably achievable based on our understanding of the
business, including the nature of its cost base.

- Optained evidence to suppoert disclosures withim the finarcial
staterments and crnecked that the disclosures witnin the annual
report are consistent with the financial statements and
knowledge gained on the audit

QOur conclusion in respect of going concern s included o the
“Conclusions relating to gaing concern” section kelow In
respect of imparmeant refer to separate koy audit matters
relating to Assessmant of the carrying value of acouired
intangibles and goodwill for the Group and "Assessrmeant of the
carrying vaue of acguired intangible assets for the parent
company

Assessment of the carrying value of acquired intangible
assets (parent)

Refer to the crit:cal acccunting est mates and juagements in
note 2 and note 4 (ntangible assets) to the parent company
financial stataments We focused on this area because the
directors assessment of wnether impairment trggers have
been dentif ea that could give rise to an impairment chaarge ir
relation to mtangible assets involved comnplex and subject ve
judgements and assumptions including the progress and
future performance of .ndividual products The directors’ have
prepared imparrment assessment models which nclude a
number of assumptions The assurmmptions which are deemed
to be the most s grificant in respect of these mode's are the
reveriue forecasts

Faor each separate ntangible asser we focusad on the key
assumptions rafaturg to future revenue forecasts. margin
expectations and associated seliing costs We were alole to
evaluate the reascnableness of the directors forecasts and
expectations by corroborating evidence and assessing the
margin and selling costs expected to be achieved by reference
to historcat margins reatsea, seling cost improvement plans
and. where relevant consideraticn of actuai perfermance
aga nst onior year forecasts As a result of cur audit work, we
agreed with the directors assessment that no rmpairmens: for
acquired intangible assets was identified

How we tailored the audit scope

wWe tallored the scope of our audit fo ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opimon on the firancial
staterments as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and tne parent company, the accodnting procasses and

controls, and the industry in which they operate.

Chrnigen s dedicated to providing healthcare professionals (HCPs) and their patierts with greater access to medicines arcund
the world, and 'n the process increasing the value of a pharmaceutical product by extending and expandirg its ifecycle The
Group consists of two segments. Services and Products and operates worldwide

Following our assessmeant of the risks of material misstatement of the Group Finarcial Statements we identified five components
(2020 fiva components) where we performed a fu'l scope audit of their complete financial 'nfarmation. either aue to their size or
rsk charactenstics Thesse components are located in the UK and United States of Amenca

We also identified a further six components {2020, two) where we performed targeted soecified procedures based on nisk and
maternahty on the financial information These components are located in Belgium, United States of America. Germany, Japan
New Zealand and UK. This Is supplementad by analytical procedures on the componeants that are not in scope

The coverage for both the current and pnior year 1s sufficient and in cormpliance with the applicable auating standards
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Materiality

The scope of our audit was Influenced by our application of martenality We set certain guantitative tnresholds for mater ality
These, together with quahtative considerations. helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, hming and extent
of our audit proceaures on the individual financia’ statement Ine iterns and disclosures and n eva'uating the effect of
misstatements both individually and in aggregate on the fingnaial stataments as a whaole

Based on our profess.onal judgement. we determined matarniality for the financia: statements as a whole as fol.ows

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PARENT COMPANY
Overall materiality £2.600,000 (2020 E3.000.000) £2.800,000 (2020 £2,300,000)
How we determined it 5% of underlying profit before taxation, less 0 5% of ner assets
amortisation of acgurred intangibles
Rationale for benchmark We believe that underlying profit before We believe that net assets are an appropr ate
applied taxation, less amortisation of acquired casis for determining materiality as the parent
ntangibies provides a consstent nasis for company 1s nat a profit onentated entity

determining material ty as It 2limmates the
impact of non-underiying iterms which fluctuare
year on year and car have 3 gispropaortionate
impact on tne consolidated income statement

For each component in the scope of our group sudit we alocated a matenalty that .siess thar our overall group materiality

-

The range of materiaity allocated across compaonents was getweenr £400 000 and £2. 300 000

We use performance materiality to reddce to ar appropriately low level tne propabiity that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materainty Specifically we use performance matenality in determiring the scone of
our audit and the nature and extent of cur testing of account balances, classes of transactions ard disclosures for example in
determiming sample sizes Our performance materiality was 75% of overal matenality, amounting to £1.950,000 for the group
financial statements and £2.100.0C0 for tne parent campany financial statements

indetermmning tne performance materalty, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatemeants risk assessrment
and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of contrals - and conciuded that a~ amount at the upper end of our normal range
was approoriate,

We agreed with these charged with governance trat we would report to tnem misstatements identifiea during our audit above
130,000 (group audit) (2020 E150 CC0Y and E140 000 (parent comoany audity (2020 £15.0000 as well as misstatemear®s
bealow those amounts that, in our view, warrantea reporting for qualitative reasons

Conclusions relating to going concern
Qur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the groun's and the oarent company's atility to continug 10 aaoot the going
concern basis of accounting included

We evaluated managemeant's base case. plausib'e sensitivity scenarias, challerging key assurmrptions ircluding the forecast
cash flows:

- We further sensitised management's farecasts to understand the impact of any further downside scenarios,
Checked the integrity of management’'s model as well as agreeing underlying data to source documeants,

- Assessed whether managament s mitigat.ng actions are reasonably achievable based on our understand.ng of the husiness,
incluchng the nature of its cost base,
Obta red evidence tc support disclosuraes within the financial statemerts and checxed thatl the disclosures w.thin the annual
report are consistent with the financial statermnents anc know'edge gained on the audit, and

- Venfed deobt covenant comphance through the financial yvear and for the forecast percd to 31 Decemper 2022

Based on the work we have performed we have ~ot identified any matenal uncortamties relating to events or condihans that,
ndivicually or collectively, may cast significant deulst on tae group's and the parent company s abiity to contirue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from wnen the flnancial statenants are aurnorised for 1ssue

Iraud ting the financiai statements we have concluded tnat the directors’ use ¢f the going cancern Basis of acccunting 10 the
preparation of the financial statements 1s anoropriate

Frowaver pecause not a'l future events or conditiors can be predicted this conclusion s net a guarantee as te the group’s ard
the parent company s ability to continue 35 3 9oirg Concern

Inrelat on to the directors reparting on now they have apphed the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing materia to
ada or draw attentior 1¢c .nre.ation to the directars statement in the financial statements akbout whether the directors
considered it aporaonate to adopt tne going concern basis of account ng

Qurresporsibilites and the responsibil-ties of the d rectors win respect to go ng concern are dascrioed Ir the relevant sect ons
of th s report
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprisas all of the information 10 the Annual Report other than the financia! statements and our auditors’
report thereon The airectors are responsible for the other information. Our opin on on the financial statements does not cover
the ather information and, accordingly, we do not express an audht oprmign or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
th's report any form of assurance therecn

In connaction with cur audit of the financ.as statements our resgonsitilty s 1o read the other information and 10 dong so.
consider wheather the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obitained in the
aJadit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated f we identify an apparent matenial inconsistency aor material
misstatemert, we are reguired to perform procedures to conclude whether there s a material misstaternant of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other infaormation f. based on the work we have parformed, we conclude that
there s a matenal misstatement of thus other nformation. we are reqguired to report that fact We have nothing to repert based
on thesa responsibiities

With respect to the Strategic report and Report of the directors. we also considered whether tne disclosures required by the UK
Comparnies Act 2006 have bezsn included

Based on our wark undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us slso to report certam apimions
and matiers as described below

Strategic report and Report of the Directors

Inour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Repart
of the Directors for the year enged 30 Juna 2021:5 caonsistent with tha f nancial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applcable legal requirements

In hght of tha knowledge ana understanding of the group and parent company and theair environment obtained in the course of
the aud 1, we did not identify any material misstaterments in the Strateg:c report and Report of the Directors

Corporate governance statement

[SAs (UK requ re us to review the directors’ statements in relat on to going concern, longer-term vialknlhty and that part of the
corporate governance statement relabing to the parent company s compliance with the provisicns of the UK Carporate
Gaovernance Code, which the Listing Rules of the Firancial Conauct Authonty specify for review by auditaers of premum hsted
companes Our additional responsibilities with respect to the corporate governance statemeant as other infoermatior are
aescriped ir tne Reporting on other .nformation section of tris report

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit we have concluded that each of the following elerments of the corporate
governance statement 1s matenaliy consistent with the financial staterments and our knowledge chtained during the audst, and
we have nothing materal to add or draw attention to in relation tc

- The directors’ confirmation tnat they have carried out a robust assessment of tne emerging and principal risks.

- The disclosures in the Annua Report that descr-be thaose princinal nisks what procedures are in place toadentify emerging
risks and an explanation af how these are bemg managed or mitigated.

- The directors' statement 1n the financial statements about whether they considerad 't apgropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in prepanng them. and their identification of any matenal uncertainties to the group’s and parent
company's ability to continue to do sa over a perod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financ.al
statements,

- The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the group's ana parent company s prospects. the penod this assessment
covers and why the periodis appropriate, and

- The drrectors’ statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the parent company will be able to continue in
operation and meet its habities as they fall due over the penod of ts assessment, including any related disciosures drawing
attenpon to any necessary gualhfications or assumptions,

Our review of the directars’ statement regarding the longer-term viab ity of the group was substantially less in scope than an
audit and only consisted of making inquines and considering the directors process supporting their statement, checking that
the statement 15 1m ahgnment with the relevant provisions of the UK Coroorate Governance Code, and considering whether the
statement 15 consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge and understanding of the group and parent compoany
and the r enveronment obtained n the course of the audit

In adaition, based on tne work undeartaken as part of cur aud t, we have concluded tnat each of the following elements of the
corporate governance statement 1s maternially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the
audit

- The directors’ statement that they cansider the Arnual Report, taken as a whole. 1s fair, balanced and ungerstandable, and
provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group's and parert company's position. performance,
business model and strategy,

- The section of the Arnua’ Report tnat describes the review cf effectiveness of nisk managerment and ternal control systems,
and

- The section of the Annual Report descrioing the work of the audit committee,

We have nothing to report inrespect of our responsibiiity to report when the Directors’ statement reiating to the parent
comeany's compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified
under the Listing Rules for review by the auditors
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsitulities Statement, the drectors are resgonsible far the oreparation of the
financia! statements in accordance with the applicaple framework and for beaing satisf.ed that they give a true and fair view The
directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determing 1s necessary to enable tha preparation of financial
staterments that are free from material risstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsiiile for assessing the aroup’s and the parent company's ability to
confinue as a gong concern, disclosing. as apphicable, matters reated to go rg concarnm and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to hgudate the group or the parent company or to cease ocperations, or have no
reglstic alterrative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtair reasonalble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote are free from maternai
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to15sue an auditors’ repart that ncludes our opirion Reasorable gssuranca s
a high leve! of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (JK) w Il always detect a
matenal misstatement when ot @xists Misstatements can anse fram fraud or error and are considered matenal f, indeadually or in
the aggregate. tney could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of tnese
financial statements

lrregulanties inciudng fradd, are nstarces of non-compliance with laws and regulations W design pracedures o hng wth aar
responsiniites, ouathined above, to defect material misstatemeénts in respect of wregularities, inciuding fraud Tre extent to which
our procecures are capable of detecting irregutanties, including fraud, 15 detaled below

Based on aur undersrand ng of the group and industry, we identified that the principal riacs of non-compl ance with 1aws and
regulations related to Medicines and Healtcare groducts Regulatory Agency {MHRAY in the U ard equivalert bodies in
overseas terntories, and we considered the extent te whi:ch non-compliance might have a maternal effect on the financial
statements wWe also cons dered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the firancial statements s.uch as the
Companies Act 2006 We evaluated rmanagement’s incentives and opporturities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statemeants (ncluding tne nisk of overnde of contrals) and determined that the princioal risks were related to fraudulent journal
entries (for examp'e journal entries to increase revenue and prohity and bias n re'ation to jJuogements and estimates. part.cuarly
N the areas of goodwill and intangible assets imparment assessment Tne groue enyagerrent team shared this risk assessrment
with the component auditors so that they cowd incluge appreonate audit Groced Jres 10 resparse 1o 5Uch NSKE In tnar waor,
Audit procedares performed by t1e group engagement team and/or component auditors included

- Understanding and evaluating the key elements of the group's internal contra' rélated te estimatas
Vahidating the support behund the assumotions ard judgements made by mransgement incluaing challenaing aganst possibie
a'ternatives for exampie in reiafion to goodwill and intangiole asset impairment assessmeant,

- idertifying and substantively testing highar rsk journal entries in particular any that increased profit that had unusual
account combinations or were posted by senior managemenrt '
Discussions with and corrobarating key assertions made by finance managemant with internal audit the group s legal counsel
and senior group and divisicna management 'nclading views an accounting judgements and astimares, and cons:iaering
known or suspected instances of non-comphiance with laws and regulatior ana fraud.

- Reading the minutes of the Board meetings to dentify any nconsistencies wizr other information provided by management;

- Revewing interna’ audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements.

- Reviawing iegal expenrse accounts to idert fy sigmficant lega’ spend which may be indicative of ser ous breaches of laws and
regulations; and

- Rev ewing compoanent teams’ key working gapers. as reaguired by I1SA (UL for in-scope compeneants with a particular focus
on the areas nvolving jJudgement and estimates

There are inherent imitations in the audit proceauares desor.bed above We ara less likely to pecome avaare of Instarces of
non-campnance with iaws and regulations that are rot closely relatad 1o events and transactions ref'ected ir the finanga’
statemeants Alsa, the risk of not gatect ng a malenal m sstatemert due to fraud s higher tnan the risk of nor detecting onz
resultng from error as fraud may involve dehberate concealmert by, for examp e forgery or intentional rmusrepresentations or
through collusion

Qur audit testng rmight Inclade testing comp ete populations of certan transactions and ba'ances, possib y using data auaiting
cechmgues Howaver it typically nvoowves se'acting a hmited number of iterms for sasting, ratner than testing corp ete
popllations We will often seak to target particular items for testing based on thelr si7e or risk characteristics In other cases. we
will use audit sampling to enaole us to draw & conclus on about the populaticn from which the samrpie s selected

A further gescription of our respcorsiol tres for the audit of the financial statemenrts s located on the FRC s website at
wiww fro org uk/audhtarsresponsibilit.es Ths descaption forms part of our auditors’ reoort

Use of this report

This report, inciuding the opimons has been prepared for and enly for the parent cormpany s membars as s heay ir accordance
with Chaprer 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpase Wea ao not, n giving these oplmors. accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose Or to any other cerson to whom this report 15 shown or 1Into whose nands - may
come save where expressly agreed oy our prior consent in wrt.ng
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OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In our opinion

- we have not obtained all the nformation and explanaticns we reguire for our audit or

- adequate accourting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adeqguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us. or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified oy law are not made, or

- the parent company financ:al statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

wWe have no exceptions to report arising from this responsiihity

PAUL NORBURY BSC FCA (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR) @

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP ] D(b
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors .

East Midlands

15 September 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

w 2000 8 PRESEN TED {WOTE 31)
HORANDERLONG AN ADERLONG

NEH) 113 NEERLYING ren) L UNDERLYING (NOTET) TnL
Revenue 4 52386 - 523.6 4667 - 466.7
Cost of sales (325.6) (0.1) (325.7) (256.7) (4.9) (261.6)
Gross profit £ 198.0 {0.1) 197.9 210.0 (4.9 205.1
Admin.strative expenses (97.5) (38.9) (136.4) 912, (71.4) (162.6)
Profit from operations 4 100.5 (39.0) 61.5 1188 (76.3) 42.5
Finance costs 8 (8.3) (1.4) (9.7 (11.3) 8.3 (196
Share of profit of foint venture 15 - - - 0.3 - .3
Profit before income tax 92.2 (40.4) 51.8 107.8 (84.6) 232
Income tax expense a (17.8) 5.7 (12.1) (211 12.1 9.0y
Profit for the year from continuing operations 74.4 (34.7) 39.7 86.7 (72.5) 14.2
L 0ss for the year from discontinued oparations 30 0.2 (9.6) {9.4) 0.3 (0.8) 0.5
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 74.6 (44.3) 30.3 87.0 (73.3) 13.7
Earmngs per share (o)
Basc 10 22.8 133
Diluted 10 22.3 102
Earninys per share from contnuing eparations (o)
Basic 1C 29.8 08
Dilutea 10 29.2 06
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{HEM)

w2

un

INDERLYING

MON-UNDERLVING
(HUTED)

NIN-UNDERLFING
L UNDIRLYING {NOTET)

TOTAL

Profit attributabla to owners of the Company 74.6 (44.3) 30.3 a87.0 (73.3) 137

Other comprehensive income/{expense)

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or

loss

Cash flow hedges 0.1 - 0.1 0.2 - 0.2

Currency transiation aifferences (26.2) - (26.2) 4.0 - 4.0

Net imvestment hedgea a.7 - 4.7 (1.3 . (1.3)
Imncorme tax relating to componerts of other comprehensive

income 0.9 - (0.9) -

Total other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year {22.3) - (22.3) 29 - 29

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the

Company 523 (44.3) 8.0 BO.9 (7335 16.6

Total comprehensive income/(expense) arising from:

Continuing operations 52.1 (34.7) 17.4 B9 6 171

Discontinued cperations 0.2 (9.6) (9.4 0.3 (0.8) (0.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

{INEM)

HOTE

an

wn

Assets
Non-current assets

Intang.ple assets 12 718.3 788.3
Property, plant and eguipment 13 13.6 13.4
Right-cf-use assets 14 19.1 20.4
Investrment in joint venturas and associates 15 - -
Other financial assets 30 1.1 -
Deferred tax assets 27 10.8 7.2
Total non-current assets 762.9 829.3
Current assets

Invertories 18 56.6 435
Trade and other receivables 17 163.2 1259
Dernvative financiai mstrumeants 21 - 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents 18 82.9 14351t
Total current assets 302.7 3.27
Total assets 1,065.6 1.122.¢
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Trade and otner payables 19 1.7
Borrowings and tease hiabiities 20 413.9 4507
Defarrad tax habihties 22 30.2 436
Total non-current liabilities 445.8 433.2
Current liabilities

Trade and cther payables 19 162.0 194.2
Corporation tax hak hities 6.0 37
Borrowings ard lease hablites 20 4.8 4.3
Derivative financia' ‘nstruments 21 - a3
Total current liabilities 172.8 203.2
Total liabilities €18.6 ce6.4
Net assets 447.0 445 G
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Share capital 23 0.1 01
Share premium account 24 240.2 240.2
Merger reserve 24 88.2 882
Hedgng reserva 24 - (2.1
Fore gn exchange reserve 24 4.7) 177
Ratained earnings 24 123.2 99.5
Total equity 447.0 4456

The notes on pages 101 te 13 form an integral part of the consohdatad financial statements

The financ.a staremeants o0 pages 96 to 131 were approvea and auwnonsed forissue by tre Soard of Directors on 'S September

2021 and were s.grad ¢nits beralf by

(A— DocuSigned by
| Fhmeen (hnllam
U Signer haffie 3taan Umitch

Signing Reason | approse this Ascament
Sugnng Tme 11-Nov-2021 16 40 45 PM GMT

— E41ADF36000DEAFF BABFCF 15010090966

SHAUN CHILTON

Dhrector
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

{IMEN) LI} FLH] 0w

Operating activities

Profit for the yvear before tax 51.8 232
Share of profit of jomnt venture - (0.2
Net finance costs 8 9.7 19.6
Profit from aoperations 61.5 425
Adjustments for
Armorusation of intangiole ‘ixed assets 51.1 £8.9
Impa rrent of Intargible lixed dssets 2.6 42
Depreciat:on of property, plant and equipment 6.5 5.8
Imparrment of investment m joint venture 15 - 59
Maoverrent in far value of derivative financial mstruments - 0.1
(Decreased/increase in farr value of contingent consideration 7 (5.9) 11.8
Payment of increased fair value of contingent consideration 29 (33.2) -
Currency revaluation on contingent consideration 7 (1.6) 2.0
Equity-settled share-nased payment expense o] 3.7 35
84.7 1247
increase ININventones (15.2) 8.3
mcrease in trade and other recaivables 47.9) (17.0)
increase/(aecrease) in trade and other payables 45.1 (5.5)
Cash generated from operations 66.7 339
acome taxes pard (15.6) (259
‘rterest paid (10.6) (19 2)
Net cash flows from operating activities  continuing cperatiors 40.5 59.8
MNet cash flaws from operating activities - discontinued operations 4.7 0.8
Net cash flows from operating activities 45,2 60.6

Investing activities

FPurchase of ntaraible f.red assets (excluding products) 12 (23.2) (19.9)
Purchase of property. plant and eguipment 13 (5.1) (28)
Furchase of specialty pharmaceutical products 12 - (58 4)
Contingent consideration on purchase of subsidiaries 29 (34.7) -

Proceeds from sale of business, net of cash disposed 30 3.1 -

Net cash flows used in investing activities - continuing operations {59.9) (81.1)
Net cash flows used in invasting activities - discontinued cperations {0.6) (C.3)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (60.5) (81.4)

Financing activities

Proceeds from increase inlcan 20 7.6 10786

Loan repaymeants 20 (30.9) {1710
Principal element of lease payments 20 (3.4) (3.1
Step acguisition of Clinigen Ireland Ltd 29 (1.8}

Dividlerds paid 11 (10.1) (9.2)
Net cash flows used in)/from financing activities - contimuinNg operatons {38.6) 78.2

Net cash flows used in financing activities - discontinded operations 30 (0.3) (0.3
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities (38.9 779

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (54.2) L7z

Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 July 18 143.1 83.5

Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (6.0) 2.5

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 18 82.9 1431
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SHARECAPITAL SHARE PREMIUM FAREIGN EXCHANGE
(NEM} i3] ACCINT MERGERRESERYE  HEDGINGRESERVE RESEAVE  RETAINED EARMINES TOTALEAUITY
At 1 July 2020 0.1 240.2 88.2 (0.1) 12.7 99.5 445.6
FProfit for the year - - - - - 30.3 30.3
Currency translation differences - - - - (26.2) - (26.2)
Net investmeant nedgea, net of tax - - - - 3.8 - 3.8
Cash flow hedges
- Effective portion of fair value movements - - - 0.6 - - 0.6
- Transfers to the income statement (revenue) - - - (0.5) - - {0.5)
Total comprehensive income - - - 0.1 {22.4) 303 8.0
Employee share schemes (note 27) - - - - - 3.7 3.7
Step-acquisiton of Chimgen lrelang Lid - - - - - (0.2) (0.2)
Dividends paid (note 17) - - - - - (10.1) (10.1)
Total transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity - - - - - {6.6) (6.6)
At 30 June 2021 0.1 240.2 88.2 - “a.7) 123.2 447.0

SHARECAPITAL SHARE PREMIN FAREIGH EXCHANGS
(NEM) (NeTE2Y) AECUNT WERGERRESERYE  HEDGINGRESERYE RESERVE  RETAINEDERRNINGS TOTAL EQUITY
At 30 June 2019 0.1 240.2 B88.2 (0.3 150 95.2 438.4
Impact of adopting IFRS 16 - - ~ - - (2.2 (2.2
At 1 July 2019 0.1 240.2 88.2 (0.3 15.0 93.0 436.2
Frofit for the year - - - - - 13.7 157
Currency translation differences - - - 4.0 - 4.0
Net investment hedge, net of tax - - - (1.3 - 1%
Cash flow hedges
- Effective partion of fair value movaments - - - 0.3 - -~ 03
- Transfers ta the incame statement (revenue} - - - (0.1 - - 0.1
Total comprehensive income - 0.2 2.7 13.7 16.6
Ermployee share schemes (note 27) - - - - - 35 5
Step-acqgusition of Clinigen Iretand Lid - - - - - (1.6) (1.6)
Deferred taxation an employee share schemas - - - - - 0.1 01
Dividends paid (rote 11 - - - - 22 9.2)
Total transactions with owners of the Company,
recognised directly in equity - - - - - (7.2 (7.2)
At 30 June 2020 01 240.2 88 2 (0.1 177 99.5 A45.6
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accourting policies adopted by the Group and apel ed in the prenaration of these consolidated financial
statements are set out belew The policies have been consistently appled to all years presented. unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

The Consclidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modif.ed to include revaluation
to fair value of certain financial instruments, in accordance with internaticnal accounting standards in confarmity wath the
reguirernents of the Comparies Act 2006

Omn 41 December 2020 ElJ-adoptad IFRS was brought into UK law ard became UK-adcpted international accounting standards
with future changes to IFES baing subject to enacrserment by the UK Fndorsement Board CUKER ) The Consotidated Financial
Sratements will transition to UK-adopted intermational accounling standards Tor Tmancial perniodas begimning 1 July 2021

The preparation of these financ:al statements requ res the use of certain eritrcal accounting estimates It also requires Group
managerment to exercise ts judgement in the orocess of appiving the Group's accounting oolicies, Tne areas invowving a hugher
degree of jJudgement or complexity. or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolhidated f nancial
staternents. are disclosed in note 2

The accounting policies set out below have unless atherwise stated, been appied consistent y througnout the year presented in
these financal statements These financial statements are presented in pounds stering which s the Group’s presentation
currancy. All financial information presented in pounds sterling has bheen rounded to the nearest £100.000.

Gaing concern

The Group's strategy and forecasts taking account of sensit-vities within the trading projectiors and possible changes in trading
perfarmance, show that the Group has adequate resources to continue in gperational existence for the foreseeable future The
Group s not immune from COVID-19, however. the impact on trading 1s not impacong on the Group's ability 1o continde as a
going concern, At 30 June 2021 the Group nad £83m of cash balances along with a further £32m of undrawr borrowing facility
avallable, wnich combined with the Grouo's positive cask generation frem each of 1ts gperations. provides safficient funding for
the near-term settlement of daferred consideration labiities along with sufficient iguidity for cngomg trading

After mak ng aporopriate engures tne Directors have a reasonable expectation tnat the Campany ard the Group have adeguate
resources to coentinue in operational ex stence for at least twelve maonths from the date of aprroval of the financial statements
Therefore, the Company and Group centinues to adopt the going concern Dasis In preparing :ts financ al statemeants Further
mfarmat-on on the Group's borrowirg faclities 1s given nnote 20

Changes in accounting policies

(a) New and amended standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Group

IFRS 3

There was an amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Zombinations' relating to the definition of a business. wth an effective date of
P January 2020 wnicn the Graup adopted from 1 July 2020

The change in definition of a busiress within IFRS 3 introduces an optional concentration test to perform a simplified assessment
of whether an acguired set of activities and assets s o7 15 not a business on a transactien-by-trarsaction basis. This change s
expected to result In more consistency in accounting in the pharmaceutical industry for substantially simiar transactions that,
under the previous defimition, may have been accounted for in aifferent ways despite im.ted d.fferences n substance

There were no other new standards interpretatiors or amendments to standards that are effoctive for the financial year
beginring 1 July 2020 that have a matenal /mpact on the Group’s conschdated financial statements.

(b) New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet adopted
At the date of s.gning these financial statements, the fallowing amendments were In1ssue but not yet adopted by tne Group

- Amendments to IAS 1 'Prasentation of Firancial Irstruments . effective for penods beginning o0 or after 1 January 2021 - not
endorsed by the UKEB

- Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 IFRS 7 IFRS 4. IFRS 161 relation to interest rate benchmark reform - pnase 2, effect ve for
pericds begnmng on or after 1 January 2021 - endorsed by the UKEB on 5 January 2021

- Amendments ta 1AS 12 Income Taxes' «nrelation to the recognition of deferred tax balances on transactions that, on imtial
recogn tian, give rise to equal amounts of taxab'e and deductible temporary d:fferences such as leases. effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 - not yet endarsed by the UKEB

These amendments and interpretatiors are not expacted to have a sigmficant impact on the Group's net results.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continue
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 1UNE 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES coNTINueD

Basis of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements present tna results of the Company and its subsidiari2s as if they formed a single entity
Subsidiaries are those entit.es where the Company has the ab ity to control the activities of and decisions madsa by that entity
and ta receive ecanamic benefits that can be affected by that control

The results of subsidiartes acguired during the year are included o the Group results from the date on which controtis
transferred to the Group Accounting palicies of subsid ares are changed when necessary 1o ensure consistency with the
accounting polces adopted by the Groun. There are no significant restrictions on the Group's abilty to access or use assets and
settle habilities of the Group

The Group apphes IFRS 11 Jomnt Arrangements’ to all joint arrangements Iavestments injoint arrangements are classified as
aither joint operations or joInt ventures The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor,
rathar than the legal structure of the Jjoint arrangement Clinigen has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them all to be joint ventures ar assoc ates Jont ventures and asscciates are accountad for using the egquity method

Intercarmpany transactiors and balances are ehmirated on consohdation

Business combinations

The Group uses the acguisition metnoa to account far business combinations The consideration transferred far the acquisition
of a subsid-ary 1s egual to the fair value of the assets transferred. the abrties incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group The consideration transferred InCludes the far vaue of any asset or hatil ty resuitng from a contingent consideration
arrangement Acquisit-on-reiated costs are expensad as incurred ldentifiable assets acguirea and hiabilities and contingent
habihties assumed in a bus-ness combination are measured in-tally at ther fair values at the acquisition date

On an acguisition-oy-acgu:sition basis, the Graup recogrises any non-controling interest 1n the acguiree eitner at far value or at
the non-contralling interest's proporfionate share of the acquirea's net assets The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controling interest In the acguiree and the acquisihion date farr value of any nrevicus equity interestin the
acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the dentif able net assets acguired is recorded as goodwill If this s less than
the fair value of tne net assets of the subsidiary acaured 1n the case of a bargair purchase, the difference s recogrused airectly
i the incame statement

Acaulsition costs for business cormoinations and past-acquisition restructuning costs are recognised as non-underlying costs in
the income statement as adusting items as they do not re ate 1o aormal rrading activities and to reflect their one-off rature

Foreign currency

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iterns ncluded in the financial statements of eack of the Group’s entities are measured us ny the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency ) The consolidated finarcia statements are
presented in steriing, beirg the currency of the pnimary economic environmenrt in which tne Parent Company operates 1hisis
the Group's presentation carrency

¢b) Transactions and balances

Transachions entered into by Group entities ina currency other than the currency af the primary econom-c environmeant in which
they operate (therr ‘functional currency ) are recorded at the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions or
valuation wnerg items are remeasured Foreign currency menetary assets ana habilites are translated at the exchange rates
prevalling at the reporting aate All foreign exchange gams and 10sses are prasanted 1in the income statement within
adrministrative expenses

(c) Group companies

The results and financ a' positien of all the Group entiies that have a functiona currency aifferent from the presentaticn

currency are trrans'ated into the presentation currency as follows

a2y Assets and habilities for each statement of finarcial position presented are translated at the clasing exchange rate on the oate

of that statement

Incorre and expenses for eacn IMCcome statement and statement of comprehensive iIncome are translared ar average

axchange rates (unless this 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumu'ative effect of the rates prevalling on tne

fransaction dates. n which caseircome and exnenses are frranslated at the dates of the trarsactions) and

> Al resulting exchange d fferences are recognised in ather comprehensive income and accumulated in tne foreign excharge
reserve

o

P

&)

On gisposal of a foreign ooeration, the cumulative 2xchange differencas recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating 1o
that operancn uo to the date of dispesal weuld be transferred t¢ tne income statemment as part of the profit or loss on d spesal

Segment reporting

Cperatng segments are repartad in a manner consistent w.in the interna report-ng providad to the Group s Chief Cparating
Dezision Maker (CODM) The CODM has beznidentfied as the Execulive Directors —urther information or the segmeants the
segmental disclosures in note 4 have Deen amendad with tne restatemeant of comparatives
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Share-based payments

Where equity-sattled snare options are awarded to employees. the fair value of the options at the date of grant 15 charged to the
income statement over the vesting period Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity INstruments expected to vest at each reporting date so that, uitimately. the cumulative amount recagrused over the
vesting pencd s based on the number of options that eventually vest. Non-vesting conditions and market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the opt ons granted As long as all other vest'ng conditions are satisfied, a charge 1s made
irrespective of whether the market vesting conaitions are satisflied The curmulative expensea 1s not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition or where a nan-vesting condition 1s not satishied

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest the increase in the far vawwe of the opticns. measured
immediately before and after the modification. s a:so charged to the income statement over the remairning vesting perod

Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are materiat tems of iIncome or expense which the Directors consider are not related to the normal trading
activities of the Group and are therefore separately disclosed as non-GAAP measures to enable full understanding of the
Group's irancial performarce. These include one-off iterns relating to acguisitions e.g acquisition costs and tha costs of
restructur.ng post-acguisition amortisation of iIntangible assats ansing on acquisit on and acquired products. movements of
deferrad or contingent considerat on, and the release of the far value adjustrrent made to inventary acquired through a
business combimation The associated tax impact of these itermns 1s also reported as nan-underlying.

Discontinued operations

A discontimued operat-on s a component of the Group's business that represents a separate geographic area of cperation or a
separate major line of business Classification as a discontinued operation accurs upon disposa: or earlier If the cperation meets
the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale Discontinuea operations are presented in the Group ncomea statement s a separate
ine and are shown rat of tax

When an eperation s classified as a discont nued operation, comparatives i the Group income statement and the Group
staterment of comprehensive ‘ncome are re-preserted as f the operation had been discantinuad from the start of the
comparator year,

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combinatnon over in the case of business combinations campleted prior
tao 1 July 2010, the Group's interest in the fairr value of identifiable assets. habilities and coatingent habihities acaured

For business combinations completed after 1 July 2010 goodwill reprasants the excess of the cost of a business comination
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of identifiable assets, natihities and contingent habiites including those imtangible
assets rdentified under IFRS 3 'Busingss Comoimations’

Goodwill 1s capitalised as an intargible asset with any impairment in carrywng value being charged to the income statement
wWnere the fair value of identifiable assets, labihities ana contingent habihttes excead the fair value of consideration paid. the
excess 15 crechited in ful to the Income statement on the acguisition date as a non-underlying item

Goodwill 1s not amortised, but s assessad for imparrment annually or more frequently If events or changes indicate a potertia!
impairment Goodwill ansing on business combinations s aliccated to the assoc:ated cash-generating units (CGUs™) based on
the particular segment that if relates to This s then assessed against the discounted cash flows of the CGUs for impairment.

Brand

The brand reflects the cash flows asscoiated with the Idis brand acquired in Aorl 2015, the Lirk, Homemed and Eqguity brands
purchased in October 2015 the Guantum brana purchased in November 2017, and the C5M brand purchased 1n October 2018
Each brand was recogrisad following the associated business combnation and 1s in tally recognised at the far value of the asset
at the acquisition date The carrying value of the brand 1s calculated as cost less accumulated amortisation Amortisationas
calculated using the straight-l'me method to allocate the fair value cost of the asset over its estimated useful hfe, The estimated
useful hves range hetween 10 and 20 years The amortisation expense 1s recognised within non-underlying administrative
expenses in the income statement.

Contracts

Contracts acguired in a business combination are recognised at fair value or the acquisition date The contracts recogn sed as
intang-ble assets relate to those with key suophers which were identified as important to the trade of the acquired business The
supply of product on a contractual and often exclusive basts 1s a key value driver and was a key element In the decision to
acguire the Idhis and Link businesses

The contracts have a finite Iife and are amortised aver the contractua! term Amarfisation 1s scheduled to follow the expected
ecanomic benefits, recogrising the fair value cost of acguiring these contracts against the revenues generated from them This
Is normally on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract, exceot ‘ar MAPs which, due to therr nature, have a short penod
of economic benefit 1.2, until the product 1s licensed and becomes commercially avalable The economic benefits from MAP
confracts are weighted to the early stages of the contract The amortisation expense s recognised with-n nan-underlying
administrative expensas in the income statement on a reducing balance basis,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continuen
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES conTiNUED

Customer relationships
The customer relationships within acguirea operat ng businesses can be separately identified The custcmer relationships have
been nitially recognised following & business combinat on at tha fair value of tha asset at the acquisiben date

Amartisation 1s schadulad to follow the expected economic penefits of each asset over thewr estimatad Useful | ves. as follows

- tink - between 6 and 2 years (straight-line)
- CTS - 7 years (straight-lhine)

- ldis - between 7 ard 14 yesrs (straight-line)
- Quantum - 13 years (reducing balance)

- CSM -5 years (reducing balance)

- 1Qone - 15 years freducing ba'ance)

The amcriisation expense s recogrised within non-underlying administrative expensas in tne income statement

Trademarks and licences
Separate y acquired trademarks and hcences are imitially recognised at cost. be.ng tne far value o the purchase price of the
asset and any directly attributable cost of acquinng the assst and preparnng It for 1ts intendead use

Expend ture on development activ bies s capitalised f the product or process s techrucally and commercally feasible and the
Group intends has the techmical ability and has sufficient rescurces to complete develcpment, future economic oenefits are
probable and if the Group can measure reliably tne exoenditure attributable to the intangible assat during its developmenrt
Uevelopment activities involve a olan or design for the production of new or substant:ally improved nroducts ar processes The
oxpenditure cap.talised includes the cost of mater als. direct labour and an appropnate proportion of cveriieads and capitansed
baorrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recogrised in the consalidated income statement as an expense as iIncurred
Internally developed trademarxs and hcences are held as assets under construction during development and amortisation
commences when the aevelopmenrt 1s completo ard the asset is avalable for use

The carrying value of traderrarks and iicences s calculated as cost less accurrulated amorusation and imoarment losses
Arnoriisation s calculated using the straight-lire method to allocate tne cost of the trademarks and | cences aver their estimated
useful lves of betweer S and 15 years The amortisation expense s recognised within undernying admiristrative cxpanses n the
ncome statemeant, apart from wnere the trademarks or hcences are acgured as part of a bus'ness camb nation or product

aequ sitian which s recognised within non-underlying administrat ve expenses

Computer software

Camputer software s capitahisad and recognised at cost being the purchase pree of the asser and any directly attributable
costs of develaping rhe asset for its ntended use including nternal sta*f casts for time spent specfically on gaveloprrernt
activities, The carrying va'ue of computer software s calculated as cost less accumuiated armgrhisation and impa rment losses
Amortisation begins when the computer saftware comes into use and 1s calculated us.ng the straighs-hine metnod to al'ocate the
cost overats estmated useful hfe of three to seven years Tne amortisation expense 1s recogn sed within underlying
admimistrativa expensas 1IN tne iIncome statement

Impairment reviews

Gooawillis assessed for impa rment annually or maore frequently if avents or changes indicate a potential impairment Other
mtanaibles are reviewed forimpairment if a trnigger 'saidentified The carrying value of individual intangible and tangib e assets s
compared to the recoveraole amount, wnich s the hogher of value-in-use and the fair value less costs to sell Animparment loss
s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds 1ts recoverable amount

Where it 1s not possible to estimate the recoverakle amount of an individual asset the 'mpa rment test 1s carried out on the

smallest group of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable cash f ows (the CGUs) Goodwill 15 ,
allccated on 'minal recognition to each of the Group's CGUs tnat are expected tc benefit from the symargies of the combmation

giving rse to the goodw.h

Nan-financial assets. other thar goodwill, that suffered ar imoairment are reviewen for possible reversa’ of the iImpairment as
cach reparting date

Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and eguipment are stated at hustorical cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised rrparrment [oss
Cast comprises the purchase price and directly attributaole amourts to bring the asset into operat.on

Depreciation is prov'ded on all tems of property. n'ant and eauinment at rates caculated o write off tho cast of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected usaful economic hife, as foilows

- Lana and buildings - 25 years

Leasehold improvements - remaming term of lgase to wn.cn the improvemerts relate
- Plant and machinery - 20%
- Fixtures, fithings ana egquiproent - 20% to 33%
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Leases
Assets ana habitias ans ng from a iease are imtially measured on a present value basis. Lease | apilit.es include the nat present
value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments l2ss any lease incentive receivable,

- variable lease payments that are basad on an index or a rate;

- amourts expected to be payable by the Group undar residual value guaarantees

- the exercise price of a purcnase option If the Group s reasonabiy certain to exercise that option, and

- paymrents of penalties for terminaticn of the lease If the lease term reflects the Group exercisng that option

Lease nayments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease If that rate cannot be determined, the Group's
increrrenta borrowing rate s used. bang tne rate tnat the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtaman
asset of similar value m a similar econcrmic environment with sirmilar terms and conditions

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost compr:sing the fallowing

- the amount of the imitial measurement of lease habibty or a revaluation of the labsl ty:

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date 1ess any lease incentves recaived;
- any inihal direct costs and

- restocration costs

Each right-of-use asset 1s depreciated over the shorter of its useful econom ¢ | fe and the lease term on a straight-l'ne basis
unless the lease 1s expected to transfer ownership of the underlying asset to thae Group In wh cr case the asset s depreciated to
the end of the useful Iife of the asset

Payrmeants assoc ated with the short-term l2ases are recognisad on a straight-line basis as an exparse in the iIncome statement
Short-term leases are leases w.th a ease term of 12 months aor less

Investments
Investments in subsidlanies are recorded at histar-cal cost less any provision for impa rmment

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the sguity method of accounting Under the eauity method, tne
investrent s witially recorded at cost, ard the carrying amounrt 1s increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of
the profit or loss of the investee a*ter the date of acouisition

Inventories

Inventores are intiailly recognised at cost and subseqguently staten at the lower of cost and net realisable value The first in. first
out or an average method of valuation 1s used Cost comprises all costs of purchase costs of conversior and other costs
incurred 10 bringing the invertories to therr present location and condition In the case of manufactured inventories and waork in
progress. cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal aperating capacity Net realisable value s the
estimatad selinrg nrice less applicable varable sellng expenses Provisiors are made for slow-maoving and damaged inventores.
Inventcr es which have expred are fully provided for until they are deastroyad, when they are written off

A onamber of arrangements exist where the Group nolds nventories on cons gnment, Jndér thess arrangements such inventories
are only recogmsed intne statement of financial position when the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the Group.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Grouo uses darivative financial instruments to mitigate 1ts exposure to foreign currency exchange risk on cash flow
transactions Dervative financial instrurrents are recocgnised imitally at their farr value and remeasured at farr va:ue a*t each
penod end Where appropriate the Group designates hedge relationships for hedge accounting under IFRS 2 Frnancial
Instruments’

Where hedge accounting has been appled changes in the fair value of dernwvative financial instraments designated as cash flow
hedges are recognised In other comprehenswe income to the extent that the hedge s effective To the axtent that the hedge 1s
neffective. changes in fair value are recognised immediate’y in the incaome staterment If the hedgimg instrument no longer meeats
tne criteria for hedge accounting. expiraes ar1s sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting s discaontinued
prospactively The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensiva income remains there until the forecast
transaction occurs, When the hedged item s a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in other comprehensiva iIncome 1s
transferred to the carryving amount of tne assat when it s recogrised In cther cases. the amount recognised in other
comprehensive incormea s transferred to the income statemant in the same peniod that the hedged 1item affects profit or loss. The
designation s ra-evaluated at each reporting date

The gain or loss an remeasurement to fair value of derivatives that nave not been designated for hedge accounting 1s recognised
immediately in the income staterment. Foreign forward exchange derivative gains and losses are recogmised net

Hedges of net iInvestrmerts in foreign aperations are accounted for similarly te cash flow hedaes Any gam or loss an the hadgng
Instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge as weli as any asscciated income tax expense or credit 1s recognised n
othar comprehensive income and accumulated in the foraign exchange reserve.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS conmwueo
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for gooads sold or services performed in the orchinary course of business
Trade receivables are recognised inimially at the amount of consideration that 1s unconditional unless they contain sigrificant
financ ng companents, where they are recogrised at fair value The Group holds trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the cantractual casn flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective Interest
methaod

The Group apphes the IFRS 9 simplifiied approach to measunng expectea credit [9sses which uses a ifetime expected loss
a'lowance for all trade receivables The expacted 055 rates are based an pcayment profiles and histeric cred t losses The historic
loss rates are adjustad to reflect current and forward-looking information on macro-economic factors to the extent they are
relevant to the customers’ ablity to settle For trade recevables, which are reported net such provisions are recerded in a
separate allowance account with the moverment .n the provision being recogrised within administrative expearses in the income
staterment The gress carrying value of the asset s written off agamst the associated provision when the Group s right to the
cash flows expires

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include casn in hano, depos ts held at call with banks and other Pighly hguid cash investments

Borrowings

Borrowings are imtially receognised at fair vawue rnet of transaclion costs irciud ng fachity fees incurrad Such nterest-bearing
nabihties are subseguently measured at amortised Cost using the effectve interest rate method, which 2nsures that any nterest
expense over the penod to repayment s at 3 constant rate on the balance of the habihity carried in the censolidated staterrent of
firancial position Facility fees paid on the establ shment of facilities and for The mainterance of the facility are capitalised
agammst tne ‘oans and borrowings balarce. These are amaornsed as the loang repa d with the associated amortisation expense
recognised ir finance costs

Trade and other payables

Trade payaoles are cbligations to pay for goods ana services tnat have been acqguired in the ordinary course of business fram
supochiers They are classfied as current! abililies f nayrrent 1§ due witrin one year or 1ess 1T not, tney are presented as noen-
current haoihties Trade pavablas are imitially recognised at fair vatue ard subseguently carnied at amaortised cost using the
affective interest meathod

Deferred and contingent consideration

Deferrad consideration payabie in cash in respect of tne acguistion of mtangible assets s recognmsad imtially at irs fair value at
the date of acguisimion The difference between tre farr value of the deferred consideration and the ammoun:s nayakle in the
future s recognised as a finance cost over tne deferment period

Connngent cons daration on Dusiness cormbimations s mimiathy Mmeasured at far value andhs pavatis ncash The far- valae of the
cantingent hakil ty 1s remeasdred at each penod end and the change :n fair va'us 15 recogrised in the ircorme statement as a
non-underlying item

&

The contingent Lorsiderat.an haoil ty s classified as a carrent habihty f payment s due wernin ong year or less If rat s

presented as a non-current hab hty

Retirement benefits: defined contribution schemes
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the year to which they relate
Tre Group has no furthaer payment obhgations once tha contnbunons have peen paid

Provisions

A Drovision Is recogrised ir the oaiance snoat when the Group has a oresent .ega’ or constructive obhgation as a result of a past
evert itis more hkaiy than not that an outflow of sconomic benefits wal be required to settle the cohgation and the obhgation
can be estimated rel ably Provisiors are discounted if the impact on the provisian s deemad to bhe matenal

Dividends
Dwvidends are recogrnised when they becomea legally pavab.e In thea case of interim gividends to equity snareholders, this s wnan
patd Irthe case of ina dradends, rrisas when approved by the shareholdars

Current and deferred tax

The tax expensa for the year compr ses currant and deferred tax Tax s recognised in the income statement excent to the
extent that it relates to tems recognised ir othar comprehansive income or directiy 10 2gu ty, In this case the tax s also
recogrised 'n other comprehensive income or airectly in equity respectivaly

The current tax charge includirg UK corporation tax and forewgr tax s calculated on the nas s of the laws that Fave been
enacted or substant vely enacted by the kalance steet date Provisiors are establshed. where appropriate on the oasis of
amounts expecied 1o be pad
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Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or hakility 1in the consalidatea statement
of financ.al position differs from its tax base except for differences ansing on

- thentiarrecognition of goodwill.

- the mtiar recognmition of an asset or habiity 1n a transaction which 1s not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction affects naither accounting nor taxable profit and

- investrrents in subsidianes and jointly contralled entities where the Group 1s able 1o control the tirming of the reversal of the
difference and It 1s probable that the difference wiil not reverss in the foreseeable future

Defarred income tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be availlable aga nst
which the differences can be utiised.

The amount of the asset or hak.lity 1s determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expectea to app v when the deferred tax habil ties or assets are settled or recovered. respectively.

Defarred tax assets and habilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets and
natbihties and the deferred tax assets and habilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authonty cn either

- the same taxabla Group company. or

- different company entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and hakilities cn a net basis, or fo realise the assets
and settle the habutes simultanecusly 17 each future penod in which significant amounts of aeferred tax assets and habi'ines
are expected to be settled or recovered

Share capital
Financial instruments 1ssuad by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they oc not meet the defin tion of a
financia! haoihty The Group's ordinary shares are class:ified as equity instruments

Revenue
Revenue represents amodnts recenvable for goods and services provided in the norma: course of business, net of trade
discourts, VAT and other sales-related taxes

Supply of products

Revenue from the supp!y of products s recogrised, at a pontint me. when the Group bas transferred control to the buver.
These criteria are normally cons'derad to be met when the goods are delvarad to the buyer. or on fulfilmant of 3 prescription
Reveanue 15 recognised at the fair value of consideration received ar receivable

Revanue from the supply of products in relation to charged for Managed Access Praograms is reccgnisad based on Clinigen
be-ng the prirc.pal In the transaction given tha Group takes title and bears the inventory risk The revenue and cost of sales on
these arrangements are typical.y the same value and 15 tnerefore referred to as ‘pass through revenue Net reverae defined as
revenue excluding the pass through from Managed Access s an Alternative Performance Measure used by tne Group as it allows
management to assess the performance of the busness after remaoving the distortion of pass through revenue which varies
depending on the mix of charged for' and free of charge programs in the penoad

Service fees

All services provided in relation to Managed Access Frograms and product developrment contracts are contractually agreed with
the product onginator Revenue for these services 1s recogmised in the period in which the services are provided For fixed-price
contracts, revenue s recogrised based on the actua' service provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the benefits simuitaneously Estirmates of revenues. costs
or extent of progress toward completior are reviewed f circumstances change Any resulting increase or decrease in estumated
revenues or costs is reflected in profit or loss ir the per.od in which the circumstances that give rise to the rev.ew become known
to managemant

Contractied program satup fees can be either for the whole project or triggered by milestones being achizved which are laid out
In the contract Revenue s recognised in relation to these fees over time as contracted milestones are achieved

Monthly management fees are recognised as revenue over time as contractual services are provided.

Revenue in respect of program management fees ts recognised, at a point in time, when goods provided under the program,
have been dispatched te the customer for whom the managernent fee relates

Royalties

Royalty income 1s earned on product distributicn agreements based upon a percantage of sales maae by the distribution
partner As these sales-based royalties are on the licensing of the right to use the Grodp's intellectual nreperty. revende 15 only
recogn sed at a point in ume once the relevant product sales accur

Revenue in ail years principally arises from the three income streams discussed above Furtherinformanon s avallable in note 4
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2.CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makas certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future Estimares and juagaments are continually evaluated
based on histornical expenence and other factors, including expectatiors of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the Crrcumstancas i the futura, actual expanance may differ from these astimiatas and assurmptions The estimates and
assumptions that have a sign:ficant risk of caus'ng a matenal adjustrrent to the carrying amaunts of assets and habilities vathin
the next financial year are discussed below,

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually wheather goodwill has sufferea any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
1 The recoverable amount s determined based on value-in-use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of
future cash flows and the chowce of a discount rate wn order fo ca'culate the present vaiue of the cash flows Actual outcomes
may vary. Mare infarmation ncluding carrying values and sensitivities s included in note 12

Carrying value of intangible assets excluding goodwill

The carrying value of iIntangible assetss at cost lass amortisation and any imoarment Annual -mpalrment trigger revisws are
urdertaker at the end of the financial year. or more frequently f events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairrment Trademarks and licences are not traded N an active markat hence the fair value of the asset 1s determined using
discounted cash flows which invelves the Group usng judgement and assumptions on the future performance of the product as
wel as the choice of discount rate and terminal future growth rate

Sale of products wholesale

Certain products are sold to wholesalers with provisions to return product as a result of 2xp ry dates being reached and for
reimbursement from Clingen for sae of product at celow Wnolesaler Acguisition Cost (WAL known as chargebacks where
agreements are in place with healthcare providers Revenuz s recognisad nat of an estimate of reimbursements expected
Accumuated experienca s used to estimate and provide for the reimbursements and revenue 1s only recognised to tne extent
that it 15 fughly probable tnat a sigruficant reversa will not occur A hab ity Oncluded ntrade ana other payaolas) s recognisad
for expected returns, reébates and chargebacks payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the report ng
peroa

The adjustrnent to revenue during the year for returns, chargebacks and rebates s £10 Om (2020 £8 3m) A 1% change 1in the
estimated returns rate would resuitima £10m (2020 £0 8m) aaditional adjustment to revenue

Managed Access judgment of being a principal

Managed Access Programs provide a service for clients to aistr.bute unlicensied oroducts before tne prodguct 1s hcensed in key
markets Chnigen charges the end customer for the prodact supphed at the price determined oy the chent which results ina
pass through of revernus & judgment 15 taken by management that Chmgen 1s operating as primcipal inthe transachan Based on
the Group taking title to the product and tearrg mventory rsk As a resd't. Chinigen recogn ses the amounts charged to
customers for thys activity as revenue

Contingent consideration

Contgent consideration payable ana receivable 1s initial y measured at the ret present value of the expected future cash flows,
discounted using an appropriate discount rate, to be paid or received pursuant to tne re evant agreements. The discount rate
used s ore-tax ana reflacts tne current market assessments of the time value of monay and the risks specific to the habylty The
fair value of the cont ngent habilty 1s remeasu-ed at each penod end utihsing the 1atest financal forecasts The change in fair
value 15 recognised in ihe Income statement as a non-underlying item At 30 J.na 2027, the Group has a contingent
constderation labulty of £1 7m0 relation ta the (Gone acgu sition Further information on the eshimatad farr value of the hability
and the sensitivity of the estimate 1s provided in note 29

Allocation of acquired intangibles on disposal

On 30 June 2027 the Group disposed of its UK Specials Manufacturing and Aseptic Compourding business whicn nad beer
acourad in 2077 as vart of Quantum Pharma p'c On the acguisibcn of Quanium Pnarma plo, the Group recagnised certamn
acodwill and other separately dentified intangiblas which were assessed by a~ independent valuation expert Following the
dsposal, management s required to make a Judgerment on the ailocatior of these intangibles between the part of the or gina.ly
acquired busiress baing disposed and the part rerraiming The value of the Guantum brand has been treated as fully alocated to
the dsoosa’ whils the vawe of the goodw ll and custarer relationsnips Ras been allocated based on the value attributable o
each busiress This has been estimated usirg the relative adjusted EBITDA of the oispesed and rermaining pusinesses.

3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Group's perfarmance s assessed using a numoar of non-GA AR finarcal measures wnich are not defred under IFRS. Trnese
magsJres are thergfore consdered aitarnat.va parformance measures

“Management uses the ad usted or alternative measurss as part o their internal finang al performance mon.tonng and when
assessing the future /mpact on operating decis ons

The measuras allow more effactive year-gna-yaar campanson and identtfication of Core busiiess trends by remaving the tmpact
of 1tems occurring eitner outside tne normal course of aperations or as a result of INtermttent activit.es sucn as business
combirat:ons and restructuring The pr ncicles tooent fy adiusting iterrs have peen applied to the current and prior year
cormparat,ye numpers on a consistent Lasis

The measures usad n the Anruar Report are defined in the tanle gverleaf ana reconciiation to the IFRS measure are imciuded in
note 4
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ALTERRATIVE PERFIRMANCE MEASURE

NELATEDIFRSMEASURE

DEFINITION

SE/RELEVANCE

Net revenue

Adjusted gross
profit

EBITDA

Adjusted
EBITDA

Adjusted profit
before tax

Adjusted profit
after tax

Adjusted EPS

Net debt

Constant
exchange rate
(‘CER")

Operating cash
flow

Revenue

Gross prohic

Profit from
cperations

Profit from
cperations

Profit betore
tax

Brofit after
tax

Basic ERS

Cash flow from
operating
activities

Revenue excluding the pass through
revenue from Managed Access,

Gross profit excluding except:cnal charges
from write down of inventories

Conschdated earn.ngs before interest, tax
depreciauon and amaortisation

Consolidated earrmings before nterest, tax,
depreciation amaortisation and adjusting
items

- Restructuning and acgu sition costs

- Adustrments to centingent cons-aeration
ansng from aarn-outs or acquisit ors

- Exceptional imoarments

- Including share of joint venture EBITDA

Frofit before tax excluding adjusiing items:

- As detalled above for adjusted EBITDA

- Amortisation of acguisit.on-reiated
mtangible assets

- Jrmwind of discount on contingans
consideration

- Joint venture tax cha-ge

Profit after tax exclud ng adjusting items.

- As detaled above for profit before tax but
including jomnt venture tax cnarge

- Related tax on the adjusting 1tems

- Adjustments to tax charges relating to
pre-acquisition periods

Adjusted profit after tax as defined above
divided by the weignted average number of
shares inissue during the year consistent
with the number of shares used in tne
calcuiation of basic EPS

Net dept comprises the carry.ng va'ue of all
bank loans and drawn revolving credit
facilities net of unamortised foan 1ssue Costs
ard cash and cash eguivalants,

All amounts are closing balances as at the
relevant balance sheet date.

CER s achieved by applying the prior year’s
average actual exchange rates to the current
year's resdits

Cperating cash flow 15 net cash How from
operating activities befaore income taxes and
Iinterest Adjusted operating cash flow
excludes the element of C5M acgu sition
consideration racognised in oparating casn
flow

The year-con-year growth in revenue can be
impacted by a change in the mix of ‘charged
for  and free of charge' Managed Access
Programs. Net revenue allows management
and users of the accounts to assaess the
performance of the bus'ness after removing
the pass throuagh revenue

A raconcihat-on to the related IFRS measura 5
set gut Iin nafe 4

Allpws management to assess the
performance of the business after remowvng
the distortion of large/unusual items or
transactions that are not reflective of the
routine business operations

Areconcliation to the related IFRS measure 15
set out in noe 4

Provides management with an approximation
cf casn generaticn from operaticnal activities

Provides management with an approximation
of cash generaticn from operat.onal activities
after remaoving the distortion of large/unusual
items or transactions that are not reflective of
the underlying performance of the business

It 15 used In the covenant calculations for the
revolving credit facility

A raconchation o profit from oparations s
inc'uded in note 4

Allows management to assess the
performance of the business after removirg
the distortion of large/unusual 1iterms or
transactions that are not reflective of the
routine business aperatiens

Areconclianon to the related IFRS measure 15
set out Innote 4

The growth versds previous periods allows
management to assess the post-tax
underlying performance of the bhusiness m
combination with the impact of capital
structuring actions on the share base The
components used in the calculation of
adjustad EPS are detalled in note 10

Provides management with the level of
leverage in the pusiness and 15 used in the
covenant calculat-ons for the revolving credit
facility.

Allows rmanagerment todentify the relative
year-on-year perfarmance of the business by
removing the impact of currency movements
which are cutside of rmanagement’s control

Provides management with a view of the level
of EBITDA converted into cash
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3. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANGE MEASKRE  DELATED IFRS MEASURE TEFINITIEN VSE/NELEVANCE

Free cash flow Cash flow from Free cash flow s the cash generated from Frovides management withn an indication of
Operating operating activities excluding the cash the amount of cash avallabyle for discretionary
activities impact of adjusting items mvasting or financing after removing the

cdistartion of large/unusual expendifures that
- Acquisition costs and re‘ated rastructuring  are not reflective of the routineg business

Costs opearations

- Acguisitior-related income from
settlerment of contingent legal claims A reconclliation to adjusted EBITDA s
outstanding at acguistion included on page 50,

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable segments are strategic operating business units that provide different products and service offerings
into different market environments. They are maraged separately because eacn operational busingss requires different expertise
to deliver the different product or service offering they prowv de,

Operatng segments are reported 1N a manner consistert with thenternal reportimg provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM') during the reporting year The CODM has been identified as the Executrve Directors During the vear the
arganisational structure of the business has chargead (o the twe reported businesses of Products and Sarvices and the irterral
reporting to the CODM has changed to this nasis,

Operating segment results

Nat revanue and adjustad EBITDA are the segmental measures reporied to and usaed by the CODM to manage the business Net
revenue elirinates the volatility 1in reparted revenue which can anse from the pass through revenue as the mix cf charged and
free of charge Managed Access Programs charges Segmental adiusted EBITDA provides a measure of profitabnity with an
approximatior of cash generation

The results have been presented based on the previous tnree segments and the revised two-segment bas's to provide clanty on
the charges This change has been made to simplify the Grouo structure and better algn the Group's actvities to 1ts end
customears pharmaceutical chients and healthcare professionals

01l 1020 (REFRESENTED) (NITE2D)
(INEM) REPIRTEDREVENUE NETREVENOE  ADIVSTEDEBITA  REPERTEDREVENUE NETREVENUE  ADNSTEDERITDA
Commercial Madicineas 183.1 183.1 80.5 156.7 156.7 B5 5
Unlicensad Med cines 157.8 92.8 20.8 159.4 1213 2.0
Chrical Services 191.3 191.3 22.0 162.2 162.2 22.6
Certral unallocated costs and elormimations (8.6) (8.6) (7.0) (11 62 (11.6) (10033
Segrmental result - continuing eperations 523.6 458.6 116.3 466.7 428.0 129.8
Segmental result - discontinued operations 38.6 38.6 1.1 376 376 1.7

Segmental result 562.2 497.2 117.4 504.3 4662 131.0
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REPARTED REYENNE

NETREVENNE

ADINSTED EBITDA

REPORTED REYENUE

NETREVENVE

ADWSTEDEAITDA

Products 248.3 248.3 920.6 2502 250.2 105.2
Services 283.9 218.9 32.7 228.1 180.0 349
Central unallocated costs and e'iminations (8.6) (8.6) (7.0) (11L.6) (11.6) (10.3)
Segmental result - continuing operations 523.6 458.6 116.3 4667 428.6 129.8
Segmental result - discontinued operations 38.6 38.6 1.1 376 376 12
Segmental result 562.2 497.2 117.4 504.3 466.2 131.0

Net revenue I1s presented aftaer excluding pass through revenue of £65 Om (2020 £38 1m) from the Managed Access business

within Services

(INEM)

n

2020 (RE-PRESENTER) {NOTE 30}

INDEALYING

NIN-INOERLYING
(NDTET)

TRTAL

NON-UNDERLYING
URDERLYINE (KETED)

TATAL

Reconciliation to reported profit

Gross profit 198.0 (0.1) 197.9 210.0 4.9 205.1
Administrative expensas exclud ng amorusation and
depreciation (81.8) 5.6 (76.2) (80.8) (22.9) (103.7)
EBITDA 116.2 5.5 121.7 1292 (27.8) 101.4

Analysad as

Adjusted EBITDA including joint venture result 116.3 5.5 121.8 129.8 (27.8) 1020

Joint verture EBITDA (0.1) - (0.1) (0.6) - {06}

EBITDA excluding joint venture result 116.2 5.5 121.7 129.2 (27.8) 101.4
Ameortisation and impairment (9.2) {44.5) (53.7) (4.6) (48.5) 53.1)
Depreciation {6.5) - {6.5) (5.8 - (5.8)
Profit from operations 100.5 {39.0) 61.5 1188 (76.3% 42.5
Finance costs (8.3) (1.9 9.7) (11.3) 8.3 (19.6)
Share of profit of joint venture - - - 0.3 - 0.3
Profit before income tax 92.2 40.4) 51.8 107.8 (84.6} 232

Analysed as

Adjusted profit before tax excluding share of joint

venture tax 92.3 (40.5) 51.8 108.1 (84.9) 232

Joint venture tax (0.1) 0.1 - (03 0.3 -

Profit before tax including share of joint venture tax 92.2 (40.4) 51.8 107.8 (84 8) 232
Incame tax (17.8) 5.7 (12.1) (21.1) 121 (9.0)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 74.4 (34.7 39.7 870 (72.5) 14.7
Loss for the year from discontinued operations 0.2 (9.6) (9.4) 0.3 {0.8) (0.5)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 74.6 (44.3) 30.2 870 (733D 127
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTINUER

{IHEM) un 070

Disaggregation of revenue from continuing operations:

Products

Owned 106.4 1201

Partnered 94.3 721

On-Demand 47.6 58.0
248.3 250.2

Services

Chinical 191.3 162.2

Managed Access 92.6 659
2839 228.1

Intar-seament ehiminations (8.6) (118

Total revenue from external customers 523.6 466.7

All revenae arses from contracts with customears and s recognisaed ar a point in tirne or over time 1N accordance with the Group
accounting polces.

Geographical analysis

i
RE-PRESENTED
{1 £H) u (NOTE 38)

Revenue from continuing operatiaons arises from the location of the custamers as fallows

UK 97.2 10€.5
Europe 167.3 1358
USA 125.8 121.4
South Africa 33.3 322
Austraha 24.7 24.8
Rest of World 71.3 26.0
Total 523.6 466.7

Assets and habil Ties are reported to the Executive D rectors at a Group level and are not reported on a segmentas bhawis

3. EXPENSES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS

5.1Expenses
Profit from operations s stated after chargirg

un
RE-PRESENTED

(N ) FHS (WTE3)
Cost of inventores recagrised as an expense 'n cost of saies 286.9 2165
Employes benefil expense (net of cap talised cosis of EC 9 (2020 €160 54.7 51.8
Amortisation and depreciation 57.6 54.7
Impairment of Intangit'e assers 2.6 4.2
Impairment of iInvestmeant in jont vanture - 5.9

)
(el

Foraign exchange gains 0.3
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5.2 Auditors’ remuneration
During the year, the Group (ncluding its overseas subsidianies) abtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and

115 3ssociates

(M) n ]
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Parant Campany and conschidated fnancial

statements 0.4 0.3
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other services

- Tne agudit of the Company's subsidiaries 0.3 0.4
- Audit-related assurance services 0.2 AR
- Tax advisory and compliance services 0.2 0.5

No new impermissibie non-audit services were provided to the Group by the Parent Company s auditor after 15 Decembear 2020

6. EMPLOYEES - CONTINUING OPERATIONS

6.1 Employee benefit expense

un
AE-PRESENTED
{INEW) un {NITEN)

Wages and salaries 46.2 44 .4
Share-based oayment expersa (note 27) 3.7 3.5
Social secunty costs 4.0 18
QOther pension costs 1.7 1.7
Gross expense 55.6 53.4
Capitalised labour (0.9) {1.6)
Net expense 54.7 51.8

6.2 Average number of people employed
The average monthly numhber of peope employec by the Group (on an FTE basis) during the financial year amaounted to

un
RE-PRESENTER
NIMBER nn (NOTEIN

Diractors 2 7
Staff 1,011 959
Total 1,013 961

6.3 Directors’ emoluments
Details of the remuneraticn, sharenoldings share aptions and pension cantributions of the Directors are ircluded in the

Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 91

6.4 Key management personnel compensation
Key managemenrt parsonnel are those persons having aathonty and responsibiity for plarming, directing and cortroling the
activitres of the Group This s considered to oe the Board of Directors

{IK£M) u n

Directors remunreration ncluded in staff costs

Waages and salanes 1.4 2.1
Share-based payment expense 0.7 0.8
Total 21 2.5
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7. NON-UNDERLY ING ITEMS

Non-underlying 1fems bave been reported separately in order to prowde the reader of the financial statements with a better
understanding of the operating performance of tne Group These :tems include amortisation of intangible assets arising on
acguisiion and acauired praducts, one-off costs nciucing business and product acgussition costs, restructuring costs, changes
in deferred and contingent consideration, imparrments and unwind of discount on contingent consideration The associated tax
irmpact s also reparted as non-underlying

e

NEPRESENTED
{INEM) 202 (HATE3N)
Cost of sales
a) impairment of Totect and Foscawir inventaries 0.1 49
Administrative expenses
b) Acquisition costs - 03
) Restructuring costs elating principally to acguisitions) 1.9 2.9
d) (Decrease)/incraass in tne far value of contingent consideration (note 29) (5.9) 11.8
e) Impairment of 1P ralated to Imuk.n (2020, Totect) (nate 12) 2.6 42
fyimpairment of Investment in joint venture (note 15) -
o) Foreign exchange revaluation on deferred and contingant corsideration {1.6)
F) Amortisation of iIntangitte fixed assets acquired through business combinations and acguired products 41.9 44.3
38.9 714
Finance costs
1y Unwind of discount on deferred and contingent cons aerat:on 1.3 8.1
b) Acquisition costs 0.1 02
1.4 8.3
Taxation
1) Creditin respect o tax on non-underlying expenses (9.9) (12,1
k) Deferrect tax charge from change in future UK tax rate 4,2 -
(5.7) (12.1)
Total non-underlying items 34.7 72.5
a) In the proor year impairment charges were recogmised against Tatect short-dated stock and excess Foscavir active

=

e

£

pharmaceutcal ingredien: tatathng £4.9m ihe EQ Im charge in the current year relates to the write down of the remaimning
stock held

Acguisition costs in the pr.or year related to legal fees and financing costs for the Group's recent product and husiness
acguisit:ons

Restructunng costs have beenincur-ed during the period in respect of the cne-off intagration of acquired businesses as well
as preparations for Brex ¢

Y The increase in the far value of contingant consideration in the prior vear related to the final earn-out calculation for the T5M

acguisition The reduction in the fair value of contingent corsideration inthe current year relates to a change in estimate for
the 1Qone acquis tion

Arnimpairment charge has been recogrised aganst the book va ug of Imuk n due to -ower than anticipated sales of the
product 'nthe prior year the book value of Totect was impaired o fnl

1M the priar year a fair valye exercise was Jdndertaken on the Group's joint venture urdertak ng Movagen Pharma Fiy Limited
and as a result of this valuation and future axpactations for the business maragement took the decision to fully impar- tne
mvestmsant

3 Contingant considaration on CSM and 1Qoneg ¢ denam natad in foraign currency The revaluation of thesa llabil tes 1s treated

as non-under.yng as they relate to one-off items and do neot reflect the underiying tradirg of the Group

The amartisat on of .\ntangible assets acgu red as part of business combirat-ons (rame y brand. trademarks and hicences.
customer relationstips, and contracts) and acquired products s ncluded ir ror-under ying due te +ts significance and to
prov de the reader wth a consistent view of the underlying costs of the oneraiing Group

The non-cash unwind of the discourt app 12d ¢ the deferred ard contingent considaratior or tne acguis tiens of Proleukn
CSM and iQone

The tax credit nrespact of non-underlying items reflects the tax benef t on the cosis incurred

Cuz to tne change in tne UK tax rate from 13% to 25% from 1 April 2023, anincrease in the deferred tax nabil ty on acquired
irtargiblas of £4 2m has bean recogn sed (522 note 9)
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8. FINANCE COSTS

i
RE-FRESENTED
{INEM) FLH] (NOTEZR)

Bank nterest expense 9.5 9.6
Baorrowing costs 0.3 ol
Fareign exchange credit on borrowings (3.0) -
Amcortisation of facility 1ssue casts 09 11
Unwind of discount on lease habilities 0.6 .5
Underlying finance costs 8.3 11.3
Unwind of discourt on deferrad ard cont ngent consideration on acquisifians 1.3 81
Acauisition Costs 0.1 0.2
Total finance costs 9.7 19.6

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

un
RE-PRESINTED
(HEM} H ] {NITE 38)

Current tax expense

LK carporation tax 8.1 127
Cwerseas tax at laca prevalling rates 8.6 67
Adpustrment inrespect of pror yvears 0.8 0.6
Total current tax expense 17.5 200

Deferred tax credit

Ornigination and reversal of temporary differences (6.9) (134}
Adiustment in respect of priar years (2.7) c.1
Adjustments inrespeact of tax rates 4.2 2.3
Total deferred tax credit (5.4) (110
Total income tax expense 12.1 2.0

Tne tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standarao rate of
corporation tax in the UK apphed to profit for the year as follows

un
RE-PRESENTED
{INEM) 02 {NITEQN)

Profit before income tax 51.8 232
Exoected tax charge based on corporation tax rate of 19 0% 9.8 4.4
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.9 2.7
Income not taxable (2.1) -
Tax rehef for emp oyee share schemas {0.1) (0.9)
Adjustrments to tax charge in respect of prior years (1.9) 0.7
Foreign tax credit - (0.2
Recogntion/utiisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (0.5) (0,53
De-recognition of previously recogmsed tax losses 0.4 -
Change in deferred tax rate 4.2 2.3
Higher rates of taxes on overseas earnings 1.4 0.5
Total income tax expense 12.1 9.0

Durimg the vear it was announced that the Uk corporation tax rate would mcrease from 19% to 25% offective from 1 Apnl 2023
This change was ncluded in the Finance Bill 2021 which has been substantively enacted and therefore UK deferred tax assets
and habilities for wh ch the under!ying timing difference Is expected to unwind a‘ter 1 Apri' 2023 have been re-measured
accorchingly resulting in the recognition of an additional deferred tax charge from continuing operations of £4 2m.

Further information on deferred tax movements and balances 1s provided in note 22
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE CONTINUED

Amounts recognised directly in equity
The income tax (charged)/credited directly to equity duning the year 15 as fol ows

(HEM) 02 n
Unexercised share ophions and 'ossas recognised directly inequity - 0.1
Met investment hedgs (0.9)
- (0.9) .1
10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
nn
REPRESENTED
un (NOTE3)
profit/(loss) after tax (Em)
srofit after tax used in calculating reported EFS 30.3 137
profit after tax used in calculating reported E2S - contirurg operations 396 14.3
| oss after tax used in calculating reported LPS - discontinued operaticas (9.3 (.62
Dnder\ymg profit after tax used in calculating adjasted EPS 74.4 26.7
ﬁumber of shares (million)
weighted average number of shares 1330 132.7
Dilution effect of share aptions 2.9 2.0
\T\fe,\lgnted average number of shares used for diluted EPS 135.9 134 7
Reported EPS (pence)
Basic 22.8p 1C0.3p
Diluteg 22.3p 10.20
Basic - contiruing aperations 29.8p 10.8p
Diluted - continung operations 29.2p 10.6p
Basic - disconbinued operations (7.0)p 0 5o
Diluted - discontnued operations (6.9)p (C 4o
Adjusted EPS (pence)
Basic §5.9p 65.3p
hluted 54.7p 54 4p
EP% s calcalated based on the share capita. of the Parent Company and the earn ngs of the combinad Groug
Diluted EPS taxkes account of the wea.ghtad average rumber of outstarding share options being 2.886 474 (2020 15926 J46)
11, DIVIDENDS
(I8 M) 2 0
Einal dividend ir respect of the vear ended 30 June 2020 of 5 46 (2020 4750 per ordinary share 7.2 .2
Interim dividend of 2150 (2020 Z215p) cer ordirary share paid durimg the year 2.9 2.9
N 101 9.2

Tae Board proposss 1o gay a final div-dend of 5 dep per ordinary share, subject to sharcholder approval on 4 January 202210

sharehalders on the redustar on 3 Decamber 2021
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ACAUINEQ INTANRIBLES

ACQNINED BEVELOPED
CUSTOMER TRADEMANKS AND TRADEMARKS AND
{INEN) BRAND CONTRACTS RELATIONSHIPS LICEMCES LICENCES  COMPUTER SOFTWARE REEDWILL TeTAL

Cost

AL T July 2019 €8.4 28.8 1566 2795 7.5 23.3 3830 9271

Additions - - - 8.6 2.8 137 - 251

Msposals - - - (0.5) - {1.8) - (2.3
Exchange differences (0.1 (0.3) 1.0 4.1 - 0.1 1.4 62

AT 30 June 2020 GB.% 28.5 1376 291.7 10.3 35.3 384.4 356.1

Additions - - - 7.2 3.9 12.1 - 23.2

Drsposal of business (9.3) - (1.3) - - €0.3) 4.4) (15.3)
Other disposals - - - - - (0.3) - (0.3)
Exchange differences (0.3) (0.1) (4.9) (16.4) (0.1 (0.3) (9.3) (31.4)
At 30 June 2021 58.7 28.4 131.4 282.5 14.1 46.5 370.7 932.3

Accumulated amortisation

AT July 2079 155 211 475 351 0.5 35 - 115.2

Charge for the yvear 4.5 16 21.2 179 O - 5a1

Imparment - - - 4.2 - - - 4.2

Disposals - - - (0.5 - (1 8) - (2.3
Exchange differerces - aDn 0.5 0.2 - - C.6

At 30 June 2020 180 226 63.2 56.9 10 6.1 - 1678

Charge for the year 4.5 1.0 171 20.2 0.9 8.6 - 52.3

Impairment - - - 26 - - - 2.6

Disposal of business (3.4) - €0.8) - - (0.1} - 4.3)
Cther disposals - - - - - (0.3) - (0.3)
Exchange differences {0.1) {0.1) (2.5) (1.4} - - - (4.1)
At 30 June 2021 19.0 23.5 77.0 78.3 19 14.3 - 214.0

Net book value

At 30 June 2021 39.7 4.9 54.4 204.2 12.2 32.2 370.7 718.3

At 30 June 2020 503 5.9 74.4 234.8 9.3 29.2 3B4.4 788.3

Ar 30 June 2018 549 7.7 951 244.4 7.0 198 3330 811.9

Brand

The brands represant the 1d s, Link, Equity Homemed and CSM brands acaured as part of bhusiness combrnations Eacn brand
has beer fair valued 3% the acquisition date by refarence to the operating ousinessas acguired which utiise each brand The farr
value 1s based on a Relief-from-Royalty-Method which calculates the value of the brand as eguivalent to the rovalty savings
accrued over time, as the brand 1s owned and roya'ties are not required to be pad to a third party for the branding of products
The remaining amortisation periods are

Idis - 14 years 10 months
- Link - 15 years 4 months
- Equity - 10 years 4 months
- Homeamed - 5 years 4 manthsg
- CSM - 3 years 3 months

Contracts

Contracts acguired with the Idis business combination related to chent contracts within the |dis Managed Access business fair
valued at the acquisiticn date based on the discounted value of future cash fiows These contracts enable the Group to manage
the access programs or bebatf of large pharma businesses The remaining amortisation penod .s less than one year.

The acquired Link business has a number of supplier contracts which provide for the availlabihity of product to Link on a
contractual exclusive supply basis This accessitihty to product s a key driver in growing the business These exclusive supply
contracts have been fair vaiued at the acquisition date based on the discounted value of future cash flows The remaining
amortisation period I1s between three and six years
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12. INTARGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Customer relationships

The nature of the acquired businesses s that there are no contracts with customers, however there are long-standing
relationships with significant repeat business These relationshins have been fair valued at the acquisition date using a
discounted valuation of future cash flows The customar relatiorships for each area of the business are being amortised over
different useful economic ives (see note 1) The remaiming amortisation perod s between 2 and 15 years

Trademarks and licences
A total of 623 (2020, 649) trademarks and licences are held. £7 2m (202G £4 5m) of internally developed trademarks and
licences are assets 0 the cours2 of development at the year end

Trademarks and hcences are reviewed for impairment triggers on an annual bass. and where they are identified a full iImpairment
review 15 carried out as reguired by 1AS 36 The recoverabie amount of each asset under review has been determined based on
value-in-use calculations These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections over a period of ten years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 10.0% (2020 10 5%) eqguivalent to the Group's weighted average cost of capital As aresult of these reviews, the decision
was faken to impair the book value of trademarks and licerces related to Imukin by £2 6m In the prior year an impairment of

£4 2m was recognised aganst th2 book value of Totect These impairment 10sses were recognised within non-undearlying
admrnistrative expenses (see note /7

Computer software

Hawng implemented its Orac:e ERP system, the Group s now huilding on this infrastructure to enaote a more streambhined and
high quality digita’ platform enabling better engagement with customers the costs for which are oeing recognised as ncurred
Amortisation started when the first major phase of the new system was braught into use

Goodwill

The goodwill 1s deemad to have an indefinite usefu wfe its carr ea at cost and s reviewed annualy for impairment Where the
recoverable armount 15 less than the carrying value, an impairment rasuits Dur ng the year, goodwil was tested for impairment,
with no rmpairment charge arising

The Group allecates goodwiil to cash-generatung un'ts ( CGUS) which are based on the reportable segments as defined by IFRS
2 (see note 4) as these segments are deemed to be the iowest level at wh ch indenendent cash flows can be generated Goodwill
has been allocated as laid out ' the table below

[CFD) 071 un
Products 133.0 137.8
Services 237.7 246.6

370.7 384.4

The recoveranle amount of all CGUs has baen determimed basea or va've-in-use calculations Thease calculations use pre-tax
cash flow proectons over a penad of five years and a pre-tax discount rate of 10 0% (2020 1Q 5%). equivalent to the Group s
weightag averaae cost of capital

Far egch CGU, a terminal growth rate of 20% (2020 2 0%) has been used Cash flow forecasts have heenr based on gross profit
arowth assumptions which are based on aoproved budgets for the upcoming year and strateg:c projections representing the
bhest estimate of future performance utiising the Group's currant asset base The long-term assumptions on gross profit grow:h
used ineach CGU are laid out in the table below

1w nH
Products 1% 3%

Sarvices ‘ 6% 7

“rne Group has applied sensitoall s to assess whetrer any reasonally possible changes in assumphions rate coud cause an
impairmant that would be mater.al to tnese financial statements Management does not consider any of the downside
sensitivities required for an impairment to result as detared below, to be probable

n e
RATE REQUIRED TU ELIMIMATE HEADRIIM IN WIPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
TERMINAL TERMINAL
HISCOINT RATE SNINTH RATE DISCOUNT RaTe BAEWTH RATE
Producis 23.5% (59.1)% 17.8% (15 23%

services 16.2% (10.5)% 16.3% (9 8)%
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

{NEM) LAND AND BUILDINGS IMPROVEMENTS RACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT AL

Cost
At T Juty 2019 4.6 4.6 1.4 3.5 159
Additions - 1.4 0.2 1.3 29
D'sposals - (0.3 01 (1.2) (16}
Exchange differences 0.1 01 - - 0.z
At 3D June 2020 4.7 o8 15 8.4 20.4
Additions - 1.8 0.7 3.1 5.6
Cisposal af business (1.5) - (0.9) {1.2) (3.6)
Cther disposals - €0.1) - (0.3) {0.4)
Exchange differences (0.3) (0.9) (0.1) {0.3) (1.1)
At 30 June 2021 2.9 71 1.2 9.7 20.9
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 July 2019 0.7 1.4 0.5 2.2 5.3
Charge for tne year 0.2 0.9 0.2 1.7 3.0
Exchange differences - (0.1} 0.1 (1.1 (1.3
At 30 Jure 2020 C.4 2.2 0.6 38 7.0
Charge for the year 0.2 0.7 0.3 1.6 2.8
Disposal of business (0.2) - (0.4) {1.0) {1.6)
Other disposals - (0.1) - 0.3 (0.4)
Exchange aifferences - (0.2) (0.1) (0.2) (0.5)
At 30 June 2021 0.4 2.6 0.4 3.9 7.3
Net book value
At 30 June 2021 2.5 4.5 a.8 5.8 13.6
AL 30 June 2020 4.3 36 0.9 46 134
At 30 June 2009 4.4 3.2 0.9 5.1 136
14, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

FLANTAD  FIXTURES, FTTHES
{NEM) LANDAKD RVILDINGS NAZHINERY AHDERYIPNENT T
Cost
A1 July 2020 22.3 0.8 0.5 236
Additions 4.6 3.1 - 7.7
Disposal of business (4.6) (0.1) - 4.7)
Other disposals (0.3} - - (0.3)
Exchange differences {0.8) - (0.1) (0.7}
At 30 June 2021 21.4 3.8 0.4 25.6
Accumulated depreciation
at " Juiy 2020 2.8 0.3 0.1 3.2
Charge for the year 3.8 0.4 0.1 4.3
Disposal of business (0.6) (0.1) - (0.7)
Other disposals (0.2) - - (0.2)
Exchange differences - (0.1) - (0.1)
At 30 June 2021 5.8 0.5 0.2 6.5
Net book value
At 30 June 2021 15.6 3.3 0.2 19.1

At 30 June 2020 195 0.5 0.4 204
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15. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

(INEM) b1 un

AL 1 July - G5
Share of profit - 0.3
Impairment - (59
Cumulative currency losses - (0.9
At 30 June - -

In the ornicr year. Chnigen South Africa Pty Limited, a subsdiary of the Groun, acguired a 24 5% interest in an assocate company
in South Africa. Novagen BEBEE Invest Co Pty Limited, for Enil consideration This associate company was given an option to
acquire 20% of the shares of the Group's existing joint venture undertaking. Novagen Pharma Pty Limeted As arasu:t, the overal:
shareholding in Novagen Pharma Pty Limited was diluted from 50% to 45% As a result of this transaction and a reassessment of
the future profitabihity of the Novagen business due i part to the imtroduciion of constraints to the procuremeant polcies related
to broad-based black ecoromic empowerment, the carrying value was impa:red by £5.9m to Enil

The regsteren office s also the principal p'ace of business

MEASINEMENT

NAME YEAREND OUNTRY 6F INCORP ORATION AND RERISTENED BFFIZE NETHBO THNERSHIP

Movagen Pharma Pty Lirmited 31 March  10C Sovereign Drive, Route 21 Corparate Park, Nellmapius Eguity 45%
Drive, lrene 0157, Pretora

Novagan BEBEE invest Co Pty Il March 100 Sovereign Drnive, Route 2' Corparate Park, Nellmapias Equ-ty 24, 5%

Lim.ted Drive, lrene Q157 Pretona

The Group has no comritments and there are no contingent nakilities relating to the Group s interest in the joint venture

Set out below s the aggregatred summansed financal informat.on for the Group's joint ventures and assoc:ates

(INEM) ui nu

Summarised statement of financial position

Naon-current assets 1.8 19
Cash and cash eguivaients 0.7 .9
Othar current assets 2.8 23
Current habilities (1.3 (1.4
Net assets 4.0 57

Summarised income statement

Revenue 5.4 8.5

Profit after tax - 0.6

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the carrying amounts in the joint ventures
and associates

Opaning net 3ssors 3.7 37
Profit for the year - 06
Cumulative currency losses - 0e)
Closing net assets 3.7 3.7
mterest it joint ventures and associates 1.9 1.9
Goodwill (1.9) (1.9)

Accumulated impairment - -

Carrying value - -
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(INEH) b HH
Raw matarials and consumables 18.2 156
Wark i progress 0.5 0.1
Finished goods and goods for resale 379 278

56.6 4355

The cost of inventories recogrised as an expgense and included in cost of sales amounted to £286 9m (2020 £2°6 &5 from

continuiNg ooerations)

During the year due to the performanrce of the product, the decisior was taker to discontinue Tet

one-cff write down of stock vaiuaed at EO.Im (seeg note 7)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ezt

and as a result there was a

(HEM) n w1
Trade receivables 123.3 98.0
Less prowvision for impairment of trade receivables (0.8) (3.0
Trade recelvables - net 122.5 a7.0
Frepayments and accruea income 19.0 1.2
Fayments maoe on account 9.1 1.1
Other recevables 12.6 11.6
Total trade and other receivables 163.2 125.9

The Group apphes the IFRS 9 s mpl.fied approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a fetime expected loss

allowance for all trade receivables The expected loss rates are based or payment profiles and historic credit losses. The historic
I0ss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macro-econromic factors te the extent they are

relevant to the customers’ ability to settle Due to the short-term nature of trade ano other receivables. the book value
approximates 1o their fair va ue save for where specific provision for impairment has beaen mads

The following tab.e prowvides information on the movement in the provision for impairmert in the year.

{(MEM) HH ]
At 1 July 1.0 1.6
Disposal of business €0.1) -
Utihsed in respect of debts written off (0.2 -
Released to the income statement - (0.9}
Charged to the income statement 0.1 o.
At 30 June 0.8 1.0
The ageing anaivss of the aross trade receivables balances and |0ss allowanrces s as fo'lows
£R08S LESS ALLIWANCE

[(UH] L] ] n A
Nat past dug 89.1 638 - -
Up to 3 months past aue 23.6 274 0.1 -
3 toc 6 months past due 8.5 4.3 0.2 -
More than & months past due 2.1 2.5 0.5 1.0

123.3 98.0 0.8 1.0
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{INEN} A2 w2

Cash at bark and in hand 82.9 14351

Due to the short-term nature of cash at bank and short-terrm deposits the carrying value apoproximates to thew farr value The
credit risk of the banks was very low and therefore the carry ng amount has not been adiusted, the r S&P long-term credit
ratings were RBS BBB, HSBC A- and ABSA AA

19, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

A me

(NEM) CURRENT NIH-CURNENT CURRENT NON-CURRERT
Trade payables 74.1 - 6l.9 -
Payments received or accoudnt - - 0.3 -
Tax ard social secunity 4.6 - 57 -
Otner payables 1.3 - 0.9 -
Accruals and deferred incorme 82.0 - 51.9 2.0
Deferred consideration - - 1.6 -
Contingent consideration (note 29) - 1.7 ¥’ 6 6.9

152.0 1.7 194 9 8.9

The contingent consideration of £1 7m relates 1o the 1Qone acguisiion and 1s payaole in the year ending 30 June 2024
contingent on the adjusted EBITDA yeneratea oy 13one in the 12 months to 41 December 2023 The und scounted fair va'ue of
the contingent cons.deratron s €2 Tm

Due to the short-term rature of current trado and other payables, the fair value aporoximates to thewr book value Creditors are
unsacured

20. BORROWINGS AND LEASE LIABILITIES ‘

The book value of icans and borrowings are as fallows

(INEW) bLGil LFL]
Bark borrowings 395.9 431 3
Cease guaranted providad to d vested bus ness 0.9 -
Lease habilities 21.9 23.7
Total porrowings and iease Labnities 418.7 4550

The Group's multi-currency aesbt facility 15 £430m comprs ng an dnsecured £1830m term loan with a simgle repayment in 2023
and an unsacured revolvang credit faciity of up to £250m There has bean no change to tne faclity durirg tne year A7 30 June
2021, the drawr down fachty was denominated 1~ £263m sterlng (2020 E£264m), €29m euros (2020 €20m). and US$E9m US
dotlars (2020 USE 08m)

At the vear end, there were Lwo covenants that agplied to the bank faclity interest cover of not less than 4 Ox and ret debt/
ad usted FBITCA cover of not more than I 5x {exciudirg SRS 6) As at 3C Juns 2027 interes: cover was 10 Ox (2020 13 3x; and
the net debt/adjusted EBITDA leverage was 2 8x (2020 2 3x) The Group nas ro hustory of default anits berrowings, ncluding
against its covenant terms

During the year, interest was pavable orn a t ered scale based ar tne level of borrowing Thea apphcable imtarast rate on armounts
arawn down was up to 2 5% (2020 20%) plus L BOR

Maturity of borrowings and lease liabilities
The maturity prafile of tne carrying amaount of the Groua's bor-owirgs and 1ease iabdit s at the vear end was as fol ows

nun um

VHAMIRTISEN ANAMIITISED
INEN) SBSSBIRRININGS ISSHECISTS  METBIBDOWINGS  GROSSBOTRIWINGS ISSUECOSTS  NEFDERZIWINGS
Wirhin 1 year 4.8 - 4.8 4.3 - 4.3
In mare than 1 year but less than 2 years 4.1 - 4.1 4.2 - 4.2
Inmore thar 2 yvears but less than 5 vears 411.4 {1.6) 409.8 4490Q (25 L2465

420.3 (1.6) 418.7 4575 (2.5) 455.0
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The fair values of the Group's borrowings are the same as the carrying amount and are within Level 2 of the far value hrerarchy.

Reconciliation of movements in net debt

INAMORTISED ISSHE CASHAND CASH
(INEM) TERMLIN REF  FINANCIALGTARRNTEE  LEASE LIABILITIES DOSTS  TOTAL BOAROWINGS ENUIVALENTS NET BERT
ATT July 2020 183.0 250.8 - 237 2.5 155.0 (143 1) 3119
Cash flow before borrowings - - - - - - 29.0 29.0
Disposal of business - - 0.9 (4.8) - (3.9 1.9 (2.0)
Lease habihity additions - - - 7.8 - 7.8 - 7.8
Lease hability disoosals - - - (0.2) - {0.2) - (0.2)
Proceeds from increase in lcan - 7.6 - - - 7.6 (7.6) -
Repayments of borrowings - (30.9) - (3.7) - (34.6) 34.6 -
Armortisation of facility 1ssus costs - - - - 0.9 0.9 - 0.9
Exchange d fferences (6.4) (6.6) - €0.9) - (13.9) 2.3 (11.6)
At 30 June 2021 176.6 220.9 0.9 21.9 (1.6) 418.7 (82.9) 335.8

Tota borrowings represent naoilves ar sing from financing activities

The term loar and RCF are revalded at the period-end foreign exchange rates for report'ng purposes However the banking
facility position s based on exchange rates preva | ng at the oime tne facility 1s drawn in the foreign currency

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposead through its operations to the following financial risks

- credit risk,
- foreign exchange nisk, and
- higuidity rsk

In comman wath all other businesses the Group i1s exposad to risks that anse from its use of financ:al instruments. Thes note
describes the Group’s ohjectives polcies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them
Further gquantitative informatior in respect of these risks 1s presented throughout these finarc al statements.

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial nstruments used by the Group frem which financial instrument risk arises are as folows

- trade and other recevables,

- cash and cash eguivalents

- trade ana other payables,

- loans and borrowings, and

- dervative fingnaial instruments,

The Graup does not issue or use derivative financizl instruments of a speculative nature

A summary of the financialinstruments held by category 1s provided below

(INZM) un

uw

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash eguivalants 82.9 1431
Trade and other receivables 150.2 101.4
Derivatives used for hedging

Dervative financial instruments - 0.2
Total financial assets 233.1 244.7
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 159.1 198.1
Borrowings and lease babilitias 420.3 4575
Derivatives used for hedging

Denvative financial sinstruments - G.3

Total financial liabilities 579.4 6559
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Risk management
A description of the Group's treasury policy and controls 1s included in the Financial Review on page 51

Credit tisk

Crecit risk s the risk of fimancial loss to the Group if a customer or a counterparty to a finanaal Instrument fails to meet its
contractual olbligations The Group s manly exposaed to credit risk from credit sales to customers 115 Group policy.
implemented locally, to assess the crech! sk of new customers by cbtaming creqit ratngs before entering contracts or offering
credit tarms Tne credit terms are then continually assessed on an individual basis. and ameanded accordingly, as a trading
hstory 1s developed with the customear. Purchase hrrats are estaohshed for each custemer, which represents the maximum open
armount without requinno approval from the Group Firancial Controller or Group Chief Financial Officer

Quantitative disclosures of the credit nisk exposure in relation to financial assets are set out telow Further disclosures regarding
trrade and other recevables at the end of the financial yvear, which are past due but not impaired are providad in note 17

(INEM) un 101

Financial assets - maximum exposure

Cash and cash eguivalents 82.9 1431
Trade ana other recewvables 150.2 101.4
Dervative financial instruments - 0.2
Total financial assets 233.1 2447

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises because the Group bas operations located i vanous parts of the warld whase functional currency
15 not the same as the functuonal currency in which the Group companias are operating The Group's oversaas subsidiaries
contribute approximately 49% (2020 44%) to the Group's revenue, all of which s transacted in non-sterlirg currencies, Tna
overseas sups.dianes aperate separate bank accounts, which are used solely for that subsichary, thus managirg the currency In
that country Tne Group's net assets ansing from such overseas operations are exposed to currency risk resulting in gains or
losses on retransiation into sterling.

Foreign exchange risk also anses when individual Sroup entities enter into transact ons denominated in a currency other than
rmeir functional currency The Graup hedges currency transacthians internally through currency Dank accounts and by managing
Group-wide cdrrency regurements centrally This reduces the currency nsk exoosure and allows retranslation of these balances
inta sterling to be planned in arder to mimimise tha exposure to fareign excharge rate fluctuatens The Group uses forward
contracts or large transacthions where there s adequaie visitnhity and the contract 1s not naturally hedged. Th s reduces the risk
ro fluctuating foreign exchange rates and permiis the management cetter visioihty and certamty of gross profit margins

At the reporting date the Group had ertered o ime cphon contracts witn the bank for US dellars, euros, Japanese yer Hong
wang dollars and Australian dallars These options all manura within 12 months of the reparting date, Forward exchange
cartracts are formally des gnated as tedges ard hedgeg azcounting 1s appaed to the extert that the re'ationshn between the
hedged itermns and the heaging instrument al ows it Derivatve finangia. instrameants are carqaed at fair valug The mark-to-market
valuation at the reportina date has neean recognised ir the balance sheet as a fimranoial instrurment asset or hability as
appropnats,

The dervative financial instruments held by the Group are summarised as follows.

w w1

(IN €M) ASSETS LIABILITIES ASSETS LABILITIES

Forward fare gn exchangea contracts - cash flow bedges - - 0.2 03

The notona prne pal amounts of the outstanaing forward foregn exchangs contracts at 20 June 2020 ware LSE3m (2020
USE5m and €6m) with maturity in July 2021 The foraign currency forwards are dencminated 'm [ne same currancy as the nighly
orooable hedged trarsactions thaerefare the hedge ratio s 11 The weighteda average bedged rate for the year was US$T1 25 £1
and €115 £1

N FY 2018 the Parert Company drew down €90 of 1ts multi-currency delt facity to fund the CSM acgusition which 1s treated
as a net investmeant hadge aganst the cansohidated euro functoral net assets of CSMLinclud ng goodwill

The va.uation of financial instruments at the reporting date s impacied by the fore gr exchange rate at that date, primariy in
raspect of the US dollar and euro At 30 June 2021 ¢ starling had weakenad/strengthened by 10% against both the US doilar
sna eurs wath all variables he d constant arofir for the vegr would Pave been £5 3m (2023 E'0 Smy bighery ower as 3 result of
foraign exchange gans/losses on translation of US dollarfeuro trade recewvables cash and cash egu.va'ents and trade nayables
The figure of 10% usea for sensitivity analysis has oeen choser pecause trepresants arange of reasonable fluctuatiors in
excharge rates
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Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk arises from the Group's managament of working capital ang the fiinance charges and principal repayments on its
debt instruments It s the risk that the Group will encounter difficutty 1in meeting 1ts financial obhgations as they fall due

The Group's pahcy 15 1o ensdre that it wil always have sufficient cash to allow 1T to meet 1ts habihties when they become due
The Beoard receives cash flow projections based on working capital modelling, as well as information regarding cash balances
and nat debt maonthly Af the end of the financal year these projecbions ndicated that the Group expected to have sufficient

hauid resources to meet its obhigatiors under all reasonakly expected crcumstances

The following tabte sets out tha contractual maturnities (representing undiscounted centractual cash flows) of f nanc al l.abilities

LESS THAN BETWELN BETWEEN BETWEEN
{INZH) IMENTHS 3 WONTHS AND 1YEAR 1AND 2YEARS 2ANDSTEARS
At 30 June 2021
Trade ard ather payabiles 157.0 0.4 - 1.9
Lease latil ties 1.3 3.5 4.1 10.8
Borrowings - - - 385.9
At 30 June 2020
Trade and other payables 191.1 1.4 0.8 112
Lease labilities 1.0 3.3 4.2 8.0
Borrowings - - 4339

Valuation hierarchy
The table below shows the financia .nstrurrents carned at farr value by valuatien method

021 un un Fi ] b H] b{}]
(INEN) LEVEL! LEVELD LEVELY LEVEL! LEVELY LEWEL3

Assets/(hab ities)

Dervative financia mstruments - forward fore gn exchanges
contracts - - - - 2.1 -

Contingent cons:deration - - 1.7 - - (758.5)

Tre Level 2 forward fore gn exchange valuations are denved from mark-to-market valuations as at 30 June 2021 Fair value gains
of EQ6m (2020 £2 2m) relating to the movement cn open forward foreign excharge contracts have been recognisad in
underlying administrative expenses The Level 3 contingent consideration hab ity 1s the discounted amount payable inrespect of
the 1Qone (and CSM in the prior yveary acguis:ttion Tne amounts payable have been calculated based on the latest ferecast of
sarnmings during the respactive earm-out periods

Capital management

The Group mormitors ‘adjusted caotal which comprises all components of equity (e share camtal share premium account,
mergar reserve, foreign exchange reserve. hedging reserve and retained earmimgs) as o sclosed in the staterment of changes in
equity and long-term debt as detalled in note 20.

The Group's objectives when ma ntaining capital are

- to safeguard the entity's abihty to continue a5 a going concern, so that it can continue 1o provide returrs for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. and

- toensure the Group has the cash avallable to develop the products and services provided by the Group in order to provide an
adequate returrn ta shareholders

Pricing. sale and acgu.sition decisions are made by assessing the level of risk in relation to the expectad return

The Group sets the amount of capital it requires in proportion to risk, The Group manages its capita’ structure and makes
adjustments to it in the hght of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In arder to
maintain or ad,ust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders return capital to
shareho.ders 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

MNet debt s calculated as total borrowings l2ss cash and cash eguiva'ents (as detalled n note 20)
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22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and habiities are analysed after offset to the extent there

Jjurisdictions as follows

15 a legaliy enforceable right

of balances within

{INEM) W 1
Deferred tax assets 10.8 7.2
Deferred tax habiities
Deferred tax habiities to be settied after more than 12 months (25.2) 27.6
Deferred tax labihtigs within 12 months (5.0) 6.0
(20.2) 33.6
The movement on the deferred iIncome tax account I1s as shown below
BALANCEAT RECHEHISED I8 DISPOSALOF  FEREIGN EXCHANEE BALANCEAT DEFENRED BEFERREDTAX  NET DEFEARED A
(INEW) THY2020 INCOME STATEMENT BUSINESS ADIUSTMENTS N2 TAXASSETS LABILITIES LIABILITIES
Intangicie assats {34.8) 1.6 1.5 0.8 (30.9) - (30.9) (30.9)
Property plant and eguipment 1.0 - - - 1.0 1.0 - 1.0
inventories 6.1 1.1 - (0.5) 6.7 8.7 - 6.7
Leases 0.6 - {0.1) - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Share-based payments 1.9 0.1 - - 2.0 2.0 - 2.0
R&D tax credits 1.7 - - - 1.7) - (1.7) (1.7)
Losses 0.5 0.2 - - 0.7 0.7 - 0.7
US chargeboacks accrual - 2.4 - (0.1} 2.3 2.3 - 2.3
Jurisdictional affset - - - - - (2.4) 2.4 -
(26.4) 5.4 1.4 0.2 (19.4) 10.8 (30.2) (19.4)
BALANCE AT RECOGNISELIN FOREIEN EACHANGE BALANCEAT DIFERRED DEFEMREDTAX  WETDEFERNEDTAR
(N SM) INLIZ018  INCOMESTATEMENT  RECOGNISED IN EQYITY ADJISTHENTS J0JONE 2620 TAKASSETS IMBILITIES LUSILITIES
Intangible assets (39.6) 4.9 - (0.13 (34.8) - (34.8) (34.8)
Froperty, plant and equiprmeant 11 on - - 1.0 1.0 - 1.0
irventories 0.3 5.8 - - 6.1 6.1 - 5.1
L 2ases - (C.1) 0.7 - 0.6 0.6 - 0.6
Share-based paymeants 1.1 0.7 01 - 1.9 1.9 - 1.9
R&D tax credits (1.5) (0.2) - - (1.7 - (1.7} (1.7
Losses 0.3 0.2 - - 0.5 0.5 - 0.5
Jurisdictional offset - - - - - (2.9) 2.9 -
(38.3) 1.2 0.8 (01 (26.4) 7.2 (33.6) (26.43

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax lossas carred forward 10 the extent tnat the realisation of the related tax bereft
through future taxabile profits 1s prooable Deferred tax s ca culated in full on temporary aifferences under the labihity method

using the enacted tax rate for the perod when the tempaorary difference s expected to reverse

The Group has de-recognised a deferred tax asset of EO 4m inrespect of previcusly recognised tax lasses of £2 4man Chimgen
mne asdbsichary registeradim the US as 't has now been determinad these [osses may not be utihsed oefare their exoiry in 2030,

A deferred rax asset 0of £C 2m has been recognised in raspeact of previcus'y unrecognised tax losses of £1Cm in Clirgen
Healthcare Swatzarlard Sarl, a subsidiary registered in Switzerland as 't has now been datermired that tnese can be ut lised
against future taxable income A deferred income tax asset of £C 2m has not been recognised inrespact of £1.3m of lasses on

the ass these may not be utiised before therr expry in 2024

Similarly. a deferred tax asset of £0 5m has been recogrised inrespect of previousiy unrecognised tax 'ossas of £E1 8mr Clinigen
KK, a subsidiary company registered 'n Japan, as © has teen determined that trese can now be util sea aga.nst future taxaole
necome These losses ar2 not subject to expiry

A defzreed tax asset s recognisadin relat on to profitin stock ansing anintra-groun sales of inventory on the basis Zhinigen Inc
(the acqurer of the inventoryl w ll genarate suff cent taxable profits aga rst which the temporary difference will reverse

A deferred tax asset s recogrised by Cimigen Inz imrelatior tc the accrual made for chargebacks ar sing on whalesaler

discounted sales in the US or the basis Clnigen Ing (the cemoany that made the sales) wi'l generate sJufficent taxabie prof s
against which the temporary differerce will reverse
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At 30 June 2021 the undistributed earnings of non-UK subsidiaries were £58.1m (2020, £37.0m} No deferred tax hakbilities have
beenrecogrised in respect of these unremitted earnings because the Group 15 1N a pos tion to contral the timing of any
dividends from subsidiaries and it 1s probable that the repatriation of the accurnulated earmings of foreign subsidiaries 1s not
expected to taka place in the foreseeable future

23. SHARE CAPITAL

NUMEER IF SHARES (*2005)

ISSUEDARD FALLY PAYD IRDINARY SHARES AF 8 1P EACH
AL T July 2019 132 479
Issue of new shares 220
At 30 June 2020 132,899
Issue of new shares 130
At 30 June 2021 133,029
(INEW) un 1020
Ordmary shares of O 1p each 0.1 0.1

The Company does not have a irited armount of adthor sed snare capital The ord nary shares entitle tne holder to participate in
dividends and to share . the proceeds of winding up the Company in groportion to the number of and amounts paid on the
shares held Every holder s entitled to vote with 2ach share entitled to one vote

24 RESERVES

The following describes tne nature and pJdrpose of each reserve within eqguity

RESENVE OESCRIPTION AND PNRPASE

Share premium account Amount subscrnioed for share capital in excess of normina: value, except where racognition in merger
reserve is used (see below)

Merger reserve Amount subscrioed for share canita! .0 excess of nommal value whon shares are 1ssued in exchange
for at ieast a 90% intaerest in the shares of ancther compary,

Hedging reserve Gains/losses ansing on cash flow hedges,
Foreign exchange reserve Gamns/lcsses ansing on re-transiating the net assets of overseas operations irto sterling

Retained earnings All cther net gains and losses and transactions with owrers (e g dwidends) not recognised
glsowhears

Included within the retanac earn ngs resarve as at 30 June 202115 £115m (2020, £8 7m) relating to unexercised share options
which 1s not distributable,

25. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £0 4m (2020 Enil}

26. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Thne Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of its employeas The assets of the scheme are hed
separately from tnose of the Group 1In an independently administerea fund Pension costs represent the contributions payable by
the Groun to the funds and amounted to £18m (2020 £17m from contimuing operations)
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27. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES

An eqguity-settled share-based payment charge of £3.7m (2020 £3 5m) has bean recogn sed in the year

The Company operated the following schemes which are all eguity-settled

PLAN

TAX AUTHURITY STATUS EMPLOYESS

CRANTING, YESTING CONDITIONS AND EXERCISE 9F SHAREAFTIONS

Clinigen Group
Long-Term
Incentive Plan

Unapproved All empioyees

Subject to parfarmance criteria comparing totat shareholder
return versus the FTSE SmallCap Index (exciuding investment
companies) over a three-year period.

I the individual leaves earher than the earfiest vasting date. they
may, If certain conditions are met be stirl entitied to a proporton
of the shares

Clinigen Group
Sharesave Plan

HMRC aoproved All UK employees

Options are exercisable at a prnice egual to the average opening
price as published n the Financial Times on the date of nvitation
and the two dealing days preced ng the date of nwvitation. less
20%

Three-year vestng pariod

F opuons remair unexercised after a perod of six months from
the vesting date the options expira

f rmonthly contributions are not made for more than six months
aver the three-year per od the options lagse

Clinigen Group
Company Share
Option Plan

HMRC approved All emcloyees
for UK employees

Unapproved for
US employees

Options granted to amployaes who have invested .n the shares of
the Company

Options are granted to match the shares acauired by the
employee or those granted through the imtial grant under the
Skaresave or US Stock Purchase Plan

Three-year vesting peariod
Ophions vest if employee stilt owns shares In three years or

axercises ther opt ons under tha Sharesave ar 1JS Stock
Purchase Plan

Clinigen Group US US tax authornity All US emplovees  Options are exercisab’e at a price equal to the average opening

Stock Purchase aoproved orice as pubhskea in the Financial Tirmes on the date of imvitat-on

Plan and the two deal-ng days preceding the date of invitation. Ioss 15%
Two-year vasting period

Clinigen Group Urapproved Al employees Subject to performance criteria comparing total snarehalder return

Long Term versus the relevant index (FTSE SmallCap Intiex (exc.uding

Incentive Plan ivastrment companies) for grants n FYZ016 to FYZ2019 and the

2015 FTSZ 250 for grants m FY2020) over a three-year vasting penod
and a performance condition measuring the EPS of the Group
against target EPS over a three-year period For certain inarvaduals,
vesting 1s also subject to achuievermnent of strateg ¢ objectives
If the indiv.dual leaves earlier than the earliest vesting date
entitlernent s at the discretion of the Remaneration Committee

| Clinigen Group Al Unaporoved Al emp oyeeas Subject to performance criteria comparing total snareholder

Staff Long Term
Incentive Plan

return versus the FTSE SmalCap Index fexcluding investmeant
companies) cver a three-year vesting penod and a performarce
concition measuring the EPS of the Group against target EPS aver
3 three-year per.cd

frhe mdividua' leaves earier than the earliest vesting aate. thearr
share opiicn apses
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Detalls of the share options granted are as follows

n uw

WEIGHTED AVERARE WEIRHTED AVERAGE
EXENCISEPRICE(P) NIMBER EXERCISE PRICE (P) NIWBER

Asat 1 July 0.82 2,531,033 0.93 2279105
Granted during yesar 0.92 1,447,276 0.97 8B7285
Forfeited during the year 1.08 (604,532) 1.30 (4152410
Cxercised during yvear 2.2% (137,051) 1.24 (220,116
As at 30 June 0.70 3,236,726 0.82 2.531.033
Veasted and exercisable at 30 Juns 0.27 407,624 112 386,714

The weighted average share price (at the date of exercise) of cotions exercised during the year was £7 04 (2020 £787)

The exercise price of options outstanding at 20 Jure 202% ranged batween Eml and £9 25 and therr weighted average remaining
cortractua’ life was 1 year 3 months

The weighted average fair value of each option granted during the year was £3 99 (2020 £512)
The followmg information s relevant in the determiragtion of tne fair value of options granted durning the year under the equity-

settled share-based remureratior schemes oparated by the Group A stochastic valuation mode’ s used to value awards with
market-based conditions, and the Black-Scholes pricirg model s used for all other schames

nn Hit

We ghted average share price at grant date (£ 5.88 768
Exerc se price (E) nil to 7.09 mil tc 9.25
Waoughted average contractual hfe (im yoars) 3.0 28
Expected volatinty (%) 44 Z0
Expected dividend yield (%) N/A M7 A
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0 OLth08

Expected volatility was determinad by calculating the histancal volatiity of the Company’s share price over the performance
period immediately prior to the date of grant

The Group did nat enter Into any share-based payrment transactions with parties cther than employees during the current or
Drevious year

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ultimate controlling party
The Company's shares are listed on AlM and are widely held There 1s no one controling party or group of related parties who
have centrol of the Group

Subsidiary undertakings
A full st of the Parent Campany's subsidiary undertak:ngs 1s given in note 14 to the Company financial statements Theare are no
significant non-controlling Interests

Transactions with related parties
The rernuneration pavable to the Directors of the Company 1s disclosed in note &

Novagen Pharma Pty Limited (Novagen'y is a joint ventura in which the Group has a 45% interest During the year the Group
charged distribution fees of £0.2m (2020 £0 5m) to Novagen, and recharged costs of £0.5m (2020 £0 4m) for goods and
services prov-ded At 30 June 2021 the Group had no amounts receivable owng from Novager (2020 £nil),

From time to time, the Group receives services from Alan Boyd Consultants Limited. a company aowned and managed by Alan
Boyd. one of the Group s Non-Executive Directors During the year the Group received services amounting to £0 1m (2020
ECQ 2m)

Thera were no ather transactions with related parties during the year
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS contivue
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

There were No business combinations in the year ended 20 June 2021 (2020 none)

The Group paid £67.9m (LUS$89 5m) as a final sett ement of the CSM earn-out in September 2020 £33 2m {JS$43.8m) of this
payment relates to the increase in consideration from outperformance of the earn-out over the criginal amount estimated which
15 recogriised within cash flow from operatiors. The remaining £34.7m (USE45 7m) of this payment 15 the onginal estimate of the
sarn-out at the time of acouisition and 1s recognised with'n cash usad In investing activities

The Group paid £1 8m inrespect of the acquisttion of the remaiming 50% stake in Clinigen Ireland Ltd (previously QM Specials
Ltad) following the exercise of 1ts call option in sune 2020 As tris payment related to a change in ownership but not a change in
controlitis recognised within cash flows usad 1 financing actvitias

The conungent consigeration iability for the 1(Qare acguisition has been revised down by £5 9m to £17m following a revision in
the estimate of the likely payment The hability has been discounted at a rate of 10% A 100bps change in the discount rate would
increase/decrease the fair value by £0.1m. and a 10% change In the expected value of the EBITDA in the earn cut perod would
increase/decrease the fair value by £0.5m

The contingert consideration hiability outstanding at 30 June 2021 was £17m (2020, £6 9m) The movement in the year of £5.2m
comprised a £5 9m change In estimate of the amount pavable and a £C 4m exchange difference recogrised through non-
underlying administrative expenses offsar oy a £11m unwind of discount recognised through non-undserying finance costs

30. DISPOSALS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 June 2021, the Group completed the divestment of its non-core UK Speciais Manufacturng and Aseptic Compounding
businass, and the results and cash flows of this business are accord-ngly classified as discontinuad, As a result of this
class/fication, the cormparativas .n the statement of comprehensive income ana statement of cash tlows as weil as the
supporting netes, have been re-présented to separate tne results for discontinued opearalions In accordance w th the
reguirements of IFRS 5

Results for discontinued operations
(INER) un un

Revenuae 38.6 376

Adjusted ERITOA 1.1 1.2

Restructuring (costs)/credit 0.1) 0.1

Amartisation and depreciat on (1.8)

Finance costs {0.1) 0.1
Lass before tax {0.9) 0.6)
Income tax (expense)/cradit €0.1) 0.1

Loss after tax (1.0) (0.5
Lass on disposal of discontinued operatiars (8.3) -

Loss for the year from discontinued operations €9.3) (0.5)

Tha amorusation and depreciat.on charge includes amaortisation of acgurred ntangibles of £11m (2020 £11m).

Cash flows for discontinued operations
(N £ HE 0

Cash flows from operatirg activities 4.7 0.8
Cash flows used ninvesting act vit:es {0.6) (0.3)
Cash flows used in financing activities (0.3) (0.3)

Net cash flow from discontinued operations 3.8 0.2




Loss on disposal

The Group recognised a total loss on disposal of £8 3m which is analysad as follows
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{INEM)

Net assets disposed of (book value at date of disposal):

Goadwill 4.4
Qther intaraibie assets 6.6
Property, plant ana egquiprnent 2.0
Right-of-use assets 4.0
Ceferred tax assets a1
Inventaries 2.8
Trade and other receaivables 16.1
Cash and cash eguivalents 1.9
Trade and other payables (18.7)
Corporation tax haoiht.es QU]
Deferred tax habilities (1.5)
_ease hablhties 4.8)
Net assets disposed of 12.8
Consideration received:

Cash proceeds 5.0
Deferred consideraticn 1.1
Trarsaction costs (C.73
Recogn.tion of guarantes on lease habhity (0.9
Total net consideration 4.5
Loss on disposal 8.2
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
(INEM) NETE unn un
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangble assets 4 63.0 61.3
Tangibie assets 5 0.7 1.1
Investments =] 739.0 7449
Deferred tax assers 11 2.0 1.9
Total non-cdrrent assets 804.7 809.2
Current assets
Debtors 7 429.6 5217
Corporation taxes recoverable - 13
Cash and cash eguivalents 5.4 504
Total current assets 435.0 293.4
Total assets 1,239.7 12626
Current liabilities
Creditors amaunts faling due witmn cne yeaar 8 278.0 176.3
Loans and barrowings 10 0.2 0.3
Total current liabilities 278.2 176.6
Net current assets 156.8 2168
Total assets less current liabilities 961.5 1.026.0
Non-current liabilities
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one vear 3 1.7 6.9
Loans and borrowings 10 396.0 4316
Total non-current liabilities 397.7 4385
Net assets 563.8 5875
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital oz 0.1 Gl
Share premiu™ account 240.2 240.2
Mergar reserve 88.2 85 2
At T July 259.0 2839
Loss far the year attributable to the cwners (17.3) (19.4)
Other changes in retained earnings (6.4) (5.5)
Retained earnngs 235.3 253.0
Total equity 563.8 5875

The financial statemeants on paoes 1327 to 141 were appraved by the Board of Directors or 15 Septembier 2021 and were signeda on

1ts banaf by

o DacuSwgned by
. Shersie Challon
i
U Signar kame Shaun Chiten
Sigmng Reascn fapprove tis document
Sigmng T.me 11 Nev-2021 |6 41 15 PR GAMT

E81ADF3800DEIFFBABF CF 15010030966

SHAUN CHILTON

Director
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

SHARE CAPITAL SHARE FAEMIUN

(N5H) (113t ACCIUNT  MERGERNESERVE  HEDGNGRESERVE  RETAINED EAININES TRTALERWITY
At 1July 2020 0.1 240.2 88.2 - 259.0 587.5
Loss for the year - - - - (17.3) (17.3)
Employee share schames - - - - 3.7 3.7
Dividends paid - - - - (10.1) (10.1)
Total transactions with owners of the Company,

recognised directly in equity - - - - {(6.4) (6.4)
At 30 June 2021 0.1 240.2 88.2 - 235.3 563.8

SHARECAPITAL SHAKE PREMIUM

(INEM) (NOTETZ) ACCOUNT  WERGERRESIAVE  WEDRMERESERYE  RETAIWED EARMIMES THALERUITY
At 30 June 2019 a1 240.2 B&.2 (0.1 2839 £12.3

Impact of adopting IFRS 16 - - - - 01 01

At 1 July 2019 c1 240.2 R3.2 0.1 284.0 612.4

Loss far the year - - - - (19.4) (159.4)
Cash flow hedges - - - 0.1 - 01

Empioyee share schames - - - - 35 35

Deferred taxation on share-based payment scheme - : - - 0.1 ol

Crvidends paid - - - - 9.2 9.2
Total transactions with owners of the Company,

recognised directly in equity - - - - (56) (5.6
At 30 June 2020 0.1 240.2 BB.2 - 259.0 5875

Ihe following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within egquity

RESERVE DESCR{PTION AND PERPASE

Share premium account Amounrt subscnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value except where recogrition in merger
reserve s used (see below)

Merger reserve Amount subscnbed for share capital in excess of nominal value wren snares arerssued in exchange
for at least a 90% nterast in the shares of ancther company

Retained sarmings Adl other net gams and losses and transactions witn owners (2 g dvidends) not recogmsed
elsewhere,
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Parent Company present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about s
Group

The accountmng oohoies, set outin the consoidated finano gt statements, unlass ofherw s stated have been applied consistently
to the periad presented in these Company financial statements

The Company financial statements have been prapared and approved by the Directors 1n accordance with FRS 101

Basis of preparation

The Campany financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with Urited Kingdom Generally Accented Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards comprising
FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” and applicable 'aw) In prepaning these financial statements the Company applies the
recogmtion measurement and disclosure requirements of (nternational Firancia' Reporting Standards in conformity with the
reguirements of the Comparnues Act 2006, The financial statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest £100.000 except wher otherwise stated

No income statement 1s presented for the Cormpany as nermitted by Secuon 408(2) and (3) of the Cormpanies Act 2006 Fees
pad to PricewaterhouseCoopears LLP and 1ts associates for audit and non-auacit services to the Company itself are not disclosed
M thendividual finaraal statements of Clinigen Group olc because the Group financial statements are required to disc'ose such
fees an a consolidated bass (see rote 5 2 of the consohaated financia' statements)

Investments
Investrments ir subsidianes are recoraed at h storical cost, 'ess any provision for impairment

Exemptions

The Caompany has elected to apply the exemptior . Section 408 of the Companias Act and has not presented its separate
statement of comprehensive inzome and related notes 1t has also taken advantage of tne exemotions under =RS 101 not to
disclose related party transactions entered -nto betweon twao or mare memibzers of the Group and not to prepare a cash flow
statement The Company has elected not to prepare disclosures under IFRS 7 inaccordance with the exemptiors undsr FRS 1017
The Company’'s information reiating to these disc'csures s ncluded within the consohdated frmancial statements of Clinigen
Group plc

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Tne judgements and accounting estimates with a sigmuficant risk of matenal adj.stment 10 tne rext financia! yvear relate to the
carrying va'ue of ‘rtargible assets and contingent corsideration These are d-scussed in detall witnin nate 2 of tne conschdated
finarcial statements

2. STAFF COSTS

(INEN} L1 bl

Staff costs Onclading Directors) comprisa

Wages and salaries 8.2 51
Sacial securty costs 0.7 0.6
Share-bhased payment expense 3.7 1.5
Other pensian costs 0.1 0.1
Gross staff costs 12.7 9.3
Capitahsed iabouar (0.1) (1.2
Net staff costs 12.6 g1

Contrazts of employment for UK staff across the Groap are held by Chinigen Group ofc Employess are allocated to subs diary
companies as approprate and the cost of the emoloyees services 15 charged 1o the relevant subsidiary The disciosures for staff
costs and employee numbers relate to thase employess which are nct racharged to subsicdhary ent-ties

Employee numbers
The average monthly nambear of sta*f working for the Compary (not reallocated to subsialary comoamies) auring the fingacial
year amountad to

NUMBER 0 un
Directors 2 z
Sraff 35 23

37 25




Key management personnel compensation
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Key management personnel are those persons having authornty and responsibility for plannming, directing and centreoiling the

activities of the Company Thisis considered to be the Board of Directors

{iNEN}

ux

we

Diractors' remuneration included in staff costs.

Wagas and salaries 1.4 21

Share-based payment expense 0.7 C.8
2.1 2.9

Tota' emoluments of Directars (including pension coniributions) amounted to £21m (2020 £2 9m) Information relating to

Durectors emoluments share options and pension entitlemeants 1s set ogut in the Remureration Report on pages /6 to 85

3. DIVIDENDS

{INEM) HH] un

Final dividend in respact of the year ended 30 June 2020 of 5 46p (2020 4 75p) per ordinary share 7.2 5.3

Internim dividend of 2 15p (2020 21%2) per ordinary share paid during the year 2.9 2.9
10.1 9.2

The Board proposes to pay a final arvidend of 5 460 oer ordinary share, subject to shareholder approval, an 4 January 2022 to

shareholders on the register on 3 Decermber 2027

4. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

TRADEMARKS

T

(N EM) ANDLICINCES  CAMPTER SCFTWARE

Cost

At 1 July 2020 63.5 25.6 89.1
Add tiens 2.5 9.3 11.8
At 30 June 2021 66.0 34.9 100.9
Accumulated amortisation

A1 July 2020 25.7 2.1 278
Charge for the year 4.8 5.3 10.1
At 30 June 2021 30.5 7.4 379
Net book value

At 30 June 2021 35.5 27.5 63.0
At 30 June 2020 37.8 23.5 61.3
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3. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

LEASEANLD  FURNITURE FITTINES

(INEM) RIGHT-DF-ASE ASSETS INPROVEHENTS AND EQUIFMENT Tl
Cost

At 1 july 2020 0.9 0.6 0.7 2.2
Additions - - 0.1 0.1
At 30 June 2021 0.9 0.6 0.8 2.3
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July 2020 0.3 0.4 0.4 11
Charge for the year 0.3 - 0.2 0.5
At 30 June 2021 0.6 0.4 0.6 1.6
Net book value

At 30 June 2021 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.7
A 30 June 2020 0.6 02 0.3 1.1
The right-of-use assers relates to property leased oy the Corrpany for office aro warehouse use.

B. INVESTMENTS

(IN5N) 10 n
Cost or valuation

At T July 744.9 7449
Imparment (5.9)

At 30 June 739.0 744.9

As aresult of the change in future forecasts of tne 1Qone business which rasulted in a reduction ir the recogn:sed contingeant
consideration lab.ity, a comparable i/mparment of £5 9m has been recognised agamst the book value of the imvestrment that the
Company holds in Clin.gen Healthcare Helding (Sw.tzerland) 5A which s the parert company of the :Qorne group of ertities

The Company directly holds interests in the whole of tne 1ssuad share capital of the following urdertakings.

HAWE COUNTRY OF INCORPARATRN NATURE CF BUSINESS

Chn'gen Hoildings Lirmited UK Holding company
Climigen Pharma Limited UK Holding company
Chmigen Asia Pte Limited Singapore Hotding company
Quantum Pharma —oldirgs Limited UK Holding company
CSM Parent, Inc LS Hold ng compary
Clirngen Healthcare Hold g (switzenand) 5S4 Switzerland Holding company

All snareholdings in subs diaries are owred 100% (2020 100%; through the subsiciaries’ ordirary share capital A full ist of the
Company s subsidhiary unaertakings and their reg stered addresses s presented in note °4

1. DEBTORS

(HEN) HH L)
Trade recevatles 0.4 -
Amodnts owed by Group urderiakings 427.7 3409
Prepayments andg other debtors 1.5 0.8

429.6 341.7

Amaounts owed oy Group undertakings are unsecured, irterest free, have no “ixed aate of repayment and ace repayable on
dermand




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 137

8. CREDITCRS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

{INEM} uu un

Trade creditors 2.3 1.5
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 269.6 97.7
Tax and social secunity 26 1.8
Other creditors 0.2 0.1
Accruals and deferred income 3.3 2.6
Contingent consideration - 72.6

278.0 176 3

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsacured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repavable an
demand

9. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

(INEM} pLE]

nn

Contingant consideratior 1.7 £.9

The contingent consideration s payable in the year ending 30 June 2024 based on the adjusted EBITDA generated by the
Group with nthe four EU rrarkets of France Germany. ltaly and Spaimn in the 12 moriths to 31 December 2023

10. BORROWINGS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

The boak valug of loans and borrowings are as follows

ui FLH]
{INEM} CURRENT NAN-CURRENT TITAL CARAENT HON-CURRENT TITAL

Bank borrowings - 395.9 395.9 - 431.3 431.3
Leass habilties 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.6
0.2 396.0 396.2 0.3 4316 4319

The Group's multi-currency debt faciity 1s £430m comprising an unsecured £180m term loan with a sing'e repayment 1in 2023
and an unsecured revolving cred t facity of uo to £250m At 20 June 2021, tne facilty was denominated n £263m sterling
(2020 E264m), €99m euros (2020 £90m). and US3E9m US dotlars (2020 USEI08m)

At the year end, there were two covenants that appied 1o the bank facihty interest cover of not lass than 4 Ox and net debt/
ad,usted EBITDA cover of not more than 3 5x fexcluding IFRS 16). As at 30 June 2027 interest caver was 10.0x and the net deot/
adjusted EBITDA leverage was 2 8x The Group has no history of default onits porrowings, including against its covenant terms.

During the year, interest was payable on a tiered scale based on the level of borrowing The apphcable interest rate on amourts
drawn down was up to 2 5% plus LIBOR

11. DEFERRED TAX

The movement on the deferred tax account Is as shownr balow

UNEXERCISED

DEFERKED TAXASSETS (N EM) L0SSES SHAREIPTIONS THTAL
At T July 2019 0.3 1.1 1.4
(Charge)/credit to the income statement (0.3 0.7 0.4
Charge recognesed in equity - 0.1 01
At 30 June 2020 - 1.9 1.9
Credit tc the income statement - 0.1 0.1

At 30 June 2021 - 2.0 2.0
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12. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

NIMBER OF SHARES (9005}
SSUED AND FULLY PAID IRNINARY SHARES 0F 1P EACH
At July 2012 122.479
Issue of new shares 420
At 30 June 2020 132,899
'ssue of new shares 130
At 30 June 2021 133,029
(HEH) nz n
Ordinary shares of O 1p 2ach 0.1 3

The Company does not have a imited amount of author sed share capital

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The table balow analyses the fair valua of the Caomopany's assets and nabulities nta g farr valua ftiararchy based on the valuat an
techniaue used to determire fair value

- Levell guoted prices (uradjusted) In active markets for dentical assats or iabilit.es

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices includsad with i Level 1 that are obkservabie for the asset or habiity, entber directly (1 2
as prices) or indirectly (te denved from pr.ces)

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or hability that are not pased on observable market data (unobsarvable Irputs)

w1 un w1 00 me un
T ] LEVELT it 7 LEHIL i (erit 1 it
Assetss(habihites)
Contingent considerat on - - Q.7) - - (72,6}

The Level 3 cortingent consideraton hakuhity 1s the discocunted amount payab’e inrespect of the [Jore fand CSMan the pror
yeary acquisition The amounts payable have beer ca'cu'ated based on the latest forecast of earmirgs during the earm-out
period

There have been no trarsfers between Lavel 1, Leval 2 ar Level 3 during the year
Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of all financial assets and finrancia | atnl hies by class togethear with therr carrying amounts showr in the balance
sheet are as follows

FARVALUE  CARRYING AMOUNT FARVALUE  CARRYING AMOUNT
(HEH) un m 0 u
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 5.4 5.4 0.4 50.4
Debtors excluding prepayments and taxes (note 73 428.1 428.1 2410 3410
Total loans and receivables 433.5 433.5 3514 3914
Total financial assets 433.5 433.5 391.4 391.4
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Borrowings and lease habilities (396.2) (396.2) (4319 (431.9)
Creditors amounrts falling due within cne year (note &) (275.4) (275.4) (174.5% (1745,
Creaitors amounts falhing due after more thar one year (note 9 (0.7) (0.7) (6.2) (6.9)
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (673.3) (673.3) (613.3) (813.3)
Total financial liabilities (673.3) (673.3) (6133 (613.3)
Total financial instruments (239.8) (239.8) (2219 (2219

Managemeant considers that tne carrying amourt of financial assers and haoirties recaogrused at amaortised costin tne financal
sratements approximate their fair value The farr vaiue of the Simancial assets ana hiabilhnies 1s includza at tne armcurt at which the
mstrument could be exchanged in a current trarsaction betwear w Ing partigs, athar thann a farced or | guidation sals



14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ultimate controlling party
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The Company's shares are listed on AlM and are widely held There 13 no one controling party or group of related parties who

have control of the Group.

Transactions with related parties

The remuneration pavable to the Directors of the Company s disclased in note 2

Thare were no transactions with related parties other than the Company's subsidiaries, during the year or the oreceding year

Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries of Climgen Grauo ple at each reporting date have beeninciuded i tnese consolidated financial statements

Subsidiaries at the erd of the reporting year were as follows

NAME

MATURE OF BUSIHESS

COUNTRY OF INCORPARATIEK:

Chnigen Holdings Limited”
Clinigen International Roldings Limited”
Chrmgen Healthcare Limited”
Chrigen, Inc

Clinigen 5P Lirmited”

Chnigen Hea thcare 3V
Chragen Chirucal Trials Limited
Chrugen Pharma Limited:
Clinger QAR Lim.ted
Cinmigan CTS Limited
Chn.gen Corsatting L rated
Keats Healthcare Limited
Chinigen GAP, Inc.

Idis Group Ho dings Limited”
ldis Group Limited®

Idis Lrrmited™

Idis MA Limited

Ichs GA L :mited

ichs Pharma Limited

Idis Pharma Private Limited
Clinigen &s1a Pte Limited
Link Healthcare Singapore Pte Limited
Link Healthcare KK

Climgen KK

International Medical Managemeant Corporation KK

Lirik Healthcare Sdn Bhd

Link Healthcare Hang Kong Limited

Link Medical Products (Pty) Lirmited

Link Pnarmaceuticals Lim ted

Clrigen South Africa (Pty) Lim.tea
Hamemed Pty Limited

Equity Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Limited
Equity Medicai Tachnelogies (Pry) Limited
Eguipharm Specialized Distribution (Pty) Limited
Clinigen Kenya Limited

Link Healthcare (Pty) Limited

Link Holding 1 (P4 Limited

Link Hotding 2 (Pty) Limited

PMIP (PLy) Limited

Hold.ng company

Holding company

Supply of pharmaceut.cal products and services
Supply of pharmaceuncal products and services
supply of pharmaceutical products

Holding company

Hoding company

Heolging company

Darmant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Holdhing company

Holdrg company

Darmant

Darmant

Daorrnant

Dormant

Dormant

Holding company

Supgly and distribution of pharmaceutical preducts
Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and aistr-bution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and distnbution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products
Supply and distribution of pharmaceunical products

Holding company

Supply and distribution of medica® devices

Supply and distribution of pharmaceutical products

Supply and distribut.on of medical devices
Distribution of medical products and devices

Supply and distrbution of pharmaceutical products

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

Cormant

UK’

UK

UK

Us’

UK
Netherlands
UK’

UK’

UK’

UK

UK

LK’

s’

UK?

LK

UK

UK’

UK’

U

Incha
Singapare
Singapore
Japar
Japan
Japan
Malaysia
Horg Kong
Australia
New Zealand
South Africa
South Afrca
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
Kerya
Austraha
Austraha
Australia

Australia
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14, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS conTiNuED

WATURE OF BUSINESS

CNRTRY UF INCORPORATVIN

Plurilinx (Pty) Limited

Chiaramix (Ptyy Limited

Quantum Pharma Holdings Limted*
Quantum Pharma 2014 L-mated’
Quantum Pharma Group Limited*
UL Medicines Limited’

Colonis Pharma Lirnited’

Protomed Limited

Landa Pharma Limited”

Lamda (UK) Limited*

Lamda Laboratories SA

Lamda Pharma SA

Chmgen Iraland Lirmited

Quantum Specials Trustee Limited
NuPharm Group irmited

NuPharm | gaboratories Liruted
Chrrgen Chmcal Supplies Managerment Farent ing

Clhrmgen Cliricar Supplies Managerment Ing

Chrnigen Chimical Suppl.es Managermant Heldings LLC
Clrigan Clrical Supplies Management 5A

Climigen Clinica Suoplies Management GmbH
Chmgen Biologica Sample Management, Inc

Cirmgen Chnical Supphes Management Selg um SRL
Chincgen Healthicare Holding (Switzerland) S4A
Chirigen Healtheare Switzerland Sarl

1Qone Healtncare France Sarl

Clin gen Heagltncare Frarce S A S

Chirigen Healthcare Germany GmibyH

Clinigen Healthcare Italy Srl

Climigen Healthcare Spain 5.0

Darmant

Folding campany

Holding company

—Hokding company

Holding company

Supply and distributior of pharmaceut.cal products
Davelopment of pharmaceut.cal and reflated products
In hgquidation

Holding company

supnly of pharmaceutical products

Development ana supply of pharmacedticar products
Developmert ard supply of pharmaceutical producis
Manufacture and supply of pharmaceutical products
Corporate trustee

Dormant

I higuidation

Hoiding companry

Provision of chinical packag ng. labelling. warehousing,

and custribution services

Provision of chinical packaging. labelling, warenausing
ana distribution services

Provision of c'imeal packagmyg abrelling. warehousing,

ard distripution sérvices

Pravision of climical packag ng, labelling warehcusing
and distr-bution services

Provision of chimcal packaging. labslling, warehousing,

anca distribution services

Hold ng company

Provision of medical informat.on services
Provisior of mead cal information services
Provision of meoical information services
Provision of pharmaceut cal services
Pravision of medical information services
Provissen of rmeaical information services

Eravision of medical information services

South Africa

Saouth Africa

UK’

UK?

U’ ,
K?
UKz
LK?
UK?
UK
Greece
Hreece
Irelarid
K-
UK
LKS
Us

s

Us
Belgum
Germarny
us?

Belgium
Switzerland
Switrerland
France
France
Germary”
Itany

Span
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COUNTRY CF INCURPORATION

REGISTEREC OFFICE

UK'

UK

LK

us

us?

us#
Singapore
Japan
Malaysa
Hong Kong
Soastralia
New Zealand
South Africa
Netherlands
Ealgium
France
Germany’
Germany?
‘taly

Spain
Switzerland
Ireland
Greece
Kenya

Incha

Pitcairn House, Crawn Square, Centrurn 100, Burton-on-Trent, Stafferdshire. DE14 2WwW

25 Bedford Square, Bloomsbury, London, WCOIB ZHW

Bulman House, Regent Centre Gosforth, Newcastie Upon Tyne, NE3 3LS

Corporaton Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive Wilmington, Delaware 12808
Registered Office Service Company, 203 NE Front Street Saite 101, Milford. Delaware 19963
180 Gordon Or Surte 109, Exton, Pennsylvania 193541

9 Raffles Place #27-00. Republic Plaza. Singapore 048619

1-16-3, Nihonbashi, Chuo-Ku lokyo. 1Us-0U027

Upper Penthouse, Wisma RKT, Ng 2. Jalan Rgja Apdulah Off Jalan Suitan ssmail, 50300 Kula Lumour
Room 1901 19/F Lee Garden One 23 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay

5 Apaollo Streat, Warriewood NSW 2107

RESM Neyw Zeatand REM House, Level 262 Highbrook Drive Fast Tamak, Auckland, 2013
100 Sovere gn Drive, Route 21 Carporate Park, Nellmapius Drve, rrane 0157 Pretornia

WTC Schphol Arrport, D Tower, 11th floor. Schipho! Bodlevard 359, 1118 BJ Amsterdam Schiphol
Rue Granborpré 11,1435 Maort-5aint-Gu ber:

24 Averue Joannes Masset. 69009 Lyon

Arm Kronberger Mang 3, 75824 Schwalbach a Ts

Stefan-George-Ring 2, 81929 Munich

Via'e Abruzzi, 34, 20131 Milar

Calle Rafael Calvg, 18 28010, Madrnia

Modulis Susiness Park, Route de Suisse 162, 1290 Versoix

Mayfieid Businass Park, Lismore, County Waterfoed

59 loannou Mataxa str, 19441 Karop

Sameer Business Park Mombasa Road. PC Box 10032 - 00100 - G PO Narok

302 Ard Floor A-Wing Rutu Business Park Thane Weost, Mumba 400606

Al sharehald ngs in subsidianes are owned 100% (2020 100%) through the subsidanes crdinary share cap tal

15. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2027 the Compary had capital commitrmeants of £01m (2020 Erl)
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Chnigen Group plcis a pudhic comrpany imited by shares, incorporated and registered n tne UK wiib company number 6771928

Divectors

S Chilton (Group Chief Executive Officer)

E Schinee (Indepandent Nan-Exacative Charman)
| Johnsan (Senior Indepenrdent Non-Executive)

I Nicholsen (ndependent Non-Exacutive)

S Curran (Independent Non-Executive)

A Hyland {Independent Non-Executive)

A Boyd (NMon-Executive)

Company Secretary and registered office
A Miller

Pitcairn House

Crown Square

Centrum 100

Burtom-on-Trent

Staffardshire

DE14 2ww

ADVISER AND INVESTOR CONTACTS

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Don ngton Court

Pegasus Businass Park
Herald Way

East Midlands

D74 247

Nominated adviser

Numis Securnities Lirmited

The Londaon Stock Exchange Bu'ding
10 Paternoster Square

London

EC4M 7LT

Joint brokers

Ndms Securties Limited

The London Stock Exchange Bullding
10 Paternpster Sguare

London

ECaM 7LT

RBC Camtal Markets T
Thames Court

One Queerhithe
London

EC4av 300



This product has been made using a mixture of
materials from FSC-certified forests, recycled
materials. and/or FSC controlled wood.

This report 1s completaely recyclable Thea
larmmation apphed to the outer cover Is
biodegradable. If alternative recovery options
are not available, landfill remains as a disposal
route as the film will not produce any toxic
chermicals which might reach out to the
surrouncing environment Filmowill biodegrade
over time adding texture to the compost,

Pureprint works to the EMAS standard and 15
1S 14001 Environmental Management certified

FSC' certified (hcense code FSC-C0O22913)
A CarbonNeutral company

Member of Sedex the ethical supplier register



Clinigen Group pic
Sitcairn House
Crown Square
Centrum 00
Surten-an-Trent
Staffordshire
DE14 2Ww

T 01283 495010
F 028349507
E in

fo a ciinigengroup com

www.clinigengroup.com




